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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this annual report misleading.
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Chairman’s statement

FRHEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it gives me great
pleasure to present to you the annual report for the year ended 31

December 2019.
RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$112,144,000 (2018: approximately
HK$73,423,000). Loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$104,211,000 (2018:
approximately HK$40,542,000). The net loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
was mainly attributable to fair value loss on financial assets
through profit or loss of approximately HK$5,634,000, the
impairment loss of loans and interest receivables of approximately
HK$6,201,000, the impairment loss of trade receivables of
approximately HK$8,797,000, the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$44,636,000, the
impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$2,967,000
and the general and administrative expenses of approximately
HK$101,685,000, which were offset by loan interest income of
approximately HK$8,476,000, income from food and beverage
business of approximately HK$68,793,000 and income from
alcoholic beverage distribution business of approximately
HK$12,314,000.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
turnover of the feedstock products business of approximately
HK$15,232,000, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$21,241,000 as compared to approximately HK$36,473,000 in
the corresponding year of 2018.
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Chairman's statement (Continued)

During the year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund its
money lending business through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Loan interest income under this business segment
amounted to approximately HK$8,476,000 during the year (2018:
approximately HK$10,662,000). During the year, interests of the
loan receivables were charged at rates ranging from 5% to 24%
per annum.

The Group has investments in securities of listed and non-listed
companies, debt securities and funds in order to diversify its
investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders. During
the year, the Group recorded a loss in fair value of financial
assets through profit or loss of approximately HK$5,634,000
and recognised a loss in financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately HK$2,281,000.
The Board will continue to closely monitor the performance of
securities and investments to mitigate possible financial risks.

In March 2019, the Group disposed of its investments in an
unlisted investment fund. The Disposal Price is to be settled in
cash by monthly installments from March 2019 to December
2021.

The turnover of the alcoholic beverage distribution business
for the year amounted to approximately HK$12,314,000 (2018:
approximately HK$10,133,000). The Group will monitor the
performance of the business to assess the future development.
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Chairman'’s statement (Continued)

EFRESE (8])

The turnover of the children education business for the year
amounted to approximately HK$5,427,000 (2018: HK$1,182,000).
Since February 2020, many parents withdrew their children from
classes because of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Board considers
that such impact will be reflected in the first quarter of 2020.

During the year, the Group develop the food and beverage
business in the operation of Japanese cuisine and thai food
in Hong Kong and the Directors believe that opportunities in
Japanese style restaurants in Hong Kong are promising in light of
the established but fragmented market. The turnover of the food
and beverage business for the year amounted to approximately
HK$68,793,000 (2018: HK$12,494,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In second half of 2019, Hong Kong’s catering industry had
been battered by months of political unrest in the last quarter of
2019, when the protests were at their most violent, the catering
industry suffered a drop compared to the same period at last
year, according to government figures. In addition, the impact of
COVID-19 has affected restaurants, kindergarten and pre-school
across the board.

Moreover, as a result of the continuous outbreak of the swine
fever and the outbreak of COVID-19 in various provinces and
regions in the People’s Republic of China, the operations of
the Group’s feedstock products business has been temporarily
suspended in February 2020 for reassessment of its future business
development.

The Board will reduce the operating cost to mitigate the
uncertainties the Group shall face in the current climate brought
on by COVID-19. In order to strengthen its position in the
food and beverage industry, the Group will continue to allocate
resources to the food and beverage business, and believes that
such business will help to maintain the Group’s sources of
income. In addition, the Directors remain optimistic about the
potentials in the market of Hong Kong, and will take measures
accordingly to improve our overall operational efficiency and
strengthen our revenue base.
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Chairman's statement (Continued)

Leveraging on the solid foundation supported by its existing core
businesses, the Group will formulate business strategies according
to the market trends and continue to explore new investment
opportunities, in an effort to enhance the Group’s long term
profitability. In addition, the Group will carefully review the
development in all segments, and will allocate more resources to
the businesses with sustainable growth potential.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the Directors, management and our staff for their
contributions made to the development of the Group. At the same
time, I would like to express my appreciation to our shareholders
for their continuous support. In return for your support, we are
fully committed to do our best to bring better returns to our
shareholders in the future.

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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Manai%ement Discussion and Analysis

ol sl ¢ 73 T

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”
and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) recorded a net
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$104,211,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Year”) (31 December 2018: approximately HK$40,542,000).
This was mainly attributable to the fair value loss on financial
assets through profit or loss of approximately HK$5,634,000, the
impairment loss of loans and interest receivables of approximately
HK$6,201,000, the impairment loss of trade receivables of
approximately HK$8,797,000, the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$44,636,000, the
impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$2,967,000
and the general and administrative expenses of approximately
HK$101,685,000, which were offset by loan interest income of
approximately HK$8,476,000, income from food and beverage
business of approximately HK$68,793,000 and income from
alcoholic beverage distribution business of approximately
HK$12,314,000.

Revenue for the Year increased by approximately 52.7%
to approximately HK$112,144,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$73,423,000), while gross profit for the
Year was approximately HK$62,131,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$25,897,000). Revenue for the Year comprised
the sales of feedstock products amounting to approximately
HK$15,232,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$36,473,000), dividend income from listed equity investments
amounting to approximately HK$86,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$113,000), loan interest income amounting to
approximately HK$8,476,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$10,662,000), provision of financial services amounting to
approximately HK$1,816,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$2,366,000), alcoholic beverage distribution business
amounting to approximately HK$12,314,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$10,133,000), food and beverage business
amounting to approximately HK$68,793,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$12,494,000), and provision of children
education services amounting to approximately HK$5,427,000 (31
December 2018: HK$1,182,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

General and administrative expenses for the Year increased
to approximately HK$101,685,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$49,865,000). Such increase was mainly due
to inclusion of the operating expenses of the newly acquired
businesses including food and beverage business and provision of
children education services to the administrative expenses of the
Group after the completion of their respective acquisition since
late 2018.

AGRICULTURAL BUSINESS

Revenue of the feedstock product business for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$15,232,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$36,473,000), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$21,241,000 as compared to the same
period last year, which was mainly attributable to the swine
fever occurred in late 2018 in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) which led to a decrease in the sales of feedstock
product accordingly. The continuous outbreak of the swine fever
in various provinces and regions in the PRC has contributed to
a disruption of the upstream side and downstream side of the
PRC pork supply chain and the swine market, and has resulted
in a significant decrease in demand for the Group’s feedstock
products. As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables in relation
to agricultural business with carrying amount of HK$7,827,000
was considered uncollectible and an impairment in respect of
such trade receivables was made based on historical credit loss
experience. As such, the loss recorded from agricultural business
has increased accordingly.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance,
Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong, in which a person or
company carrying on business as a money lender in Hong Kong
must obtain a money lender licence.

The market of money lending business by licensed money lenders
in Hong Kong is keen and competitive. Based on the list of
existing money lenders licensees as maintained by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong, there were more than 2,300 licensed
money lenders (including applications for renewal in progress) in
Hong Kong as at 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SRS 50 ER R ol (18)

The scope of money lending services provided by licensed money
lenders generally includes personal loans, business loans and
mortgage loans. Within a loan category, the interest rates, the
length of term of loan and choice of instalments vary with each
licensed money lender. In addition to competition with other
licensed money lenders, licensed money lenders also compete with
authorised institutions such as banks, restricted licensed banks
and deposit-taking companies in the provision of money lending
services, although licensed money lenders may offer an advantage
in providing loans with simpler approval procedures and greater
flexibility.

Therefore, in view of the competitive landscape of the money
lending business in Hong Kong, to reach potential borrowers
who might compare lending services and products across various
options, the brand exposure and target market are important to a
licensed money lender.

The Group’s money lending business does not generally target the
general public. In order to differentiate itself from other licensed
money lenders in the market, the target customers of the money
lending business of the Group are mainly as follows:

(i) as regards personal loans, the Group targets well-heeled and
reputational customers, the occupations of which ranged
from executives, businessmen to professionals; and

(i1) as regards business loans, the Group targets well-established
companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/or the
PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group mainly provided
term loans to individuals and companies where interests are
payable by tailor-made schedule at fixed interest rate. The Group’s
money lending business do not usually grant loans to connected
persons of the Company and for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has not granted any loan to the connected persons
of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, personal loans represented
approximately 90% and business loans represented approximately
10% respectively in value of the Group’s total active and
outstanding loan portfolio. All of the customers in the Group’s
money lending business are either Hong Kong or PRC residents or
companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/or the PRC
and come from referral from the business partners of the Group.

The majority of our loans are short-term loans repayable within a
year. As at 31 December 2019, 85% of outstanding loan balances
were short-term loans repayable within one year and 15% of
outstanding loan balances were long-term loans repayable beyond
one year.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate of the active
and outstanding loans in the loan portfolio of the Group’s money
lending business ranged from approximately 5% to 24% per
annum. Most of the loans granted by the money lending business
of the Group are unsecured loans. To justify the higher credit
risk, the Group typically charge a higher interest rate. Unsecured
loans represented approximately 84% of the Group’s total active
and outstanding loan portfolio as at 31 December 2019. Most of
such unsecured loans were advanced to individuals, who are well-
heeled and reputable and therefore, the Group has not requested
for additional personal guarantees in respect of such loans.

Given that the majority of the loans granted by the Group’s money
lending business are short-term loans provided to our customers
who, as mentioned above, were well-heeled and reputable
individuals and well-established companies who/which need
short-term financing for personal/business needs, the collateral
requirement was not viable as it was inconvenient to provide
collaterals for short-term loans. Moreover, the creation and
release of collaterals for short-term loans will create unnecessary
administrative cost to the Group. In view of the higher underlying
credit risk and lack of collateral, the Group could typically charge
higher interest rates. Also, the Group usually required customers
to provide signed and post-dated bank cheques with payments in
accordance with tailor made repayment schedules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For certain corporate customers, the Group has requested
personal/corporate guarantees in order to enhance the
recoverability of the loans. In determining whether a personal/
corporate guarantee is required to add further security for the loan,
the Group will consider, on a case by case basis, the reason for
the borrowing, the credit history of the borrower with the Group,
the borrower’s financial background and the Group’s credit
exposure for the loan. As at 31 December 2019, loans which are
backed by personal/corporate guarantees/mortgages in respect of a
property represented approximately 14% in total number of loans,
and approximately 16% in value of our Group’s total active and
outstanding loan portfolio.

During the Year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund the
money lending business, loan interest income from this business
segment amounted to approximately HK$8,476,000 during the
Year (31 December 2018: approximately HK$10,662,000).

Impairment loss of loans and interest receivables of approximately
HK$6,201,000 was made on the Group’s money lending business
for the Year. The impairment was made after considering the
recoverability of the loan and the related interest.

Credit Policy And Loan Approval Process

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company
has set up a credit committee (the “Credit Committee”) and
adopted a credit policy for the credit approval procedures. The
Credit Committee has full authority to deal with all credit matters.
The members of the Credit Committee are appointed by the Board
and the quorum of the Credit Committee is at least two committee
members.

The primary duties of the Credit Committee are, among other
things, to approve and oversee the credit policy of the Group’s
money lending business and to monitor our loan portfolio. The
credit policy of the Group’s money lending business is subject
to the review and amendments by the Credit Committee and
the Board from time to time in line with changes in market
environment. Given the fast changing environment, the Board and
the Credit Committee endeavor to review the credit policy at least
once a year.

1 4 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Loan applications are generally received by the Credit Committee
members, who are responsible for verifying the loan application
documents and processing the loan applications. Credit Committee
members are the main contact point with the customers, and are
responsible for collecting the customers’ information and handling
loan application documents throughout the loan application
process.

After receiving of the loan applications, the Credit Committee will
perform the credit assessment procedures to assess the repayment
ability of customers. The Group has set out strict credit check
procedures to verify the credit worthiness of the customers. As
each loan is different and unique, the Group does not have any
specific quantitative conditions or criteria imposed for approving
its loan. Each loan is decided on a case-by-case basis.

The following is a summary of the general guidelines of assessing
the loan applications by the Credit Committee:

(1) Identity proof — such as identity card and passport (for
individuals) and business registration certificate, certificate
of incorporation and the constitutional documents (for
corporate entities) must be verified,;

(2) Address proof — such as utility bills, bank/credit card
statements or formal correspondence issued by a government
or statutory body is required to be produced;

(3) Repayment ability assessment — to assess and justify
the repayment ability of the customer, criteria such as
availability of guarantor, the background of the customer,
and where applicable, the past payment record and any
other relevant information are to be considered. The Credit
Committee may request further information from the
customer including but not limited to the followings: tax
demand note, tax return, bank book record, bank statement,
payroll slip, MPF statement, employer’s letter, employment
contract, rental income receipt, tenancy agreement, financial
statements, and auditor’s report etc.; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SRS 50 ER R ol (18)

(4) Legal search — a legal search will be conducted on the
customers (and as the case may be, the guarantors) to
ascertain if the potential borrowers have any prior legal cases
in the past, which may cast doubt on credit worthiness and
repayment ability.

As with the credit assessment of borrowers, guarantors who
provide personal/corporate guarantee in favour of a loan are also
required to meet the same basic eligibility and approval criteria,
and will be required to go through the same verification and
approval procedures.

The Credit Committee members will also be responsible for
determining the interest rates charged to the customers, having
taken into consideration factors such as the credit risks of the
customers, their recoverability and the prevalent market interest
rates. Typically, higher interest rates will be charged for unsecured
loans to justify the higher credit risk.

After credit assessment and review of the loan applications by
the Credit Committee, loan documents will be prepared and the
loans will be recommended to the directors of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company which operates the money lending
business for final approval.

If the applicable percentage ratios as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the making of the loan under the loan
application would constitute a discloseable transaction of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
loan application will be forwarded to the Board and a meeting
of the Board will be held to consider and approve the loan
application. It is the Group’s policy not to make any advance to
a borrower if such a proposed loan transaction will constitute a
major transaction or above under the GEM Listing Rules.

1 6 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

During the Year, revenue from external customers of China
Demeter Securities Limited (“CD Securities”) amounted to
approximately HK$1,816,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$2,366,000). CD Securities is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, principally engaged in advising on securities, dealing
in securities and asset management and is a licensed corporation
in Hong Kong to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

SECURITIES INVESTMENT BUSINESS

The Group’s diversified securities investment portfolios cover
both listed and non-listed companies and debt securities, in
order to diversify its investment portfolios and increase returns
to shareholders. The financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss held by the Group were all shares of listed companies
in Hong Kong. The fair value change of the debt securities
were recognised in financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

During the Year, the Group recorded loss from the changes
in fair value of financial assets through profit or loss
of approximately HK$5,634,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$7,603,000) and loss from the changes in
fair value of financial assets through other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$2,281,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$14,416,000).

The Directors consider that an investment in the equity securities
and the debt securities with a carrying value of 5% or more
of the net asset value of the Group as at balance sheet date as
significant investments (the “Significant Investments”). As at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold
any Significant Investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

Aiming to diversify the business profile of the Group, Eternal
Code Holdings Limited (“Eternal Code”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group as the purchaser, Nice Fund Limited
(“Nice Fund”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong as the
seller, and the ultimate beneficial owners of Nice Fund and
also the directors of Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”), as
the guarantors, entered into a memorandum of understanding
on 9 February 2018, and further entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “Belicious SPA”) on 29 March 2018,
in relation to the sale and purchase of (i) all the issued shares of
Belicious (collectively, the “Sale Shares”); and (ii) the sale debts
representing the entire shareholder’s loan owing by Belicious to
the seller at completion, at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$23 million. According to the terms of the Belicious SPA,
Nice Fund and the guarantors guaranteed to Eternal Code that
the average of the audited net profit after tax for each of the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the years ending 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 shall not be less than HK$3,000,000
(the “Guaranteed Average PAT”). Following the signing of the
supplemental agreement on 20 April 2018, completion of the
acquisition took place and Belicious became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and its financial results was consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Belicious is principally engaged in distribution of alcoholic
beverage in Hong Kong and the PRC. It is expected to have
a positive impact on the operations, financial results and
profitability of the Group. During the Year, revenue from
the distribution of alcoholic beverage business amounted
to approximately HK$12,314,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$10,133,000).

1 8 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Year, the actual profit after tax of Belicious and
its subsidiaries was HK$2,615,000 (2018: approximately
HKS$1,671,000) based on its management accounts. According
to the Belicious SPA, in the event that the amount of the average
audited net profit after tax attributable to the owners of Belicious
for each of the year ended 31 December 2018 and the years
ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 (the “Actual
Average PAT”) is less than the Guaranteed Average PAT, Nice
Fund and the guarantors shall jointly pay, in cash or immediately
available funds, to Eternal Code a sum (the “Shortfall
Compensation”) calculated according to the following formula:

A=B-0C)x8
Where:

A is the Shortfall Compensation provided that such amount
shall be capped at HK$9,000,000;

B is the Guaranteed Average PAT; and

C  is the Actual Average PAT.

As at the date hereof, the criteria for calculation of the Actual
Average PAT had not been reached for assessment of the Shortfall
Compensation, if any. The Group will monitor the performance
of the Belicious and will fulfill the obligations of information
disclosure based on the subsequent progress of the above matter.

FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUSINESS

During the Year, food and beverage business is one of the Group’
s principal business through operating of twelve restaurants
serving Japanese cuisine, Thai food, Italian food and Hong
Kong local food in Hong Kong and Singapore. During the
Year, the revenue from food and beverage business amounted
to approximately HK$68,793,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$12,494,000). The impact of COVID-19 has
affected restaurants. The Group will reduce the operation cost
to mitigate the uncertainties the Group shall face in the current
climate bought on by COVID-19.
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Manai%ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROVISION OF CHILDREN EDUCATION SERVICES

During the Year, revenue from the provision of children education
services amounted to approximately HK$5,427,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$1,182,000).

As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Education Bureau of
Hong Kong announced a class suspension of all schools starting
from early February 2020. As at the date of this report, the exact
date of class resumption is subject to further assessment, and it
was noted that approximately 25% of children had dropped out
of the classes operated under the Group’s provision of children
education services business segment due to the extension of the
class suspension.

The Directors are of the view that the education services market
in particular in the kindergarten and pre-school education business
will face difficulty to maintain the number of students due to
withdrawal of individual student during the period.

INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

The joint venture is currently engaged in investing in the business
of operating restaurants, cafes and takeaway outlets in Singapore.
During the Year, the Group recorded the share of loss of a joint
venture of approximately HK$1,732,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1,801,000). The loss was mainly attributable to
the rising costs of the food ingredients and beverages for operation
and related staff costs. During the Year, the share of losses of a
joint venture exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. The Group
will closely monitor the development of the joint venture and
adjust its business strategy according to the market conditions to
cater to market needs.

20 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN AN UNLISTED INVESTMENT FUND

East Gain Enterprise Limited (“East Gain”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, invested in certain non-voting
participating redeemable shares (“Fund Shares”) of an unlisted
investment fund (“Fund”) in 2015. On 15 March 2019, East Gain
accepted the offer from Convoy Collateral Limited (“CCL”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and an independent third party, to purchase the 736.217 Fund
Shares held by East Gain at the disposal price of approximately
HK$6.6 million (“Disposal Price”), representing the net asset
value attributable to the Fund Shares held by East Gain as at 31
December 2017. The Disposal Price is to be settled in cash by 34
monthly instalments from March 2019 to December 2021.

Taking into account (i) the fact that the investment in the Fund
has not generated any dividend income for the Group; (ii) the
redemption and transfer restrictions; (iii) the constant cash
inflow that will be brought by the disposal; and (iv) the declining
performance of the Fund, the Group considered that the disposal
of the Fund Shares represented a good opportunity for the Group
to cash in the uncertainties. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 March 2019.

Completion of the disposal of the Fund Shares is conditional upon
the other shareholders of the Fund accepting CCL’s offer and East
Gain receiving the Disposal Price in full from CCL. On 19 March
2019, East Gain was informed by CCL that all shareholders of the
Fund had accepted its offer to purchase.

Up to the date of this report, the instalments of the Disposal Price
receivable had been received.
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PROSPECTS

For the past several months, the food and beverage business
has been under severe duress from unprecedented challenges on
the home front, the outbreak of COVID-19 and a slowdown in
the global economy. Given the fact that Hong Kong’s food and
beverage sector has been severely impacted, the Group will adhere
to a flexible and prudent approach in food and beverage business
development and deploy resources cautionly in order to maintain
its overall competitiveness. In addition, it is expected that the loan
business will have a steady development this year based on the
current market environment and sentiment. The Group remains
optimistic about the development potential of Hong Kong market
and take measures accordingly to improve our overall operational
efficiency and strengthen our revenue base.

It has been observed that the continuous outbreak of the swine
fever, together with the outbreak of COVID-19 affecting
various provinces and regions in the PRC, has contributed to
a disruption of the upstream side and downstream side of the
PRC pork supply chain and the swine market, and has resulted
in a significant decrease in demand for the Group’s feedstock
products. After careful consideration of the business development
of the Group’s feedstock product business, the operations of
the Group’s feedstock products business has been temporarily
suspended in February 2020 for reassessment of its future business
development.

The Group will review the markets for its respective businesses
with a forward looking perspective, committing more resources to
the business with sustainability potential. Meanwhile, the Group
will continue to seek business and investment opportunities with
a view to providing growth potential of the Group and bringing
higher returns to the shareholders of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Proposed acquisition of Champ Express Holdings Limited

On 4 January 2019, Amber Talent International Limited (“Amber
Talent”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an individual
(“Vendor”), an independent third party, pursuant to which Amber
Talent has conditionally agreed to acquire from the Vendor the
entire issued share capital of Champ Express Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, at the consideration of HK$6,800,000. Champ Express
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Champ Express Group”)
are principally engaged in the research and development of
Chinese patented medicine products. After taking into account of
commercial considerations, in particular, that sufficient documents
and/or information have not been provided to the Group to carry
out and complete the due diligence of the Champ Express Group
to its satisfaction, on 7 March 2019, the Vendor and Amber Talent
entered into a termination agreement whereby the parties have
mutually agreed to terminate the sale and purchase agreement
with effect from the date of such termination agreement and upon
termination, no party to the sale and purchase agreement shall
have any claim against the other party in respect of any matter or
thing arising out of or in connection with the sale and purchase
agreement save for any antecedent breaches and accrued benefits.

Disposal of investments in an unlisted investment fund

On 15 March 2019, East Gain accepted the offer from CCL, an
independent third party, to purchase 736.217 Fund Shares held
by East Gain at the Disposal Price, representing the net asset
value attributable to the Fund Shares held by East Gain as at 31
December 2017. The Disposal Price is to be settled in cash by 34
monthly instalments from March 2019 to December 2021. For
further details of the Fund and the disposal, please refer to the
section headed “Investments in an Unlisted Investment Fund”
above.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have any
significant acquisition and disposal during the year.
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Manai%ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$29,689,000 (2018:
HK$68,576,000) and net current assets of approximately
HK$96,678,000 (2018: approximately HK$191,074,000). Current
ratio (defined as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 2.89 times (2018: 6.02 times).

approximately

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2018
and 2019.

We fund our operations principally from cash generated from
our operations, other debt instruments and equity financing from
investors. Our cash requirements relate primarily to production
and operating activities, business and asset acquisitions,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital expenditures
and any unexpected cash requirements. During the Year, our loss
before interest, taxes and depreciation amounted to approximately

HK$79,698,000.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total liabilities to the total assets, as at 31 December 2019
was 33% (2018: 13%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$136,726,000 (2018:
approximately HK$243,416,000).

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 27 May 2019,
the special resolution approving the Capital Reorganisation
comprising the Share Consolidation, the Capital Reduction and the
Share Sub-division (each as defined below) was duly passed by
way of poll and took effect on 28 May 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Under the Capital Reorganisation,

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Every 8 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the
then existing share capital of the Company was consolidated
(“Share Consolidation”) into 1 consolidated share of
HK$0.08 each (“Consolidated Share”);

the total number of Consolidated Shares in the issued share
capital of the Company immediately following the Share
Consolidation was rounded down to a whole number by
cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the Share Consolidation;

the par value of each of the then issued Consolidated
Shares was reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.01 each (“New
Shares™) by cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.07 on each of the then issued
Consolidated Shares, such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share was reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.01
(together with sub-paragraph (2) above, the “Capital
Reduction”); the credits arising from (a) such reduction of
the paid up capital; and (b) the cancellation of any fractional
Consolidated Share which may arise from the Share
Consolidation, was transferred to the contributed surplus
account of the Company within the meaning of the Company
Act 1981 of Bermuda; and

each of the then authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares
of par value of HK$0.08 each was sub-divided into 8 New
Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each (“Share Sub-division”,
together with the Share Consolidation and the Capital
Reduction, the “Capital Reorganisation™).

The board lot size for trading in the Shares was changed from
20,000 existing shares to 10,000 New Shares on the Stock
Exchange after completion of the Capital Reorganisation.
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Manai%ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROPOSED ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER THE GENERAL
MANDATE

On 3 June 2019, the Company and Yellow River Securities
Limited as placing agent entered into a conditional placing
agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place,
on a best endeavor basis, up to 30,600,000 placing shares of the
Company at the placing price of HK$0.22 per share under general
mandate (“Placing”). As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 June 2019, the conditions precedent under the
placing agreement was not fulfilled on or before 24 June 2019,
being the long stop date of the placing agreement, the placing
agreement has lapsed and the Placing did not proceed.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, most of the Group’s
business transactions, assets and liabilities were principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), Renminbi (“RMB”),
Singapore dollars (“S$7), United States dollars (“US$”) and HK$
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Group is exposed to
potential foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation of RMB,
S$ and US$ against HK$. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate
uncertainties or volatility, hedging instruments including swaps
and forwards will be used by the Group in the management
of exposure affecting interest rates and foreign exchange rate
fluctuations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2018: HK$Nil).

CHARGES OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any charges of

group assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 73
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (excluding directors of
the Company) (2018: 77). The Group’s remuneration policy is
to provide competitive level of remuneration to employees and
directors based on their performance, qualification, experience and
the prevailing industry practice.

Apart from regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share
options may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance.

We aim to provide employees with resources and an environment
that encourages them to develop careers with us. We provide
management personnel and employees with on-the-job education,
training and other opportunities to improve their skills and
knowledge.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 September 2013, the Board may grant options to eligible
persons, including employees and directors, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. During the Year, the Company did not
grant any option.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Singapore. The Group has established environment
policies and procedures aimed at compliance with local
environmental and other laws. For the feedstock production, we
have complied with the “Regulations on Administration of Feed
and Feed Additives”, and the “Measures for the Management of
Production Licenses for Feeds and Feed Additives”. For the food
and beverage production process, part of the food waste and all
of the waste oil were recycled and collected by the environmental
parties. During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and Greenhouse Gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The management performs regular reviews
to identify environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in
place are adequate to manage these risks.
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Manai%ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

28

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 February 2020. As a result of the continuous
outbreak of the swine fever, together with the outbreak of
COVID-19 affecting various provinces and regions in the
PRC, has contributed to a disruption of the upstream side
and downstream side of the PRC pork supply chain and the
swine market, and has resulted in a significant decrease in
demand for the Group’s feedstock products. After careful
consideration of the business development of the Group’
s feedstock product business, the operations of the Group’s
feedstock products business has been temporarily suspended
in February 2020 for reassessment of its future business
development. The Company will continue to evaluate
the impact of the suspension of operations of the Group’
s feedstock products business and further consider the
circumstances to assess the viability of continuance of such
business.

The fair value of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the end of
the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the realised gains and unrealised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL from changes in fair value on
financial assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$101,000 and HK$4,191,000

respectively.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

e MR FIE
(a) Zz%ﬂzl-‘/\j Hﬁﬂ%g?g?ﬁig

(b)

HZ+—HZAE - i Fr s a
F) 5698 > L[R]3 22 A B 0y K Hl @
114 3 750 e RO 9 1 B E S AL
Hh B 5 A LB B R A 5 T B Y i
T T Vi H B > A i A A 42 T 4 R
il B T SR K R B D o K6 B AR R A
%@ﬁﬂ?ﬂ%%%ﬁ%%%%
AREEP —F _FFEZ AHRFY
15 S8 ) O SE S > DA B R Al

HR AR ZETS 1 8 J T 1) o AR\
FF%HWG“%$EENMEW
SEFS R I H ER S L%
5o DAET A 4 2 408 A B 2E 5 1 AT
itk

AT A T S 2 N B E TR R
K ¥ 7 B 22 BIF 2 Ml X GEMLPIT B
5 2 Fr e T 35 i fE R A e

REZESEA M R R H
R F—-NETHA=1+—H
Rl 2 A REER AR 2 &R
BEANREEZTESHA AEE
T AE #5228 Bl e X
7 5 Bl 18 0 Al B #9 W 101,000
JC S s ¥°4,191,0007C



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
describing our efforts for creating a sustainable business for our
stakeholders during the fiscal year from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) acknowledges its
responsibility for integrity of this report and to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses all relevant material issues and
fairly presents ESG performance of the Group.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BOUNDARY

This report has been prepared in compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide,
Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, applying
the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency. The report aims to be clear, balance and easy-to-read
in which data are analysed to account for year-on-year changes
and presented in a way that allows for consistent comparison.

This report covers the feedstock products business in the People
Republic of China (“PRC”), money lending business, financial
services business, securities investments business, food and
beverage business, alcoholic beverage distribution business and
provision of children education services in Hong Kong.

FEEDBACK

We welcome your feedback regarding how we can improve our
performance and reporting in the future. Please send us your
feedback at info@chinademeter.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group operates food and beverage business in Hong Kong as
its core business. Besides the feedstock products business located
in the PRC, the other businesses of the Group are predominantly
office-based operation in Hong Kong.

The Group views proper management of ESG issues as essential
to long-term success. The Group has incorporated sustainability in
its business strategies and daily operations. A sound management
of ESG issues is crucial to our business’s sustainable growth. The
Board undertakes the responsibility for ensuring ESG issues and
related considerations are incorporated in processes and decision
making, evaluating and determining the Group’s ESG-related risks
and opportunities, and disclosing ESG performance of the Group
in a fair manner.
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Environment
. Install smoke and dust treatment and sewage disposal facility

. Monitor energy usage to formulate conservation plan

. Organise energy-efficiency training

. Inspect and carry out maintenance on facilities regularly
. Encourage employees to conserve resources
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People

. Provide statutory welfare and protect employees’ rights

. Organise safety and development training

. Inspect potential health hazard areas and correct them
immediately

NP ]

o PR E AR A R OR R AR B HE A

o ALBRE A RER R

o MRAVETE MG e RR A B %
o IE

/

/

N

Operation
. Establish a stringent quality checking system
. Establish standardised customer engagement procedures

. Select qualified suppliers to ensure products’ quality and
safety
. Prohibit any forms of corruption with internal policies
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Building strong relationships with our stakeholders enables us to

align our strategy with long-term values and operate the business

in a sustainable way. We engage with both internal and external

stakeholders on an ongoing basis. Below are the communications

channels and topics that stakeholders are concerned about.

Customers

E-9

Data privacy

R AL B

Customer
satisfaction

HEIWEE

Company website
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Feedback
from frontline
employees
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Employees Community
fé B Ak [
Concerned Topics
A TF e
Training and * Contribution to
development the community
&l K g HEALRE
Remuneration e Environmental
o I protection
TR R
Occupational
Health and Safety
T 6 fe e % 2 &
Engagement Channels
20 R e
Weekly staff e Support charity
meetings organisations
B T % MR EE
fi8
Complaints
system
B il
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental Management

The Company understands its responsibility to ensure effective
environmental management in its business operations, ensuring the
environmental impacts associated with its core food and beverage
business among other businesses are mitigated.

In the PRC, our feedstock products business has assigned the head
of each department with responsibility to ensure that sustainability
is embedded across the organisation at company level, department
level, operating level and team level. It covers the requirements
and standards on aspects including electricity, water, oil and coal,
to provide employees with a holistic view on the Group’s energy-
saving efforts.

Monitor energy usage in
different departments to
formulate conservation
plans

W %% T 1 ) BE YR 1
DL LA 7€ B /E w8

Encourage employees to
conserve energy under the
reward and penalty system
AR B 1o B ) R B 5 40
fiE 77

A w WY T SRS R iR R S A
B A U8 B EAL > MR HAZ L'
L BIORE 3875 LA K CH At S5 36 BR 05 1Y) 52 28
R 28 R I

T H B AN Y SRR E SRS AR IR A
AR R BN A B DUREOR AT R AR R
ZF S > m T~ R R T 2 R T B
T IO T < HL R 25 7~ 7K~ S RS O T
WK AE B B e > 75 A B i A 4R ) S B
Fir A 1) 55 0 £ 3t R A Rk o

Organise energy-efficiency
training to strengthen
conservation awareness

A 43k 61 g 35 A A I o 47 e

ik

Inspect and carry out

maintenance regularly on

facilities

58 SIS BN A AT A A e A
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Responsibilities of the Energy Management Team

The Group’s money lending, financial services, securities
investment, alcoholic beverage distribution businesses and
provision of children education services have a relatively low
environmental impact due to the office-based nature of these
businesses. Notwithstanding this, the Group’s management
regularly reviews and ensures compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, particularly on its food and
beverage business and feedstock products business.

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance of relevant
laws and regulations' that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
during 2019.

Energy Management System

The Group has formulated an Energy Management System and
a management manual, covering the requirements and standards
in various aspects including electricity, water, oil, etc. The
establishment of the system is guided by the relevant PRC energy
laws and regulations including but not limited to Law of the PRC
on Conserving Energy as well as the Group’s internal policies. We
collect data of energy usage in various departments on a regular
basis for analysis and formulate the energy conservation plan
accordingly.

Resources Consumption
Energy Consumption

Electricity, natural gas and gasoline are the major types of energy
we consume. In 2019, our electricity consumption was recorded
at 1,394,377.67 kWh, gasoline consumption by vehicles amounted
to 19,600 litres and 1,101,120 MJ of Towngas was consumed by
restaurants in Hong Kong. The increase in Towngas consumption
(2018: 186,720 MJ) is mainly due to inclusion of full-year data
of some restaurants and education business, as well as the newly
acquired business in Hong Kong.

9%

16%

Energy
Consumption (GJ)
BRI FE
(HHEH)

5%

List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

in this report.
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The total energy consumption amounted to 6,745.57 GJ, of which ~ BEURAEFE & /56,745.57H £ H > Hepp o
one fourth was contributed by the five new restaurants in Hong Z— PP 5 W 110 T TR R o ALV R
Kong. The total consumption intensity was approximately 0.06 GJ &) &5 T # % o i £20.06 % £ H-

per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Consumption and Intensity

Tl VR A
8,000 0.065 S
1,676.12 2
o 2R B Consumption (Existing Business)
S 6,000 0.06 5% THFER (B4 H)
o F
24 EH— 8 Consumption (New Business)
gﬂ;\ﬁlﬂ 4,000 0.055 SQ THFEE (R
5 ~
2 5,069.45 Oy = Intensity
S 2,000 0.05  Tun il S
£ i
. 1 0.045 Ei{%
2018 2019
Water Consumption JiH K

The total water consumption of the Group in 2019 was 18,756.17 AERBR T —ERNHKBEER
tonnes, of which 5,612.17 tonnes were consumed by new 18,756.17Md > H 15 612.17Ma JH 7 Y &
restaurants in Hong Kong. The intensity was 0.167 tonnes/ 5 B8 B8 - % B4 & B T W ool s
thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue. During the year, the 0.167Mf o £ 1Ay » 7 23 W) JiA 3K BU# I 7K I8
Company did not have any issue in sourcing water that is fit for  J7 [l i 28 A% faf ] & o

the purpose.

Water Consumption and Intensity
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Packaging Materials

The feedstock products business consumed 14 tonnes of plastic
bags while 30 boxes of paper were used in Hong Kong head
office during the year. Both numbers recorded approximately 50%
reduction compared to last year, showing the Group’s efforts to
minimise packaging materials usage.

Plastic bag (tonnes) TE?H{% (™)

Paper (boxes)

Emissions
Air

The Group’s operations directly generate greenhouse gases
(“GHG”) through consumption of petrol by its vehicles. Indirect
GHG emissions are generated from purchased electricity and the
use of gas bought from Towngas for restaurants in Hong Kong.

In 2019, total GHG emissions amounted to 954.27 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO2e”), of which, direct emissions
(Scope I) and indirect emissions (Scope II) were 110.70 tCOze and
843.57 tCO2¢e respectively. Emission intensity was computed as
0.01 tCOz2e per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

Petrol and Towngas consumption for vehicles and restaurants
respectively emitted approximately 0.31kg sulphur oxides
(“SOx™), 6.24kg nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and 0.13kg particulate
matters (“PM”).

Air Emission (kg)
A PE B (T 3e)

0.13

2019
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The increase of GHG and air pollutants emissions was due to
inclusion of full-year data of some restaurants and education

business, as well as the restaurants newly opened in Hong Kong. VS BT B B T A A BHE o

A boiler fuelled by burning of wood is used to produce steam to
moisturise fodder, which accounts for the biggest proportion of
the overall energy consumption in feedstock production process.
To mitigate environmental impacts of smoke and wastewater
the operations generated, the Group has installed smoke and
dust treatment facilities and sewage facilities at its production

sites. The smoke and dust emissions as well as the wastewater 7K ¥4 32 21| PE R HE o
discharged by the Group were able to meet the emission standards.
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Waste

The Group’s operations do not generate any hazardous waste.
During the year, the Group generated a total of approximately
7.24 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, including 1.77 tonnes general
waste, 3.76 tonnes food waste and 1.71 tonnes waste oil. Of
which, all waste oil and approximately 60% (2.25 tonnes) of food
waste were collected by the registered waste cooking oil collectors
and the food waste recycling companies respectively. The total
non-hazardous waste intensity was approximately 0.00006 tonnes
per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

We understand that feedstock production generates a considerable
amount of waste. To minimise the adverse effects on the
environment, the Group has installed sewage treatment facilities
and processes animal waste into fertiliser.
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Environment and Natural Resources Conservation

To facilitate energy and water conservation, the Group has set
a series of management standards and energy saving measures,
covering usage of electricity, oil, coal and water. It is believed
that every employee’s effort is important for cultivating an
environment-friendly atmosphere in the workplace. We are
committed to conserving resources effectively through systematic
measurement and management.
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/

N

Conservation Initiatives Bl
A
Energy HE IR
. Check quality of coal . T A 8 ¢ B R
. Monitor consumption of cooking oil in each restaurant . B A E T B U FE

. Monitor operations of power systems in the office and public
areas

. Use electrical appliances with Grade 1 energy label

. Strict control on the usage of light

o EEMAERAMGINENRS
A

o AR SRR G RN E R

Jif 2 1 £

/

/

N

. Install air purifiers and maintain room temperature at 25.5 C . A 7E SRR AL A B A = R TR
255¢C

Water g <gll

. Recycle boiler water and steam condensate . [m] oz 848 M 7K K% 7% SR

. Conduct pipeline maintenance regularly
. Install motion sensing induction faucets

o EMEIEAEE
o RHRBMEKHED

~

Paper
. Adopt double-sided printing
. Recycle ink cartridges and used paper

o BRTEEWEATED
o I ER & ke M AR

OUR PEOPLE
Labour Standards

We prohibit employment of child or forced labour. We have
developed an employee identity verification system to ensure
there is no child or forced labour. During the year, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations® that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to employment and labour practices. Nor did we identify any
incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

in this report.
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Employment
Employees Composition

As of 31 December 2019, we had 75 full-time and 4 part-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Among the full-time staff,
53 (71%) were employed in Hong Kong and 22 (29%) were based
in the PRC. Our male to female ratio was 52:48, which was the
same as last year. Approximately 73% were aged between 31 and
50. In terms of education profile, almost half of our employees
have obtained a bachelor’s degree or above. There were 19%
managerial staff, while the rest were general staff.
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AR B 1 I R B40% > 1 B AR R
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The total turnover rate of employees was 40% while the new hire
rate was 18.67%. Distributions of turnover rate and new hire rate
by gender and by age are shown in the charts below.

Turnover & New Hire Rates by Gender
5 3 2 2 3R W\ R

Turnover & New Hire Rates by Age
[ PATEE VTN ES

110%

42%
38%

Male % % Female % 7%

B New Hire Rate
A 2

B Turnover Rate

i e

Employees’ Rights and Welfare

The Group is determined to establish a diverse and inclusive
workplace for its employees, providing equal opportunities in all
aspects of employment regardless of age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, ethnicity, and religion.

The Group prohibits any form of harassment and discrimination.
Any employee who becomes aware of any such behaviour is
encouraged to report promptly to the human resources department.

Our human resources department clearly sets out policies
regarding recruitment, promotion, compensation, working hours,
rest periods, dismissal, benefits and welfare measures. Working
hours and rest periods are established based on the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Group believes that employee welfare is critical to
the business and can help improve employees’ motivation
and productivity. We offer our employees marriage leave,
compassionate leave and maternity leave according to applicable
labour laws. Insurance including but not limited to endowment
insurance, medical insurance, occupational injury insurance, as
well as Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for
Hong Kong employees and central pension scheme for the PRC
employees are also offered.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019
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In Hong Kong office, we regularly organise birthday celebrations
to enhance employees’ relationships. Employees are motivated to
join and share the joy at the Annual Dinner, and the theme was
“Old Hong Kong” last year. It was a precious opportunity to bring
the management and employees closer to each other and to share
their thoughts and ideas.

Birthday Celebration
BEAETEE)

In addition to statutory welfare, such as medical insurance and
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme, our
food and beverage business in Hong Kong provide employees
with benefits including meal allowance and staff discount in the
Group’s retail stores and restaurants. Encouraging staff to equip
themselves with improved job-related skills, we offer continuing
education subsidies to employees with at least 6-month prior
employment at the Group.

Community Investment

We understand the importance of social responsibilities and
encourage our employees to participate in charitable activities and
fundraising events. This year, we encouraged our employees to
participate in Yan Oi Tong Charity Raffle Tickets and successfully
raised HKD$11,000. This money will be used for expanding
community services and providing immediate help for those
in need. The total donation and sponsorship to the charitable
organisations amounted to HK$135,000.
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Health and Safety

We are committed to maintaining a safe and healthy work
environment for our employees. The Group’s occupational health
and safety measures strictly comply with Law of the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations® that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to occupational health
and safety.

In 2019, there were two work-related accidents with 95 lost days.
We had notified the insurer in a timely manner according to the
laws and regulations. To minimise the potential health hazards, the
Group has implemented the following measures.

Inspect ventilation Offer personal

systems and office protective equipment

equipment regularly

SE I e A JEL AR ERIE STk (DN
B 0 s M R 5 A

Conduct safety tests
and be licensed
before putting special
equipment into use

R R A T LA (8
Hi ZE AT % 2 0l K
YEA5 1 R

We understand that staff in food and beverage business is injury-
prone due to the job nature. To avert potential occupational
injuries, we have established a set of safety instructions, guiding
employees the proper ways to use specialised equipment and
personal protective equipment in the kitchen. Clear guidance on
cleaning and sterilisation is also given to safeguard a hygienic
work environment. All precautionary measures are under
supervision by managerial staff.

& List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

in this report.
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Provide regular safety
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Arrange regular
medical check-ups for
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Safety Training

To maintain safety awareness of the workforce, we arrange safety
training for employees on a regular basis. All employees in the
PRC participate in fire safety training, including the managerial
staff. There were 343 person-times participated in the training
with a total of 485 hours.

We inspect the potential safety hazards during the fire drill and
tackle the problems in a timely manner. We will provide more
safety training on using fire extinguishment equipment and
strengthening employees’ awareness on fire prevention in the
future.

Training and Development

Annual training courses are held for employees, including
induction programme, on-the-job training, sales training and
professional training. Examinations are conducted for evaluating
training effectiveness.

Percentage of Trained Employee by Gender Category
i o B 43 W 2 R B A 43 b
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i T B 3 i 1 3 3 I 8

Average Training Hours by Function Category

5 10k Gl 1 43 1 339 K 9 kg 8

i1 11

Male Female Management General Staff

F & I g — AT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

EE-Ha8Kr&iths (8)

OPERATING PRACTICES
Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to provide quality products and services
to our customers. We carefully monitor product safety and quality
at the production stage itself. To distinguish problematic materials,
we conduct chemical analyses on imported raw materials and
ready-to-export products and record the results. They are returned
or disposed if problems are found. We document every feedstock
product and deficient items and they are disposed after 10 days.
We also have regular check-ups to maintain storage hygiene and
product conditions.

Our feedstock products are clearly labelled with the “PRC Feed
Label Standard” according to the GB 10648-2013 standard
requirements and all folders are labelled and kept according to the
“Administrative Provisions on Feed Quality Safety” requirement.
Information on chemical analyses (amount of minerals, proteins
and additives), production date, shelf life, name and address of the
producer are provided.

We take feedback from customers seriously, and we have
implemented engagement procedures to maintain the highest
standard of service and product quality. In 2019, there were no
complaints received on product quality and safety.

ot
=

%/ 1

T

=i
i

E

AR B B Ty T B E G R A KR
Bso MM AEERM EEELREE M E2
L E B o 3 B O JRORORE R YE
HE A A AT AL B0 A 3 AR AF 0
A5 2 > DL A7 7 B R A A R o — B3R
HLM R 2% 55 R T LAAR (8] o B -
FAM 3 25 B R A B HROBE ) o E AT R
Bk AR 10K A% i B o FAM I8 & HE 17 52
Mg B > LAME SR RS 09 A7 ok 10 A S2E IR
Ul e

KR IEGB 10648-2013 1% #E K 72 jd i
Ak E T MRS L T e R R A AR AT
NG H T A ] Ak AT 4 2 AR 4 [ R B &
2 LA | B R HE AT A o AR AR
FHAL B (B E - & A8 &R
B S E) AEBY RE- AR
T A 42 T e b ik 25 {5 R o

RMBEHGEF E WE HiE2 R
R Fr DL AE 5 B e K HE 9 AR B X E L
o S F U BAM A A B
7 i B R A B

Receive feedbacks
through various Follow-up with

channels, including

phone, email and
Facebook

i R R~ T AR B T A ®F
2 Tl 3 2 I

working days

customers within three

J = A8 TAE B A [ 35

Record the relevant
information for future
improvement

ROEk A B E R DL H
BHEZH

Customer Engagement % F £ §
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Environmental, Social and Governance Rgort (Continued)

Rz e

Employees are rewarded or penalised based on their performance

Ei6S (88)

SR T R R B AR B AR B

to ensure products’ quality and safety. DABE R E G B8 %4 o
Reward
5 il
. No quality or safety problem in a month Penalise
— I T A e AR R R N g A &
*  Raise reasonable solutions to strengthen *  Conceal problems in the production lines
product quality and safety ek B A= 7 A7 A Y R R
{2 5 BT 98 DASR v 7 il I BB R A
. Fail to maintain a clean working environment
AR BEAEFF BRI Y TAEER B

-

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Supply Chain Management
The Group has a total of 52 suppliers, 27 of them are located in

Hong Kong, and 22 of them are located in China and 3 of them are
located in other regions.

List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
in this report.

AR 7 A Sl S R0 2 A e 7 S A B B
& I e i B R 5 o K f B % % & B
GRE-E VN EACRSE R RN RS
T i AT S A £ B A OR R B
e

{3t e 9 48 L
AEMA G254 MR > K274

JA T ~ 2244 E A AP Y 2 34 o7 4 HL At b
@ o

C R R MR A A [k
#1 -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

EE-Ha8Kr&iths (8)

The Supplier Investigating Team is responsible for supplier
investigation and assessment. Potential suppliers’ background
information is gathered for further analysis. They are selected
on the basis of quality of materials and products, equipment
reliability, etc. We also ask for samples if necessary, so as to
ensure the quality of our purchases. We conduct an annual
assessment to examine the suppliers’ performance. Those with

unsatisfactory results are disqualified and removed from the list of

suppliers.

o O

Procurement

PR i

Information Collection
W 4E & K

Anti-corruption

The Group has high expectations of its staff in terms of integrity
and honesty. Any inappropriate behaviours or malpractices
that compromise a healthy and lawful workplace or interests
of stakeholders are strictly prohibited. Relevant preventive
management guidelines are provided to raise employees’
awareness.

Our operations comply with all applicable laws and regulations.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of laws and regulations® that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

3 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

in this report.

46 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

A T /N AL B SO AT (A T R A
APl o SF I ETEE L E R R R E
BRI — 25 0 A - AR AL RL 2
B WM T SE RS O T IR A A AT
fifi 728 o 1 75 ZE M > FRAM IR & FOR $R AR
A LA OR BT M B 09 R o FRAM & B
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Environmental, Social and Governance Rgort (Continued)

EE-a8keiths (8)

Laws and Regulations Y e

Considering all ESG aspects, the Group and its subsidiaries SHE BRI e RERE T E AEH
have established and implemented relevant internal policies and &HW%/\:‘IEE Tit A Bl A 8 BB RSN S

designated departments to ensure that business operations adhere ST EUE R Y DA AR ZES S g — )
to all applicable laws and regulations. The list of applicable laws FH B TR o 3 R Y R v s M
and regulations are as follows: PR
Aspect Laws and Regulations Section
J& Hi LR ¥
Emissions e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air Emissions
e Pollution
KGR YNEE I N R R Y R 7 PE
¢ Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution

o (rREE N RILAN B K V5 YL IR 1A )
e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes

o o N R ILAN B [ A BE VS G B A V)

Use of Resources e Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy Resources

B UR 5 o b R R R R 6 4 BE TR TR Consumption

R 8

Employment and Labour ¢ Labour Law of the PRC Labour Standards

Standards G YNBSS e ) 55 LAy Al
1 /5 K &5 57 Hl) e Labour Contract Law of the PRC

o (HEE N RILFNE 55 B & R %)

* Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
in PRC

o o N R IL AN B £ 0k T 5 ) R E A AR

*  Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong

o A KRGS

Health and Safety e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Health and Safety
it J3E B 42 4 Occupational Diseases it Jie B 27 42
G PNEE T E S MRy
e Production Safety Law of the PRC
o (R EE N R ILHNB %A E )
e Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Employers’ Occupational Health Surveillance
o N B {7 M S fit e S o PO i)
e Occupation Safety and Health Ordinance and subsidiary
regulations in Hong Kong

o il CBRCEL 2 SRR B I 88 ok 191

Product Responsibility ¢ Product Quality Law of the PRC Product

FE i B AT o (N R RN B A R ) Responsibility
« Food Safety Law of the PRC FEE i B AT
o (P NRILFIE &G % 2k)

Anti-corruption * Anti-Corruption Policy Addendum Anti-corruption

&5 o (BB BUR K 8% &5

BEERREARASR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

EE-Ha8Kr&iths (8)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY R RHE
2019 2018

Social Performance e LB “E-RE EFNEFE
Total Headcount PN i 79 84
By Employment Type 42 A1 A 5 2 1

Full-time g 75 -

Part-time e ik 4 =
By Geographical Distribution 2 I 30 A (22 )

(full time)

Hong Kong T 53 51

PRC =F 22 33
By Age i 4F- 1

<31 3K LN 10 14

31-50 31K 2 500% 55 59

>50 505% LA 1= 10 11
By Gender 2 1 il

Male 5 39 44

Female ot 36 40
By Education Level AR K

Bachelor’s degree or above B A FEE 38 31

Below bachelor’s degree B+ DI 2 37 53
By Function T2 I AE

Management &I 14 23

General staff — B T 61 61
Employees’ Turnover Rate @ 8 Wi g% 40% 17%
By Age i 4 i

<31 AN 110% 29%

31-50 31K 500K 29% 17%

>50 505 LA 1 30% 0%
By Gender 2 v il

Male F v 38% 18%

Female B/ 42% 15%

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2019 2018

Social Performance & LB “EE X NAEF
Employees’ New Hire Rate =N & 19% 18%
By Age 24 B
<31 3K AT 20% 21%
31-50 31K 500K 18% 19%
>50 505 YA L 20% 9%
By Gender e M il
Male H 4 15% 27%
Female Ik 22% 8%
Performance of Occupational ik S R B 22 2 R B
Health and Safety
Work-related accidents TAG ik 2
Work-related injuries TA5 2
Lost days due to work-related TAG K H B
incidents 95
Work-related fatalities THET- N 0
Percentage of Trained Employees (%) Z#l{E & & 7 (%)
By Gender e M il
Male 5t 31% -
Female Ik 33% -
By Function TR RE
Management g 36% =
General Staff —k g T 31% =
Average Training Hours (Hours) - 349 B S I (/N RE )
By Gender 22 1 il
Male B 6.8 =
Female g 7.0 =
By Function i ik hE
Management =il 6.4 —
General Staff — e 7.0 -
Number of Suppliers ik 7 7 B H 52 29
Hong Kong T 27 1
PRC i 22 24
Other Regions HoAth 3 4
Community Investment FE I A&
Donation (HKD) R () 135,000 83,000
Hours of volunteering (Hours) 5 R S IR B (/NRE) 0 24
REARERFIRAD
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Environmental
Performance

Total Energy
Consumption (GJ)

Energy intensity
(GJ/’000 HKD revenue)

Electricity (kWh)
Gasoline (litres)
Towngas (MJ)
Tap water (tonnes)

Water intensity
(tonnes/’000 HKD revenue)

Emissions
Air Pollutant
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) (kg)

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) (kg)

Particulate Matters (PM) (kg)
Greenhouse Gases Emissions

GHG Emissions (tCO2e)

GHG intensity (tCO2e/000
HKD revenue)

Scope I (tCO2e)

Scope II (tCO2e)

Waste
Hazardous waste (tonnes)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

Non-hazardous waste intensity
(tonnes/’ 000 HKD revenue)

Packaging Materials
Plastic bags (tonnes)

Paper (boxes)

REEH
RRERAR (FEH)

REVR B (HEH
BT ool )
B (T ILHF)
il ()
R (RER)
B K (M)
IKEE (M,
BT TR )
23787
EEEREES
fi AL 91 (SOx)
(F32)
AALYI(NOX)
(F32)
R (PM) (F32)
i 2 SR P
1 2% SR Pk
(Mg AL g
W)
it 2 5 8 o
(Mg — AL =
(S LR W )
A — (M ARk
HE)
QL= K (7
)

tem

]

e | |

§ Bf H

JgE %
HEBEEY (W)

T E Y (W)
HEBREWEE (M,
T W T ool s )
LM R
FHRLAS (W)
AR (46)

The Group

AL

6542.63

0.06
1,394,377.67
19,600.00
1,101,120
18,756.17

0.31

6.24
0.13

954.27

110.70

843.57

0.00
7.24

30

2019

“E A
Existing
Business

B XY

4866.34

0.05
1,054,802.67
19,600.00
647,472
13,144.00

0.167

0.30

4.42
0.13

751.30

0.01

86.57

664.73

0.00
3.07

0.00006

14
30

New
Business

LR B

1676.12

339,575.00
0.000
453,648
5612.17

0.01

1.82

202.97

24.13

178.84

0.00
4.17

2018

ZE )N\

3,791.04

846,268.45
17,500.00
186,720.00
11,468.37

0.156

0.26

1.69
0.12

632.35

0.01

56.48

575.87

0.00
3.33

29
60
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Environmental, Social and Governance Rgort (Continued)

EE-a8keiths (8)

ESG REPORTING GUIDE BB e BRI IR

Key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BH i B 1R AR
(TR B AR ) BB a RERBCE IR E Tk
A. Environmental
By
Aspect Al Emissions
J& T A1 ey
General disclosure Information on: Environmental
— R4 E R R R i SR PR K B R BEYS - Management
A E R E B Y B E A R
a) the policies; and
B s R
b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
ST BT A B OR R R A0 A B ik 1 B
o1l 64 & B
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
KPI Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions
o 8 AR AR AL data. PEms
PEc R K 4% B PR
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Emissions
€ R YN W) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of PE
production volume in each facility).
i 2 SR AR PR R (DAMERT B K il ) %
G UIVESY:3 & RUARE T3 )
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Waste
B o S AR R AL where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of JB% )
production volume in each facility).
FTEAREBEEYHAE (UMIFE) & 11 )
W (A R A ISR R )
BREMBEARL 0

ZEBE-NEFH
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
(TR & s8] BRE i a RERBE IR E T RE
A. Environmental
By
KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Waste
B S AR IR AL and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Ji% B
production volume in each facility).
Jir A S E BE ) AR (DAMARTE) & (@A)
W (L E B A - IHBOE R )
KPI AL.5 Description of measures taken to mitigate Emissions
B o S AR R ALS emissions and results achieved. PE
i 200 AR P R B A it B P A5 R o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Waste
B AR RFE R ALLG wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results JiE B

achieved.
Hialh pE PR A E M E B ) MR E AR
) e it % I 75 AR o

Aspect A2 Use of resources
JiE TH] A2 IR

General disclosure

— M P R

Policies on efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

A RAE B IR (R4 BRI - 7K B HoAt 5 A R B
BUK ©

Resources Consumption

KPI A2.1
B S TR HE A2, 1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s)

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume in
each facility).

PRI AL B O3 00 B BB R AR R (HN - SRR
) BFEE (DLT T KR a8 ) XEE (e

===}

L HBO R

Energy Consumption

KPI A2.2
Bl S UK AR 1R A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume in each facility).
RFEK B R R (0 DL 8 B B IH R R
H) -

Water Consumption

K
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A 1 5 28 4 AR
(TR B BB a RERENE I E T RE
A. Environmental
BB
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and Environment and
B R AR B A A2.3 results achieved Natural Resources
th 22t B8 A (5 ) 2% 2 w0 B BT A5 R Conservation
BR5E K IR B IR AR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Water
B S AR IR A2 4 sourcing water that is fit for the purpose, water use K& IR
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
4200 SR OB A K YR AT A A AT A DL B T R K
R ah wt # B BT A R
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished Packaging Materials

B 5 S SR R A2.5

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit of production volume.

SR BT B A R B (DIMRET D) & (fn
B R E AL

(2R

Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources
J& 11 A3 5 R R KGR
General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Environmental
— R impact on the environment and natural resources. Management;
AR B AT N B BR AR e K AR TR R K B Resources
B Conservation
TRETAE I i 4 B IR
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities Environmental
R S B AR A3 on the environment and natural resources and the Management;
actions taken to manage them. Resources
il e 6B 0% B 3 R B R K SR R Y K 2 Conservation

ERBREHARE BT -

BRI Hi 4B R

BRERRERIRAT
ZEBE-NEFH
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
R S BB e R
(TR & s8] BRE i a RERBE IR E T RE
B Social
Cin
Aspect Bl Employment
JETHBI1 % fik

General disclosure

— P R

Information on:
A B I f R ~ FE I T - TAERR R R
Z oAb DA B HoAh R 48 K A AR

a) the policies; and

B s &

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
ST B B AT N E R B AR B e
i Bkt

related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
diversity and other benefits and welfare.

Labour Standards
% TP A

KPI B1.1
e S AR A FE 1E B .1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (i.e.
full- or part-time), age group and geographical
region.

FRAPER - R TR (RP 2R ) - 4F AL A B
b I 8 7> 1 I B AR B

Employees Composition

SN

KPI B1.2
B S S S FE HEB 1.2

Employee turnover rate and new hire rate by
gender, age group.

AR - AR % A R 3 23 09 IR B U O A B R I o

Employees Composition

1 & A%
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A 1 5 28 4 AR
(ThA s B ) BB a RERENE I E T RE
B Social
i
Aspect B2 Health and safety
J& 1 B2 i B B 2 4
General disclosure Information on: Health and Safety
— M4 BE A B Bt 22 A AR BRI I IR R A B A S R 26 M i B Bl 27 2
fEEM

a) the policies; and

B s &

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

TS S SR AT A E R R B A B R R O
B B R o

relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

KPI B2.1

Number of work-related fatalities

Performance Data

B o S AR AR B 2.1 PR LA BRAR T PE T2 i A B Summary
REBBEHE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BH S BB 1 B2.2 R T H % TAEH 8- i J B 22 4
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety
B S AR AR A B 2.3 measures adopted, how they are implemented and it Je B 47 4>
monitored
820 FIT B A9 1Y T S o B 4 S 1 it > DA S A B
11 R B 5Tk
BREMBEARL 0

ZEBE-NEFH
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
R S BB e R
(TR & s8] BRE i a RERBE IR E T RE
B Social
Cin
Aspect B3 Development and training
J& 1 B3 B N B

General disclosure

— P R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

A B B2 TR BB AT AR BB A A RE Y
o i 2l B SN E o

Training and
Development

B K g%

KPI B3.1
2] 5 4 30 FE 2B 3. 1

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.

ek B AR BB B 7 09 Z 3R B | A3 L

Training and
Development

B9 K 8%

KPI B3.2
B S 45 A0 FE 12 B 3.2

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
LRI 2 A B U 8 o3 1 44 1R B 5 2 Y
LTS

Training and
Development

9 K 9%

Aspect B4 Labour standards
& T B4 55 LHER

General disclosure

— P R

Information on:

A BB (-2 TR 55 TR

a) the policies; and

Bk s I

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
LS B AT A R B A RS A e
B &Rt

relating to prevention of child or forced labour.

Labour Standards
& T5rH|

KPI B4.1
] Gt U A6 1 B4 1

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour

i 22 A T A T 1 Y S it Dk A B T R O A 55
T

Labour Standards
% L7 I
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A 1 5 28 4 AR
(TR & s8] BRE | BRI E T RE
B Social
i
Aspect BS Supply chain management
J& T B5 A 8 o B

General disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social

Supply Chain

— B #E risks of the supply chain. Management
B P Y BR T B At R B B o A R o 4
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical regions Supply Chain
JBH S S AR AR BS . Fiz 3, [ 1 43 1) 1L R P O H Management
R o 4
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain
[BH] S R AL AR B BS .2 suppliers, how they are implemented and Management
monitored ik e g 457 3

i A T A v At > DA R B A G
17 R BTk

BEERREARASR
“B—hag® O/
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
R S BB e R
(TR & s8] BRE i a RERBE IR E T RE
B Social
Cin
Aspect B6 Product responsibility
J& I B6 FE i 3T

General disclosure

— P R

Information on:
7 4R 8 R B 2 i A
E YN EENCAYYIE BRI

HE

a) the policies; and

B s &

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
ST B B AT N E R B AR B e
i Bkt

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

Product Responsibility
FE i A

KPI B6.2
B S 45 A0 FE 12 B6.2

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

W A9 EE i B IR 5 A B 45 1) i DA I A
Mo

Product Responsibility
FE il AT

KPI B6.4
B S A5 AU FE 12 B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and
product recall procedures.

fil 2t it B R AR AR % o TR I o

Product Responsibility
FE i AT
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A 1 5 28 4 AR
(TR & s8] BRE | BRI E T RE
B Social
i
Aspect B7 Anti-Corruption
J& I B7 K&

General disclosure

— P R

Information on:

A7 TR 77 Lk B~ R~ TR R e R R A

a) the policies; and

R &

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
LT S B AT NI R R B AR B A R O
i) B A o

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

Anti-corruption
&5

B7.1
B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the year and the outcomes of the
cases.

T AF AT N BCH R B 32 3l B R A I B
EEAESGRIE SE RS R

Anti-corruption
&5

B7.2
B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.
fui ot By HE 15
Jiik e

i K SRR Y > LA BAR BR AT B B g%

Anti-corruption

&5

BRERRERIRAT
ZEBE-NEFH
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Key performance

indicators (“KPIs”) ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
(TR & s8] BRE i a RERBE IR E T RE
B Social
Cin
Aspect B8 Community investment
J& 1ii B8 5 £ E

General disclosure

— P R

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

DAAL [ 22 BRAR T B AT N i 7 AL [ 5 22N
il PR JHC S5 16 B 25 I8 AL IR M) 4 A BROOR

Community Investment

NI S <y

KPI B8.1
%] St 4 200 F5 2 BS. 1

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

R E RO (A BRI S TR
FE~Cfb-#8F) o

Community Investment

NI <y

KPI BS.2
B S 45 50 F5 2B 8.2

Resources reserved for the special category (e.g.
fund and time).

T T R P B R R (e B R )

Community Investment

NI § <y
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2016. He has been appointed as the
Chairman of the board, with effect from 14 June 2019. Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul obtained a Bachelor of Science from Columbia
University, New York, the United States of America in May, 1993.
Prior to joining the Group, he has worked in various international
investment banks and securities firms and is experienced in the
area of finance and investments. Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul is (i) a
cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Ho, an executive Director; and (ii) a cousin
of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lam Chun Kei (“Mr. Lam”), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 20 February 2014 and is the
authorised representative and process agent of the Company. He
is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam
holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the City University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management and previously worked in an international accounting
firm and listed groups.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (“Mr. Ng”), aged 35, was redesignated from
a non-executive Director to an executive Director with effect
from 3 July 2018. He is experienced in banking and finance, and
previously worked in various banks and financial institutions.
He is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Finance and Financial
Economics Degree from the University of New South Wales in
2008. Thereafter, Mr. Ng further completed his Master of Science
in Financial Mathematics Degree from the Cass Business School
of the City University in London in 2014. Mr. Ng is (i) a cousin
of Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, an executive Director; and (ii) the
younger brother of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFkaHERASHEN (18)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 33, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 13 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
the audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan has over 7 years of accounting
experience. He worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2010 to June 2015 and is a member of CPA Australia.
He obtained a Bachelor Degree in Business (Banking and Finance)
from the Queensland University of Technology in 2009. Mr. Chan
was an independent non-executive director of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8147) which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange from July 2017 to July 2018. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Huisheng
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1340) on 22 March
2019, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. On
9 January 2020, he was appointed as the company secretary of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8200), a company listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (“Mr. Yum”), aged 42, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 13 November 2017. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company and a member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee. Mr. Yum has
more than 9 years of management experience in the corporate
and financial industry. He has served as a director in several
financial institutions from 2008 to present. Currently, he serves
as a managing director of Ayasa Globo Financial Services
Limited, principally engaged in providing financial services and
as a director of Greenpro Trust Limited, a company principally
engaged in providing a full range of trust services. Mr. Yum
graduated with a Bachelor of Science in Finance degree from the
University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign in 2001.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREMH

Mr. Hung Kenneth (“Mr. Hung”), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 27 October
2014 and is a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee. He holds a degree of
Bachelor of Science awarded by Woodbury University in June
1995. Mr. Hung has extensive experience in the entertainment
industry. From March 2008 to September 2010, Mr. Hung
was the China business development director for Golden Sun
Films Distribution Ltd. From October 2010 to June 2012, Mr.
Hung was the chief operation officer for Top Action Culture
Development Co. Ltd. From July 2012 to October 2013. Mr. Hung
was the business development director for Star Alliance Movies
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung was the chairman of Sino Vision
from September 2016 to May 2017 and an executive director of
Sino Vision from May 2017 to November 2017. Mr. Hung was
an executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited) (Stock Code: 8081) from
February 2014 to August 2018, is an independent non-executive
director of IR Resources Limited (Stock Code: 8186), and has
been appointed as an executive director of Deson Construction
International Limited (Stock Code: 8286) on 29 July 2019, all of
which are companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (“Ms. Chan”), the company secretary of the
Company, joined the Group since August 2014. Ms. Chan holds
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accounting from Lingnan University in Hong Kong. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan has over ten years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management and previously
worked in international accounting firms before joining the
Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFkaHERASHEN (18)

Mr. Chan Chi Fung, the vice president and a director of China
Demeter Securities Limited, joined the Group since October 2016.
He has approximately 14 years of experiences in financial market.
He is responsible for managing day to day trading operation. He
worked in Win Fung Securities Limited from December 2013
to October 2016 and his last position with Win Fung Securities
Limited was a director and was responsible for managing day to
day trading operation. He is also a responsible officer recognised
by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2019
interim report of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

—  The Director’s fee of Mr. Lam Chun Kei has been adjusted to
HK$50,000 per month with effect from 1 February 2020.

—  Mr. Chan Hin Hang has been appointed as a company
secretary of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8200), shares of which is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance and to instituting procedures to ensure integrity,
transparency and quality of information disclosed thereby
enhancing the value of the Company for its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices and the corporate
governance principles of the Company are adopted in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles, code provisions and certain recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company has adopted and complied with the
code provisions (“Code Provision™) as set out in the CG code to
the GEM Listing Rules except for Code Provision A.2.1 in respect
of the role separation of chairman and chief executive officer as
explained below.

The Company aims to comply with all the Code Provision and
will review and update the current practices of the corporate
governance regularly in order to achieve the aims.

Code Provision A.2.1 requires the position of the chairman and
the chief executive officer be held separately by two individuals
to ensure their independence, separate accountability and
responsibilities. The chairman of the Company is responsible
for the overall leadership of the Company and for strategies and
planning of the Group. The chief executive officer is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business and
operations.

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul assumes the role of both the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions.
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Cogora‘te Governance Report (Continued)
PREGHS (88)

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and for overseeing the business of the Group. The
Board has delegated authority and responsibility to the senior
management for the day-to-day operations of the Group. Key
matters will remain as the responsibility of the Board whose
approval will be required. In addition, the Board has also
delegated responsibilities to various management committees.
Details of those committees are set out in this corporate
governance report.

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)
Mr. Lam Chun Kei
Mr. Ng Ting Ho

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Zhou Jing (resigned as non-executive Director
on 14 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Details of the members of the Board, including the relationship (if
any) between the Board members, are provided under the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Regort (Continued)
r

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors had
participated in continuous professional development with respect
to directors, duties, relevant programmes and seminars or had
perused reading materials and updated information in relation to
business and industrial development. The Directors had provided
the relevant training records to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to
time to ensure that he is fully aware of his roles, functions, duties
and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements and the governance policies of
the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has
met the requirements of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial management
expertise.

Independent non-executive Directors are required to give an
annual confirmation of their independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. This practice has
been observed and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

For further details of the terms of appointment of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors,
please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Directors
and Directors’ service contracts” of this annual report.
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Cogora‘te Governance Report (Continued)
EREBHRS ()

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
MEETINGS

19 Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2019. The Directors use their best endeavour to ensure that for
all Board meetings to be held, Board minutes are kept by the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
and be open for inspection by the Directors. Every Director is
entitled to have access to the board papers and related materials
and have unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, and have the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the
general meetings are as follows (the date of change mentioned
below related to the change of the Directors):

Names of Directors HwHHEES
Executive Directors: AT
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul Rk

7y

Mr. Lam Chun Kei N CE Y

Mr. Ng Ting Ho RE AL
Non-executive Director: FEPITES:

Mr. Zhou Jing (resigned on 14 June 2019)

104 H &)
Independent non-executive Directors: R SRR
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BRATAT SRR
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (5% P
Mr. Hung Kenneth BB R E
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Corporate Governance Regort (Continued)
r

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011, written terms of reference were adopted in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The main functions of the Audit
Committee of the Board is to recommend to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors;
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors as well as any questions of resignation or
dismissal of such auditors; to review the quarterly, interim and
annual reports and accounts of the Group; and to oversee the
Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control procedures.

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hin Hang (chairman
of the committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr. Hung
Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings. The Audit Committee has reviewed the final
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and also the
quarterly and interim results during the year ended 31 December
2019.

The members and attendance of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members

FERZHEERBELA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang

BRATAT ok

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Ese&E et

Mr. Hung Kenneth
R B AE
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Cogora‘te Governance Report (Continued)
PREGHS (88)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee of the Board was established on
26 October 2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee of the Board, with the majority of its members being
independent non-executive Directors, is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee has to consult
the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company
on their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee may seek independent
professional advice as it considers necessary in respect of its
function.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Hin Hang
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and
Mr. Hung Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting. It reviewed the remuneration policy of
the Company, assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and senior management and recommended specific remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management to the Board
with reference to the level of responsibilities of the individual
Director, the scope of operation of the Group as well as the
prevailing market conditions.
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The members and attendance of the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members

B Z B & B ik

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
BRATAT ok

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Ese&E et

Mr. Kenneth Hung
R BSEE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee of the Board was established on 26
October 2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identifying suitable candidates
for directorship, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed appointment and re-appointment.

Ei6HS (88)
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The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chan Hin Hang and Mr. Hung
Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee of the Board held 1 meeting and has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

The members and attendance of the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

RHZBARAERA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang

R ATAT So

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien

(BT it

Mr. Hung Kenneth
R B A
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of senior management (comprising
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and senior
management) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
by band is as follows:

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
e 5T 2 H51,000,000T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
H#E 1,000,001 70 £ # %1,500,00070

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
H#E 51,500,001 70 £ # %2,000,00070

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000
# #52.000,0007C £ # 2,500,000 7T

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

2GS (8§)
206 % 5 4 B
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board.

In order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance
and ensures that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Company will also take into account
its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
forming its perspectives on the Board diversity. The Company will
endeavour to ensure that the diversity of Board is achieved and
appointments of Directors are in the best interest of the Company
and its shareholders.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to be appointed to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments will be based a range of
objective factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, skills and professional
experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
identifying suitable qualified candidates to become members of
the Board. In assessing potential candidates of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the
diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and
propose any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as it
thinks fit, and recommend any such amendments to the Board for
consideration and approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition taking into
account the diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy are summarised as follows:

Ei6HE (8

it M B

RAZEGFHATYOEEN G ER
RIENRBEFGNE - R ERE
BB A ZBEMN AT EE
EFFZUILBORTEm Z uib R -

RAZ B G AREREF G2 uiLE
UL IR AL RE - IR A Z B @0 & &)
iy e R H R A S MMM EFE G LT
L BUR Z BT > Slf 14 26 3 & $2 AR B 1B
ATk L A -

A A > R 3 2 & A BOR B
W G 2 AR 2 oAk R A
T

Board diversity perspective

EHFZUHE

Designation Executive Director
Tk A8t HATER
Age Group
% AL A

Length of Service (year)

W3 (4F)

Professional experience Management Finance Multi-media
B IEKER Ha A Z i
Educational Background Science Accomltancy
BEH R oL it
| J
0 1 2 3 4 5 6
Number of directors
#HHEYH
NOMINATION POLICY & 4 BUR

The nomination policy has been adopted by the Board with
effect from 1 January 2019. Any subsequent amendment of
the nomination policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee and approved by the Board.
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General Provisions

1.1

1.2

The Nomination Committee has formulated a
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
to standardise and enhance transparency for the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors, in order
to ensure that the Board shall have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall be responsible for
reviewing the Nomination Policy and disclosing the
same in the corporate governance report to ensure
full compliance with the CG Code, the GEM Listing
Rules, the Bye-laws of the Company and other relevant
provisions.

Selection criteria for nominating a Director

2.1

The selection criteria for assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate as a Director which shall be taken
as reference by the Nomination Committee are listed
below:

(a) integrity and reputation;

(b)

skill, accomplishment and experience relevant to
the Company’s business;

(c) commitment in respect of available time;

(d)

existing and potential conflicts of interest;

(e) diversity of the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience of the Directors;
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(f) not being prohibited by law from being a Director;
and

(g) any other factors as the Nomination Committee
may deem fit to consider in the best interests of
the shareholders of the Company.

The above selection criteria are not exhaustive nor
conclusive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers
appropriate.

3. Procedures for nomination of a Director

Sl

3.2

Any Director may nominate a candidate for
appointment, election or re-election as a Director by
the Board or at a general meeting. Upon obtaining the
required information from the candidate as listed above,
the Nomination Committee shall evaluate whether such
candidate is qualified to be appointed, elected or re-
elected into the Board based on the criteria as set out
above and the relevant GEM Listing Rules and the
policies of the Company.

The Nominate Committee shall convene a meeting
to discuss and consider the recommendation of the
candidate to the Board for appointment, election or re-
election as a Director.

Please refer to the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights —

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election

as a Director” of this report for procedures for shareholders’

nomination of any proposed candidate for election as a Director.

2.2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Directors are responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, make
recommendations to the Board, review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. Also, the Directors are responsible for
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and its
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report and
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance practices and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements including compliance with the CG Code
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Summary

The Company and the Group have engaged a consultant to conduct
a review on the Group’s internal control environment and report
to the Audit Committee and management for the purpose of
evaluation of the documentation, effectiveness and efficiencies
of the control of the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019. The Board
has conducted a review of the internal control system and the
effectiveness of it operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2019, including financial,
operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. That will ensure that the Directors will oversee and
monitor the Group’s overall financial position so that the interests
of the shareholders are well protected and covered. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering the
reviews performed by the consultant. The Board and the Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal
control system are effective and adequate during the year. The
Company complies with the code provisions relating to internal
control contained in the CG Code.
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Risk Management Philosophy

Risk taking is a necessary and accepted part of the Company’s
business. Effectively managing risk is a competitive necessity
and an integral part of creating shareholder value through good
business practices designed to ensure that the Company achieves
its strategic, business and governance objectives, and protects its
corporate reputation, values and integrity.

Risk management applies to all aspects of the Company’s business
and forms a critical part of developing strategic plans, preparing
operational plans and budgets, completing detailed project
approval requests and designing and managing project plans.

Risk Management Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the oversight
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
reviewing and assessing the major risks facing the Company and
reviewing, approving and monitoring the Company’s approach to
addressing such risks annually.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management systems and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee oversees the risk management process and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
by conducting the following procedures:

. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

. discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have an effective systems; this discussion should

Jo g A BB

JeR\ B R B A R SE I S A B L R]
e o A R B B R AE R B
IR 175 e B e e SR A PR AR
] BB g LR E R RS
A R (E SR - B TR A B R
{EL PR A AT 3 a5kt 38 4

JeEL o A LT8R B A N ] SRS Y BT AR 5 T
I i A2 B ) AR A S & TE
B~ 5 R 8 TH L E A E B
HLTH R # B 2 B A —

Jo g B A

EHEGWR A HEE AN R E R E
&W%Wf%mniﬁﬁ§#%%M&
R o w455 AR AR T R R OR RE R B
A 0 3 B > T P B e e By o 14 FT 2
A K S i R At AR O B AR B
AR o

EREGARARTRL B e AT
AN Y 3 B A o Sl AR A A M B
AN ) i PR 2 5 A B 84 07 0

FREZAGARRBREHEEEEAL
1 B 5 R R R A Ja B R B R A A
RS - R Z B EBR T IIEF
S o LU R X b e B B
S B P AR A I BB

o WBEIAARMMBELERS KK
T LY R g R 2 B e e E
S BT BA > B RIIR B AR R AR 4 A
) JaRL B A8 B K A S B HE AR A

o BRI w L B R R R A S B 4
A& HERERECEITMEE Y
AR R KL AR A A R

BRERREERAT
—s—nexm 79



Cogorate Governance Report (Continued)
Tk

80

Bi6¥HS (8)

include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to
these findings;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent investigation of these matters
and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

conducting exit interviews with any director, manager,
financial controller or internal credit control manager upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure;

preparing work reports for presentation to the Board and
to prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the
Group’s interim and annual reports;
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. considering the appointment of any person to be a committee
member, auditors and accounting staff either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional committee member, auditors and
accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

. reporting to the Board on the matters set out in paragraphs
C.3.1 to C.3.7 of the CG Code; and

. considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

Inside Information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the Shares or their
trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors also may
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by
the Board from time to time.

Risk Management and Internal Control Process

During 2019, the Company engaged a consultant who conducted
an interview with key personnel and senior management of
the Group, reviewed the internal control manual and related
documents and performed site visit to observe the daily operation
to understand the Company’s risk management and internal
control system. The findings on internal control and enterprise risk
management were summarised and was distributed to the Audit
Committee for its review. The Audit Committee concluded that
the Company had in place effective and adequate risk management
and internal control systems. The Company has ensured that the
risk management and internal control provisions under the CG
Code have been complied with. The Board, has confirmed that the
adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications and experiences
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions
during its annual review on the risk management and internal
control systems.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based
on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk will occur; and
(iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks
as follows:

. Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate
the risk entirely.

. Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
the severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

. Risk retention — senior management may decide that the
risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for the
Company and that no action is required. The risk would
continue to be monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks
as follows:

(1) Credit risk management

For loans granted by the Group, the Credit Committee will
hold meetings on a monthly basis to review the repayment
record of the loan interests and loan principals. The Credit
Committee will assess the credit quality of the outstanding
loan portfolio and see if provision needs to be made for non-
performing loans.

The Credit Committee will regularly report to the Board
relating to the repayment record of the loan interests and
loan principals in the loan portfolio, its components and
other matters, which need to be bought to the attention of the
Board.
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Given that the targeted customers of the Group’s money
lending business are well-heeled and reputational individuals
and well-established companies, in the case of provision
of short-term loans for the purpose of short-term financing
for personal/business needs, the Group will generally
not require collateral as it may not be viable for such
customers to provide collaterals and thus requiring such
would only deter them. Moreover, for short-term loans, the
creation and release of collaterals would create unnecessary
administrative cost to the Group. Nevertheless, the Group
would apply the established credit approval policy and
process to assess each and every potential customer such
that, the Group would only approve any loans on the
condition that the Group is of the view that any provision
of loan will not constitute a high credit risk and the Group
would usually require customers to provide signed and post-
dated bank cheques with payments in accordance with tailor
made repayment schedules.

We are exposed to credit risks during the course of our
business in providing financing services to our customers for
trading on a margin basis.

The credit assessment of a customer is performed during
account opening through enquiry and collection of
information so as to verify the customer’s net worth and
income, and evaluate their risk profile by understanding their
financial condition, investment preferences and investment
experience. We did not independently obtain credit
information from third parties (such as any credit reports
on our customers) during our credit assessment process.
However, given that (i) our financing service are provided
with listed securities pledged as collaterals; (ii) margin ratio
is assigned for each individual securities; (iii) marginable
amount of each of our customer is determined based on
(a) the market value of securities held under the securities
trading account; and (b) the margin ratio for each securities;
and (iv) our margin call policy and trading limit set for each
securities trading account would limit the maximum loss
due to customer’s default, our Directors consider that our
credit assessment procedures are appropriate and sufficient
to manage our credit risk.
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Business and operational risk management

The Credit Committee is responsible for the assessment of
the business and operational risks and implementation of
credit policies. Monthly meetings are held among Credit
Committee members and regular meetings are held between
the Credit Committee and the Board to review the operating

activities of the money lending business.

We have established internal reporting procedures to report
any suspected case (including but not limited to employee
misconduct and fraud). We have formulated credit policies
and operational procedures (which are continuously
updated), and implemented initiatives which include:

—  segregating duties between credit assessment, loan
file reviews and loan approval to establish checks and
balances in the loan approval processes;

—  checking and recalculating loan repayment schedules
upon loan settlement to ascertain the accuracy of
interests charged in accordance with the stated effective
interest rates;

— adopting staff handbook which documented our
requirements on employees’ code of conduct and
contained reporting policy as a procedure guideline for

staff to report fraud or suspicious fraud case, if any;

— adopting information security guidelines to prevent
unauthorised access to our information system and
to reduce the operational risk caused by failures of
information technology systems by maintaining backup
data for the key data processing systems; and

- strengthening our anti-money laundering monitoring
efforts via verification of identity, record keeping,
recognition of suspicious transactions, reporting of
suspicious transactions and staff education and training.
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Liquidity risk management

The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. Specifically, in
conducting the money lending business, our management
will monitor our Group’s cash inflow and outflow on a
weekly basis to ensure the accuracy of cash collection
and deployment and that there is no shortfall in cash
which may interrupt our Group’s business. The Group will
maintain sufficient cash buffer to meet the working capital
requirement and liquidity needs for our business operations
in the coming months. The Group’s major liquidity needs
mainly include the settlement of operating expenses such
as office rental and employees’ remuneration. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not experienced
any shortfall in cash for meeting the above liquidity needs.

We are required to maintain at all times the liquid capital
which is not less than the minimum requirement as set out
under the financial resources rules and financial return (the
“FRR”). Our accounts department is responsible for the
preparation of the financial returns and the computation of
liquid capital in accordance with the requirements under
the FRR. The monthly financial returns are submitted to
our responsible officers for review and approval before
submission to the Securities and Future Commission (the
“SFC”) no later than three weeks after each calendar month.
Our accounts department also conducts the liquid capital
computation on a daily basis which is reviewed by our
responsible officers to ensure that we are able to comply with
the FRR requirement on an ongoing basis.

During 2019, our Group did not have any material non-
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement as
set out by the SFC.

&)

Ei6HS (88)

o ) 1 I B P

A B2 1 © 5% S8 1Y TR B M JE B
FRAEZE > DAYR A2 A 42 400~ o
B4 0 1A 4 7 SR LA 7 B8 1 A L
oK o AN 4 Y B % E ) B K
IR e TE 31 I B ' < % oK - R OR FLA
5 70 R B 4 Al T 2 L I I =
B B e oK o HLB T AR BH
JE AR S ey > A B I A 2 B ¢
A 45 [ B9 B 4B A B o AR A B
4 ST R L ) VEE o i R SIE
HH B P A SR I SE S B R B R
Bk o A £ [ 51 B A7 T 00 WO B 4 8% Al
S DA L R A S A A B S s
MEEEEFRKULRDESS
RoAREEMEZRE E TR ER
LG A5 AT B B S A EH &
KEEHM -HE _F—E+Z
H="1—H1L45 > AL E I
BT ] B < L o TR 06 325 T 2 b At 3
BHEEFTK-

A" 2B A7E AT o] 15 A0 A 155 R DR AR
452 B B ROA ) A0 B B R (T B
B IR AR B0 Ao B 5 IE] e ) P B e
A foc (K 2R LB & & o M &
S 1 2 TR 40 B IR AR R A S
17 S8 14 25K i S5 B 5 k3 A 5 O
BEE 5 H MBIRRENER S
A28 A =18 28N 25T M
BN B FEEAAELR - IR A E
FhMEHREEEZEY ([EE
1) o WM EFE M IR HAELT
MBI EEFH > WhRMAEA
BEAT A A > LA PR B AM BE A0 15 4
LT O I AR B R B S [ S 4 R
E

[

A ZF— U > A SR I AT AT B
KA G i o8 e R 8 & &
ZORAIE DL

BREMBERIRA G
ZEBE-NEFH

85



Cogorate Governance Report (Continued)
Tk

4)

86

Bi6¥HS (8)

Legal and regulatory risk management

The credit approval policy and process as described in the
paragraph headed “Credit policy and loan approval process”
above has been designed to ensure that the Group’s money
lending business operates in accordance with the Money
Lenders Ordinance and applicable laws.

The Credit Committee has adopted suitable documentation
and procedures in the application and assessment process to
calculate the effective interest rate of all loan applications
and ensure that the procedures are in compliance with the
Money Lenders Ordinance. The Credit Committee and the
Board will, from time to time, review such documentation
and procedures to ensure the documentation and procedures
to be in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Depending on the nature of food and beverage business of
the Group, the following are the principal types of licences
that may be required for the operation of our restaurants in
Hong Kong:

(a) Food business licence, including restaurant licence for
restaurant operation, restricted food permits for sales of
live fish, shell fish, sashimi and oysters to be eaten in a
raw state, and food safety licence for food importation
and distribution which are required to be obtained
before commencement of the relevant food business
operation: and

(b) Liquor licence, which is to be obtained before
commencement of sale of liquor in the restaurant
premises.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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We are required to obtain certain licences in relation to
our restaurant operations in Hong Kong. We have obtained
all relevant licenses and permits that are material to our
operation in Hong Kong. Our consultant keeps track of
the expiry dates of relevant licences and timely applies for
renewal. Our restaurants will only commence operations
after obtaining or renewing the relevant licences and/or
permits. During the year, we had not been involved in any
unsettled safety and licensing related violations, the outcome
of which we believed might materially and adversely affect
our business, operation and financial position.

On the operational level, the Group has complied with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the guidelines recommended by the
Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data when
collecting and processing data from students. The Group has
also paid attention to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528
of the Laws of Hong Kong) when preparing and delivering
teaching materials. Besides, the Group has complied with
the Education Ordinance (Chapter 279 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) in application of applicable certificates for
running school, the Child Care Services Ordinance (Chapter
243 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in application certificate
for running child care centre and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
preparation and publication of advertisements.

On the human resources level, the Group has abided by the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), equal opportunity legislations
(including Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
to safeguard the health, safety, interests and benefits of the
Group’s employees.

Other details of the Group’s compliance with relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividend (the
“Dividend Policy”) in compliance with Code Provision E.1.5 of
the CG Code, with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and
payment of dividends by the Company is subject to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including the laws of
Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company.

Dividends may be paid out by way of cash or by other means that
the Directors consider appropriate. Declaration and payment of
any dividends would require the recommendation of the Board
and will be at its discretion. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the shareholders.
A decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and
the amount and rates of such dividends, will be subject to, among
other things, the Group’s results of operations, cash flow, financial
conditions, operating and capital requirements and other factors
which the Directors consider important.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group
to the shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, including quarterly, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. Such published documents together
with the corporate information of the Group are also available on
the Company’s website (http://www.chinademeter.com).

The shareholders’ meeting provides a useful channel for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board which
the Directors are available to answer questions related to the
Company’s affairs.
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The procedures to elect Directors were uploaded to the Company’s
website (http://www.chinademeter.com).

The latest version of the Company’s Bye-laws can be downloaded
from the website of the Company or the Stock Exchange website.

The Company will continue to improve the communication with
investors and to provide them more opportunities to understand
the business of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount of fees in

respect of audit services and non-audit services paid/payable to
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate was set out below:

Services rendered B 42 HE AR B
Audit services 1% B 5
Non-audit services IE % B B
Total st

Ei6HS (88)

iR SO T A A B A NN

(http://www.chinademeter.com) °

A% % ] B T RS A0 R 7 % 70 48 i
2 9 48 3

ARG S BB E 2w B
BEERMED THA LR R K

o
A% B T T <5

BE_F-NLEF+_A=+—HILF
> BT AT R U € St S5 T
A R ) B R W 7 8 R 22 A% R
A% B B S BB

2019 2018
—EE —FTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWHTH BT

900 890
54 i
954 890

AReNEEaRAT
—s—nexs 99



Cogorate Governance Report (Continued)
Tk

Bi6¥HS (8)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company Secretary complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company can convene a special general meeting by
depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring the convening of the special
general meeting. The written requisition shall be deposited to
the Company’s office at Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the Board

The Company is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of
disclosing clear, adequate and relevant information to Shareholders
in a timely manner through various channels. The Company has
complied with the GEM Listing Rules by posting announcements,
notices, quarterly, interim and annual reports as well as
shareholders’ circulars on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company (http://www.chinademeter.com).

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company
for any enquiries in relation to the Group, or for putting forward
any proposals at a shareholders’ meeting:

Address: Unit 1002, 10/F,

China Insurance Group Building,

141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong

(852) 2116 1218

(852) 2151 1872

The Board of Directors/

The Company Secretary

Telephone no.:
Fax no.:
Attention:

90 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws
and applicable legislation and regulations.

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of
Director(s), wishes to propose a person (other than the member
himself/herself) for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she/it
can deposit a written notice to the following address:

Head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong

Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

In order for the Company to inform all shareholders of that
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, his/her biographical details
as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, and be
signed by the shareholder concerned together with a written notice
of the person proposed for election as a Director indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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Save as the procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene a general meeting as set out above, there are no
other provisions allowing shareholders of the Company to put
forward proposals at the general meeting under the Bye-laws
of the Company or under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
Shareholders of the Company may follow the procedures set
out above to convene a special general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition. The written requisition must
state the resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution, signed by all the shareholders concerned. The
written requisition shall be deposited at Unit 1002, 10/F, China
Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong, the head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in the
preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements to
shareholders, the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, cleared
and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
its current position and future prospects. The respective
responsibilities of the Directors and auditors of the Company in
respect of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out in the independent auditors’ report on pages 109 to 118
of this annual report.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as discussed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report, which forms part of this
Directors’ report, there were no significant changes in the nature
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activities
and geographical locations of operations for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and financial position of the Group as at the year
end date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 119 to 122 of the annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$Nil).
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Directors’ Re?oit (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this Directors’ report as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The discussion on a fair review of
the Group’s business, financial key performance indicators and
performance and indication of future development of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report. A discussion of Group’s
relationships with its key stakeholders, and environmental
policies and performance is contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report. These discussions form part of this Director’s report.

Key risks and its management

The Group is principally engaged in (i) feedstock products
business; (ii) money lending business; (iii) financial services
business; (iv) securities investment business; (v) food and
beverage business; (vi) alcoholic beverage distribution business;
and (vii) provision of children education services.

Key risks
(1) Reliance on key personnel

The effective operations and future success of the Group’s
business are depending, to a significant extent, on the
capability, experience and continued efforts of our key
management personnel. If the Group is unable to attract,
retain and motivate the necessary key management
personnel, the business and operation conditions of the
Group may be disrupted and the results and financial
positions of the Group may be materially or adversely
affected.

(2) Reliance on close relationship with the Group’s
customers

The success of the Group relies heavily on good relationship
with its customers. If the Group fails to maintain the current
level of business relationship with its customers and retain
them in its sales and distribution network, the sales, financial
condition and operating results of the Group may be
adversely affected.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

(3) Risks relating to the feedstock products business

(a)

(®)

©,

Change in requirements for feedstock products

The success of Group’s feedstock products business
depends on, to a large extent, the formulae and the
quality products that appeal to the mass market.
However, regulations relating to the ingredients of
feedstock products may change over time. If the Group
is unable to source or unable to successfully develop
products according to the changes in regulations or
customers’ preference, the demand for the feedstock
products of the Group may decrease.

Dependence of the Group’s revenue on the PRC market

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is
currently the Group’s key market for its products under
the Group’s feedstock products business. There is no
assurance that the PRC domestic market gap between
supply and demand in the industry and the local
demand for the Group’s products will sustain. In the
event that local or domestic demand for the Group’s
feedstock products decreases and the Group is not able
to expand its business to other markets, the Group’s
business, financial condition and results operations may
be adversely affected.

Potential adverse impacts of events on raw materials

Potential adverse impact of the unfavourable weather
conditions and natural and man-made disasters on
the raw materials of the Group’s feedstock products
agricultural products such as corn, bran meal, soybean
meal and wheat bran are the major raw material
components of the Group’s feedstock products. The
harvest of such agricultural products may be adversely
affected by natural disasters including, but not limited
to, drought, floods, prolonged periods of rainfall,
hailstorm, windstorms, typhoons and hurricanes, fire,
diseases, landslides, insect infestation, pests, volcanic
eruption or earthquakes, as well as man-made disasters
such as environmental pollution, arson, accidents, civil
unrest or acts of terrorism. The occurrence of any of
natural or man-made disasters may diminish the supply
of raw materials used for the production of the Group’s
feedstock and thus may result in a significant increase
of the Group’s cost and has an adverse affect on the
Group’s profitability.
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Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)

EFWE

4)

5

96
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Risks relating to the money lending business

The money lending business of the Group is exposed to
default from the Group’s customers, which involves the risk
of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of customers
to meet their contractual obligations. If the customers of
the money lending business of the Group fail to meet their
contractual obligations, the Company may incur additional
costs to collect the loan principal and corresponding
interests. To mitigate this risk, the board of Directors (the
“Board”) has set up the Credit Committee with relevant
experience of this business segment and report to the board
of the Company directly. The Credit Committee has full
authority to deal with all credit matters. The members of
the Credit Committee are appointed by the Board and the
quorum of the Credit Committee is at least two committee
members. The credit policy of the Group’s money lending
business is subject to the review and amendments by the
Credit Committee and the Board from time to time in line
with changes in market environment.

Risk relating to the financial services business

The financial services business of the Group is subject to
the performance of the Hong Kong securities market and
the performances of the Group’s competitors which are
beyond its control and the Group cannot assure that our
historical level of income can be sustained. In addition, non-
compliance with extensive regulatory requirements could
cause the Group to incur fines, restriction on financial
service activities or even suspension or revocation of some
or all of the licences for carrying on the Group’s business

activities.
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(6)

Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

Also the Group’s brokerage services involved active

interactions between its staff and customers and therefore

it is subject to human errors, which the Group has to bear

the losses resulting therefrom. For placing and underwriting

business, the Group exposed to business risks in case the

securities underwritten by the Group are undersubscribed or

the placing exercises are failed to complete.

Risk relating to the food and beverage business

(a)

()

Uncertainties on obtaining or renewing the licences and
permits for the Group’s operations

The Group is required to obtain and maintain various
type of licences, including (i) general licences and (ii)
liquor licence and other approvals or permits, including
restricted food permits for its restaurants operation
in Hong Kong. Most of the requisite licences are
usually valid for one to two years and the licences are
required to be renewed before their expiry to comply
with the relevant requirements and ensure that business
operation can be continued without any disruption.

The Group may experience difficulties or failures in
obtaining or renewing the necessary approvals, licences
and permit for new restaurants in a timely manner or at
all for factors beyond its control.

Rely on individual to hold all the liquor licences of
restaurants

All of the liquor licences of the Group’s restaurants
were held by individuals.

(6)

£8HS ()

e A > A 4R ] A 8 A0 IR 5 00 B A 4R
BB TAES Z R R 3% L8
PR MG T R BN B R AR
W AR I o U A YRR o B T
B 0B 8 S s > A 4R Bt BT R B 1Y
it 7 R 2w B 9 B R BE 52 A
17T 75 7 4f8 S 5 JL gk -

G 1 B i Je B 5 5 1 I B

(8) HRIG 2R AT A P i Y
LI T T 9 S T E 1

A% 45 ] A T A S 4R B JH B
3l 5 A 45 A AR L3S ()
A R R K (i) T R S L At o
SCRT AT AR (ELFE R & AT
B ) o KA T MR A Rk
WME B — 2 MF > AEBHAE
TE JiE o A B A R S R IR DA
T AH B S A5 R B e AR R AF BT
A 78 KR8 SE TS T AN B2 AT Ao o
@ﬁo

A A T e R 05 4 o 9 (R R
D) B i R R L A AR A
5 J R RS B A T R Y
T ~ R BR K R AT o

(b) KI5 REE sl
)i

A 4 T B T )9S e 4% b {1
1PN S I

AReNEEaRAT
—s—neaem 97



Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)

(7)

98

EFHE (18)

Pursuant to Regulation 15 of the Dutiable Commodities
(Liquor) Regulations (Chapter 109B of the Laws of
Hong Kong), any transfer of a liquor licence must be
conducted in the prescribed form with the consent of
the liquor licence holder. In case of illness or temporary
absence of the liquor licence holder, the secretary of
the Liquor Licensing Board may in his/her discretion
authorize any person to manage the licenced premises
under Regulation 24 of the Dutiable Commodities
(Liquor) Regulations, upon application by the liquor
Licence holder. For any application for cancellation
of the liquor licence made by the holder of liquor
licence, one must make an application for new issue of
a liquor licence to the Liquor Licensing Board. In case
of death or insolvency of the liquor license holder, his/
her executor or administrator or trustee may carry on
the business in the licence premises until the expiration
of the licence under section 54 of the Dutiable
Commodities Ordinance.

If the relevant liquor licence holder in each of the
Group’s restaurants refuses to give consent to a transfer
application when a transfer is required, or fails to make
an application in respect of his/her illness or temporary
absence or makes a cancellation application without
consent, or if an application for new issue of a liquor
licence is required in case of death or insolvency of the
relevant employee, the relevant restaurant may have to
cease it sale of liquor for the time being, in which case
may adversely affect its business and profitability.

Major financial risk exposed to the Group

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit,
interest rate, liquidity and other price risks. The Group
actively and regularly reviews these risks and will adopt
measures, if needed, to control and mitigate these risks.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

(8) Difficulties in recruitment and retention of the Group’s
employees

The success of the Group depends in apart upon the Group’s
ability to attract, retain and motivate a sufficient number
of qualified employees, including teacher, restaurant staff,
chefs and kitchen staff. Highly service-oriented and qualified
individuals are in relatively short supply in Hong Kong and
competition for these employees is intense. Any failure to
employ and retain enough qualified employees could delay
planned new restaurant openings, cause untenable teacher-
to-pupil ratio to meet the statutory requirement or result
in higher employee turnover, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business and results of
operations. In addition, competition for qualified employees
could also require the Group to pay higher wages, which
could result in higher labour cost.

For a discussion of how the Group would tackle with the
management of the material risks, please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Internal Control and Risk Management” in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the Group
shall comply with different laws and regulations, further details
of which are discussed in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report, the discussion of which forms part of this Directors’
report. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was in
compliance with these said laws and regulations.
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Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and
events that have taken place during the year under review are
incorporated under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-years
Financial Summary” of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had eleven
management agreements with Global Food Culture Group Limited
(“GFC”), an independent third party of the Company, dated
16 July 2018, 16 October 2018, 1 February 2019, 16 February
2019, 18 February 2019, 1 June 2019, 3 October 2019 and 25
October 2019 respectively in relation to the provision of day-to-
day operation, direction, management and supervision services
by GFC to certain restaurants of the food and beverage business
of the Group, for an initial term from 13 months to 39 months
respectively, subject to compliance with the relevant requirement
under the GEM Listing Rules and termination at any time with 90
days prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, there are no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the group were entered into or existed
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements during the year in the reserves and reserves
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders of the
Group and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the annual report and in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sales amount to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 12%
of the total sales amount of the Group, whilst the largest customer
of the Group accounted for approximately 2.9% of the total sales
amount of the Group. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 66.9% of the total purchases amount of
the Group, whilst the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 41.5% of the total purchases amount of the Group.

£8HS ()

BHEH

BE_FZ—NHFET_HA=Z+—HIF
B o A 45 B B AR N 5 M 57 2R = 5 BRER AR
BLEEARAF ([BRERK R XLE
8 ]) EFTS B Al E —F— )\4EL H
+ARNH-ZF—NE+H+TSNHZF
—NLFE_H—H ZF—NFE_H+~
H—F—NFE_HA+NHB - _F—J
ERNA—H ZF—JUFE+HA=ZH K
FE—4E+TH - +HHBE 211048 B
o INA A B B 3R BRI R oAk 4E 1# 43 F
Ti) A< 4 B £ i B fORESEHS 1 45 T4 R AR
ftH W 5 B R RIS > %
S5 KW B RN3ME A 239 A >
JE 5 SF GEM I Ti7 83 R AH BE R 2 - 3 AT R
IR 400 408 $ HTO0 K %% 48 0 7 DAL Ik -

B b SCHT 4 8 & A1 > A SR R 4 A Sl 48
ﬁjﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁg #8 B AT AT K
Oy B AT BN & A

fii i

B BAS S B AR BE R 2 e s B RS
O G A A S R I k44 o

A7 67 A 52 11 T AR 4 JBE T 2 f A 5 8 e 1
WIRAFRZ ARG R B K -

A% 2 W) W] g3 Uk Gk i

TAE N > AL [ Je AN 7] 2 fb i BT A
IR T AR S F R 2 et it 2 S B R
AR 45 B 25 S B 3 M AR B B
2% bt 5144 -

EEMERRE P

WEE-_F—NLFE+_HA=Z+—HI4F
BE s mAREE B REF 2 885G A%
B AR B AR AT 12% > T 1) AS 4R B e K &
F 2z agErmIE AL EAHERHELA29% -
] A 4 8] K {3t JE P 2 B I AR AL AN 4R
8] 48 5 I %H66.9% > T [a] 4 48 8] fz K it
JE P 2 4 B AR AL A SR 2 MR BE R A
41.5% o

AReNEEaRAT
—s—nzes 101



Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of
their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
Mr. Lam Chun Kei
Mr. Ng Ting Ho

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Zhou Jing (resigned on 14 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Mr. Zhou Jing (“Mr. Zhou”) has resigned as non-executive
Director effective from 14 June 2019. Following his resignation,
he ceased to be the chairman of the Board on the same date. Mr.
Zhou has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board
and there is no matter relating to his resignation or other matter
that shall be brought to the attention Shareholders.

Biographical information of Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and compliance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Lam Chun
Kei and Mr. Chan Hin Hang will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
31 August 2019. The appointment will be terminable by three
months prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Lam Chun Kei has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
16 October 2019. The appointment will be terminable by three
month’s prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 3 July
2019. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
13 November 2019. The appointment will be terminable by one
month’s prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a fixed term of one year
commencing from 13 November 2019. The appointment will be
terminable by one month’s prior written notice given by either
side.

Mr. Hung Kenneth has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 27
October 2019. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 to
indemnify the Directors and officers for their liabilities arising
from their lawful discharge of duties. The insurance coverage and

premium is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that the Directors for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and every one of them shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices; provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or a connected entity of a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long Positions

The Company

Name of Director Capacity

HEHEA b

Ng Man Chun Paul Beneficial Owner

R’ Ha A A
Ng Ting Ho Beneficial Owner
S IE T A A
Note:

The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2019, that is 153,029,515.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2019 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARE OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option

Schemes” and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following persons/entities, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had notified the Company at
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company:

Long Positions

Name of Shareholder Capacity

BesRIEA A 5ty

Mr. Ng Ting Kit Beneficial owner

REH AL Haa A
Notes:
1. The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the

number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2019, that is
153,029,515.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2019.
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Directors’ R%ort (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company, China Demeter
Securities Limited, received commission income and interest
income from Directors, a substantial shareholder, a director of
a subsidiary, associates of connected persons of the Company
and companies which directors of such companies are also a
substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of the
subsidiary. Such related party transactions fall under the definition
of “connected transactions” pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Particulars of such related party transactions are
disclosed in note 43(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of business, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Lam Chun Kei, an executive Director, is a shareholder and
director of a company incorporated under the laws of Singapore
whose principal business is operating food and beverage business
in Singapore, which may compete with the Group’s food and
beverage business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had any business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Re?ort (Continued)
E2E8HE ()

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted and committed to the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules and has prepared the corporate governance
report, which is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of the annual report.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$135,000.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint the auditor, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

@ pakertilly
R [ PR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA DEMETER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 119 to 297, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
ﬂﬁuﬂfﬁﬂWﬁEn(ﬁa)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS PH 88 25 B 5 JH

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 28] G % A% 25 TE 5 AR 8 TR AP 1Y) B S H B
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the P A A4 S MR R S
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These T 25 TH o FRAM R B A% B 4 A A S
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 25 i o A S 0 R IR B R > T AS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our et SR EE RS REE R

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

I3RS 7 A% o JH F A Y 7 A% 4 Ay i B B B A A% T OH

Impairment of loans and interest receivables

W B 5k e AU it {EE

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 4 Our audit procedures included:

and the disclosures of loans and interest receivables in A" 1Y FFAZ 2 /7 G 45 -

Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

2 B 456 A B R T SR 4 R A HEE B R ) £ B2k — We understood, evaluated and validated the key

T B 5268 i B 3K B R S 4 % o controls over impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables, which relates to management’s

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”) identification of events that triggered the provision
requires the application of significant judgement and for impairment of loans and interest receivables
increased complexity which include the identification and estimation of the amount of provisions.

of exposures with a significant deterioration in credit — FRAMHRAR - FFEAL K Bt E i B 3K E’Jﬁfﬁﬂ

quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models for il 2 [ o B 2 > L BT 2L Fﬁ§| ﬁﬁﬁqﬁg
exposures assessed individually, such as the expected ) S5 U (58 A0 1100 A A w4 44 < BELAE A
future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic

factors. — We inspected the loans and pledged agreements
FIEEESR ((HYESEER]) Wit EZRKEH®E entered into between the Group and the borrowers,
DR ST R 38 ) A - DR RIS R and other relevant information relating to the
b B B > DA K st B A S B 1) T A B s 4R R Y borrowers as assessed by the Group.

o (s A A% o G T B Y R AR B B U R AR ISR — FRAMAEER B AR B SRONRT SL B B R B KA 1

EI R E - BEDAR A TR 2 AT B 2 EA B
K
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We focused on this area because the carrying amount —
of loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements, the identification
of whether exposures triggered deterioration in credit
quality and the estimation of the individual impairment
amount require the use of significant judgments and

estimates. —

oV 1 B - 7 e U R R
A A B T A - R B
B % 0 900 0 A2 5 O D K I
it -

B BB h S (18)

B o A A% R (A

We circulated auditor’s confirmations to test the
existence of the loans and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period. We also checked
the accuracy of the aging of loans and interest
receivables as at the end of the reporting period by
tracing to loan agreements.

FAM B L A BT ARE R K > DA R i R R R R R
T AR B A AE 1 DL o FAM IR 18 8 A K I
e A B AT R R B i A R A R 1 R Y
FREE o

We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL model and the criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured
on a lifetime ECL basis. We also assessed
recoverability of the loans and interest receivables
with reference to borrowers’ interest repayment
records and principal repayment subsequent to the
year end date and up to the date of this report, and
traced the repayments to the bank statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

ﬁhiﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁn(ﬁa)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
o it 7 % IR

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Py 28 it {H ¥ A

o o A A% R (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

F AT vl 7 A an Ao i AL B S 9 A T R

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note Our audit procedures included:
4 and the disclosures of goodwill in Note 18 to the KA ZAE)F &1 :

consolidated financial statements.

2 B %5 A AT TR R B G AG R A B I R A9 FZAR VR —  assessing value-in-use calculation methodology

T o 1 8 7 22 b 7% o

At 31 December 2019, the Group carried out an

impairment assessment to the goodwill attributable -

to the financial service business, alcoholic beverage
distribution business and children education business
and impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$2,967,000 (2018: HK$Nil) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.

=%

NEFZA=Z+—H. BEEHEBERRY

SEHS RS HORH > S 605 M SR SR S T G TR -

THESE TREE —F—LFE+_-_H=+—H1
SRR Y 47 A HE 28 S H A 2 T Ut 28 b ﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
5 18 40 5 152,967,0000C ( - F — )4 lEE D)

For the purpose of assessing impairment, goodwill
was allocated to cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of the
respective business, and the recoverable amount of
the CGU was determined by management based on
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection.
In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to determine the key
assumptions, including operating margins, terminal
growth rate and discount rates, underlying the value-in-
use calculation.

T A AR > TR A 0 T 2 A B SE 5 Y B < A A B
([ B A WAL | ) - 1 B 4 7 A= B 67 Y T o (] <6 % ey
B L R R ) R < TR A o P (R (R A R E
EAEEAT I AT A R PR T T A L B DL E
TR > 4 BT A R R G 1 A B Y AR R - K
AR R A
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adopted by management;

S ST T 108D R 8 1 900

assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, terminal growth rate
and discount rate) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry and using valuation expert;
and

ARARFAM B 35 AT R T RP AL = AR (R
15 KL R AR AR R I B & HE K
R EER &

checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-
in-use calculation in the management’s impairment

assessment.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
BB ohERS (55)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) B A IE ()
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
oA it 7 % 3 0H FRAM #r) 7 A% an fo] ig B R o A A S OH

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Yy ~ e b7 B ik i DA 1% JH R B o i A

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 4 Our audit procedures included:
and the disclosures of property, plant and equipment in M 1Y ZF A% A2 /7 (45 -
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
2 B 45 G W RS R M SEAfE 5T N E BRI R B9 E AR JR —  assessing value-in-use calculation methodology
T B 5k 159 3 ~ W s B s B % adopted by management;
— WPAGE P P 5RO 6 B (E R i

Management performed impairment assessments of the

Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of- — assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
use assets by comparing the carrying values with their (including operating margins, terminal growth rate
value-in-use to determine the amount of impairment loss and discount rate) based on our knowledge of the
that should be recognised for the year. business and industry; and

HEEOE BAEBNYE RS RS R — RIS AT SN T AT A R ARG (|
B EAT WA AT A > Or R B R E S RS K AR R A B R) B & B

{ELH L A 78 4T 1 ke e 119 9 Ml 4R <2 K

We identified assessing impairments of property, — checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key in-use calculation in the management’s impairment
audit matter because of the significant judgement and assessment.

estimation required to be exercised particularly in — &A% HLJE 76 51 Al Wk (B IRF BT #E AT 09 (8 A (R 5t
respect of estimating long-term growth rates, future LR B R

revenue, future cost of sales and other operating
expenses, the discount rates applied and also because of
the selection of these assumptions could be subject to
management bias.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
:ﬁuﬁ’ﬂﬁiﬂiﬁn (£8)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
ﬁhipﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁn(ﬁa)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (Continued)

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
:ﬁuﬁ’ﬂﬁiﬂiﬁn (£8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

Tong Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P06231
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
moRERH bR mkE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —2E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

Revenue
Sales of feedstock products
Alcoholic beverage distribution business
Food and beverage business
Dividend income from
listed equity instruments
Loan interest income
Provision of children education services
Provision of financial services

Total revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit
Other income, other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Fair value loss on financial assets through
profit or loss

Impairment loss of goodwill

Share of loss of a joint venture

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Notes

Bt 5

A 5
S 5 ) E

T BB 73 8 2E 75

B & OB SE B
bk THZ BB RA

BB A
et 5 B R s
f A3 < i Al 5

A
1 L IR A

EF
HoAthfe A~ HoAth iz 73

d Fic 7
BB T Ay 81 A
— & B AT BB 32
FEAHGEZ EMEEZ

s B A 1 1R
T B U (E s 1R 18
JEMG— MG EAET

I 15 21
WS A 8

R 5L i s 48 10
Ji 45 B 32 9

A 4F G 1R

2019 2018
e L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
WL BT
15,232 36,473
12,314 10,133
68,793 12,494
86 113
8,476 10,662
5,427 1,182
1,816 2,366
112,144 73,423
(50,013) (47,526)
62,131 25.897
(53,293) (7.238)
(175) (326)
(101,685) (49.865)
(5,634) (7.603)
(2,967) h
(1,732) (1,801)
(2,026) (38)
(105,381) (40,974)
(132) (320)
(105,513) (41.294)
ARERREERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

GoR@kHh2mikise (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

Notes
Bt 5
Other comprehensive expense 3 Ay 2 i B 5%
Items that may be reclassified Ké 1% Pl GE BT 40 B £
subsequently to profit or loss: Ha ZHH :
Exchange differences on translating MAEWINEBEEZ
foreign operations HEE 5, 2
Change in fair value of debts instruments %73 B (H 51 A HoAth 2 1H
at fair value through other comprehensive Wz 2 f& %5 T H 2
income oy A A B )
Share of other comprehensive expense A —HaEtEL
of a joint venture At 2 7 B 52 21
Items that will not be reclassified to AFA G EH A E
profit or loss: it ZHH :
Change in fair value of equity instruments % 2% 7o {8 (B 71 A HAth 42
at fair value through other comprehensive T it fit 2 ff 4 TH 2~
income s FAE(E S E)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 74 & H At 4 [fi
BH 3¢
Total comprehensive expense for the year 7S 4F J&§ 4 i b % 48 %A
Loss for the year attributable to: VNSN3
AAE 5 HH ¢
— Owners of the Company — AN A AN
— Non-controlling interests — I R RE A
Total comprehensive expense N W N g ]
for the year attributable to: b S 48
— Owners of the Company I VALE, ZEDN
— Non-controlling interests — IR A
Loss per share 5 % s 18 14
Basic HA
Diluted i

1 20 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2019 2018
“ERRE DF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ok i AT
(164) (1,474)
(209) -
- (41)
(373) (1,515)
(2,072) (14,416)
(2,445) (15,931)
(107,958) (57,225)
(104,211) (40,542)
(1,302) (752)
(105,513) (41,294)
(106,690) (55.,819)
(1,268) (1,406)
(107,958) (57,225)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al il
(Restated)
(8 E 51)
(68.10) (28.46)
(68.10) (28.46)




Consolidated Statement of Fiﬂancial Posjtion
£ o Wil iS5 th i 7

At 31 December 2019 ji* —ZFE— L4+ _H=+—H

2019 2018
“RhAE EF— N
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M EE T e ki oI
Non-current assets Ik v B B
Property, plant and equipment W2 ~ W Bk g 15 13,340 13,827
Prepaid lease payments TEAT L& O 17 - 842
Goodwill 7 18 17,233 20,200
Intangible asset Y & 19 500 500
Investment in a joint venture R—HEECEZHE 21 - 1,732
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi 5 R % A B 26 10,056 8,030
Financial assets at fair value through A REEFA KA
other comprehensive income AT WA 2 4 Rl E R 22A 9,587 7,125
Other assets HoAth & 23 230 3,167
Deposits and other receivables Fi 4 B A JBE SRR TR 27 8,383 _
59,329 55,423
Current assets W& R
Inventories 8 24 1,036 4,297
Trade receivables R Wi B K 25 12,572 17,516
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi A5 R % ) R 26 56,749 79,391
Deposits, prepayments and 4~ A FOE K
other receivables H: At JE i XA 27 15,915 11,526
Financial assets at fair value through e B E RN AR &
profit or loss Z g E 22B 21,247 24,831
Trust bank accounts fERERITIRF 28 10,689 22,996
Cash and cash equivalents Bl K B S EY) 28 29,689 68,576
147,897 229,133
Current liabilities i B £1 8
Trade and other payables JRE AT B R B oAt
JE At 73K A 29 31,716 37,832
Amount due to a joint venture AN —HEEREZ
A IH 30 - 56
Current tax liabilities BT 850 7 A 87 171
Lease liabilities HE A& 32 19,416 _
51,219 38,059
Net current assets i B e FHE 96,678 191,074
Total assets less current liabilities HBE A DR B A 156,007 246,497
BREMREAIRAD
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

fno Wl itk e (18)

At 31 December 2019 it —&E— L4+ A =1—H

Non-current liabilities Ik B £ 15
Lease liabilities HERE
Net assets & EFE
Capital and reserves B A B ik i
Share capital A
Reserves fati 4
Equity attributable to owners EN/NEIE? 2SN g
of the Company
Non-controlling interests T I HE £
Total equity HE 25 HA 3R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 297 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Director
HH
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
R E

1 22 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes

Bt

32

33
34

2019 2018
Z—hE F—)N\4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T ki

17,468 -
138,539 246,497
1,530 12,242
135,196 231,174
136,726 243,416
1,813 3,081
138,539 246,497

R E119H F297TH Z & BB ED
MoERE=ZA T EHEERS

E

Director

EFE

Mr. Ng Ting Ho
RNk

HEE R A HE T 8% 0 b B AR



Balance at | January 2018

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Issue of shares upon exercise of share
options (Note 33(ii))

Issue of placing shares (Note 33(i))

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of shares

Lapse of share options

Acquisition of a non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary (Note 39)

Disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)

Balance at 31 December 2018

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Reclassification adjustment upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Share consolidation (Note 33(iii))

Balance at 31 December 2019

REZ-NE-f- B4

AERER
AERANRARL

AERAARLAR

it i f Gl
(B33 )
BARERD (K3)
%ﬁﬂﬁW$ZA%ﬁ$
mww
B-HWBARL
#ﬁ%&ﬁwmﬁw
= mELEREAR
WM (et

REB-AEFZAZE-R
Zhik

AERER

AEEEMAE () /MA

AERAAR AR

R ERARERE AR TREZ
BETAREHARRE

et 0 (H3E3ii)

REZ-AEHZAZT-R
2hik

Consolidated Statement of Changes In E mty

] 3 Jt]l.ﬁzg

Y A
FAY ..

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % —Z&— L4 1~ H =+1— H 1L F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYTE N 1)
Fair value
through
Foreign other Attributable
PRC Share currency  comprehensive fonon-
Share Share  Contributed Capital statutory options  translation income  Accunulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserye reserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses Sub-total interests Total
BERAE
it Al
) BEA o gem ,
Bk RBER  MARR  WARE vEEERE  RRERG MRERE B Rithf hit - EEER i
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
EETL  #ETr BETx #%Tr M #RTx xRk Tx #EEx BT #ETr EiTx
9.936 138,874 153,551 61,545 873 1,507 1,758 (14,046) (76,263) 1,135 10,868 288,603
- - - - - - - - (40542) (40542) (152) (41,294)
- - . - - - (861) (14416) - (15.217) (654) (15.931)
- . o - - - (861) (14416) (40542) (55,819) (1406) (57,225)
461 5495 - - = (1,010) - - - 4946 - 4,946
1.845 16,605 - - - - - - - 18.450 - 18450
- (865) - - - - - - - (865) - (865)
= = = = = (497) = = 497 - - -
_ - - - - = - - (1,031) (L,031) (8,969) (10,000)
- - - o S - = - - - 1428 1428
- - - S . = B - - - 1,160 1,160
2306 12% - - - (1,507) - - (334) 21,500 (6,381) 15,119
12242 160,109 153,551 61,545 873 - 897 (28462) (117.339) 243416 3081 26497
- - - - - - - - (104211) (104211) (1,302) (10,513)
- - - - - - (198) (2.281) - (2479) K] (2,445)
- - - - - - (198) (2.281) (104,211) (106,690) (1,268) (107,958)
- - - - - - - 2690 (26974) - - -
(10,712) - 10,712 - - - - - - - - -
1530 160,109 164,263 61,545 873 - 699 (3,769) (248,324) 136,126 1813 138,539
BREMBRERIRLAD

ZEBE-NEFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

molamsd

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

Note
B 5
Cash flows from operating activities REEHEZIHERE
Loss before tax I ot i e 48
Adjustments for: KELLTT £ TH i % -
Finance costs W 5 A
Interest income FLE A
Depreciation of property, W3- W m B 2
plant and equipment e
Dividend income from fund investments KEEGHEZ
Bl A
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary & & it 1§ — [iH] B & 2 7]
Z W g
Impairment loss of property, plant and W2 ~ W7 Bk
equipment i 18
Write-down of inventories 17 5 s
Waiver of debts from suppliers A O 1L R P AR
Impairment loss of current account — W &EtERBIRE
with a joint venture ORI, F =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T A B R 2 6
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE- WFE K&
plant and equipment Bai i Ei0d
(U )
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary H B — T B g A 7 2
(i) s 39
Share of loss of a joint venture A —HEEtEL
5 18
Impairment loss of trade receivables JRRE WA B K 2 I B e 1R
Impairment loss of loans and interest JRRE i K B LR 2
receivables E 5 1R
Impairment loss of goodwill [ AT, Fi|
Reversal of impairment loss of trade JRRE i W 3k 2 W (E
receivables Ji 18 435 (]

1 24 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2019 2018
—F o EF-NAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
#wW T BT I
(105,381) (40,974)
2,026 38
(854) (417)
23,657 3,932
(11) (118)
(1,903) -
44,636 —
902 =
(1,209) -
172 -

- 21
527 (19)

(1) 308

1,732 1,801
8,797 2,928
6,201 6,804
2,967 —
(12) (57)
(17,754) (25,753)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
oleiia% (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Decrease in other assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in current account
with a joint venture
Decrease in loans and
interest receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Decrease in trust bank accounts

Cash used in operations
Interest received
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received from investments
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds for disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Proceeds of capital return from fund
investments
Payments for rental deposits

Proceeds of disposal of financial assets
through other comprehensive income

Net cash inflow on disposal of a direct
wholly-owed subsidiary

Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow on disposal of an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary

Repayment from a joint venture

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
additional interest in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

B

zé:ﬁ =)
Wy (i%%'ﬂl])

—MEBECERIIER
B 28810

JRE AT B K K A1 S
WD

JRE A4S B S S H At 1B
A5 3 T D

EREERITIRF
WD

SET 2 B4
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SRR
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Y12~ R ek i A R
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T 15 2 H
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HEFE A HoA 2 EW@Z
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Notes

39

39

39

2019 2018
A
HK$’000 HKS$000
W T T oo
2,937 9,245
2,451 (304)
(3,889) 3,663
(4,084) (2,868)
3,584 (9,848)
(226) -
11,399 5,596
(8,858) (4,118)
12,307 5,958
(2,133) (18,429)
584 376
(2,026) (38)
(216) (14)
(3,791) (18,105)
11 118
(9,187) (8,232)
114 136
(10,976) ha’
555 4,406
(3,593) -
2,124 -
2,297 .
(2,300) (21,996)
- 20
720 1,200
- (5,400)
(20,235) (29,748)
BRERREERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

moBemEr (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Proceeds from placing of shares
Payment for transaction cost attributable

to issue of ordinary shares

Repayments of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/from financing

activities

Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ) [ 3R 5% §)) 2 %

Cash and cash equivalents at

31 December

126
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o il 75 ¥ 76 Wi 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —2E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

GENERAL

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 September
2000 under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

In 2014, the Company has been deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda and the change of
domicile became effective on 8 May 2014 (Bermuda time).

The shares of the Company are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of the registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) was involved in the following
principal activities:

manufacturing, development and distribution of
feedstock products and related activities in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”);

—  provision of loan financing in Hong Kong;

—  provision of financial services (including advising and
dealing in securities and asset management);

— investment in listed and unlisted securities;
—  provision of food and beverage services;

- alcoholic beverage distribution; and

provision of children education services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK{IFRIC)
— Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

1 2 8 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

WE W% 6T B 5845 6T A W M B
e ot e Q) (T4 o B 05 o e
Jl)

TP 74K 4 JBE 5 ) A 280 2 BT T B A% A T
A i B B e ok e S

JAASAEBE - AL B 2 E RE T
H o A G ([ &l
K R 28R K KB T A i
St s i ot e

FEHMBEHE HE
HERI 55 169

FW (BB g B ERE N T
BWmEae T4

ZHEr)
— 239

T MRS ERESIFERA
e QI 2595 1

(EFTA%)

T g st B ERT Ak
SE19%% A
(EFTA%)

TGt HBELAAREE
S089E PEZRH
(EFTA%) HEzs

TGS BB B RAER
A CE—HAEF
(EFTA%) B AEW

H 2

BT SCB 0 A1 A A 4R B IR A
AT KA AT B s A S s A
AR B AR AT B RO A A R 2
B R B RARUL B BR% 5 A A
o P 4 R R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 177), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

Applies HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition (lease-by-lease basis)

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease by lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an alternative of
impairment review;

(i1) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application;

(iii) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(iv) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of in the
PRC and in Hong Kong were determined on a portfolio
basis respectively; and

(v) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. JEJH i il J& &85 5T 75 ok 0 %5 it
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B ([FHa B REE])
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (%)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) U 0 R SR 1698 LR
(#4)
As a lessee (Continued) TEZ RN (#)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously ERBESHEAKREHEZHE
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied ﬁﬁn IFH & B R R > AN 4E 5] ) AH B
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities A5 [E] BB A R E FH H HA Y 2
at the date of initial application. The weighted average LR 23 o A e 4 1 B 8 R B
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant group BET- 2 186 2 (5 B R RA F2.75% %
entities from 2.75% to 8.18%. 8.18% -
At
1 January
2019
7
— LA
—H—H
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
W T T T T
Operating lease commitments disclosed W _F—NE+_H=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 P 5 1) K8 25 B R I 23,161
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant i A B 1 B A B R R A6 B
incremental borrowing rates A 21,746
Less: Termination options reasonably Tk B BRHESE AT 1 AY 4 1k
certain to be exercised HEAERE (974)
Recognition exemption Ry
— short-term leases — 5 A & (874)
Practical expedient — leases with lease 7] 17 #EH 77 1% — L B A 1 Ik
term ending within 12 months from FE A B SR T 1210 A A &5 R
the date of initial application 1) 1 (1,373)
Decrease in lease liabilities resulting K ¥ B A fH B AT H B & wT
from lease modifications of existing W E A ERE D
lease* (275)
Other adjustments H Aty 5 (419) (3,915)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases i — & —JL&F—H — H EH
recognised upon application of HKFRS16 5 Uk B i e B 2R 165
as at 1 January 2019 15 e il 1) A€ 75 AH 55 A0 B
HE A H 17,831
Analysed as: 53 AT By
Current i B 9,190
Non-current FF Ui ) 8,641
17,831
# The Group renewed the lease of an office by entering into new lease # A AE s SO A E A A A

contract which commence after date of initial application. This new
contract is accounted as lease modification of the existing contract
upon application of HKFRS 16.

NS - HOR E R B H14%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at
1 January 2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-

Notes use assets

B 5 5 1 HE & 7

HK$’000

T T
Right-of-use assets relating to operating BT R ) 7 i B 5 i o T )
leases recognised upon application of 551698 IRF fE B8 1Y K88 FH 1

HKFRS 16 A T 0 i T REE 17,831

Reclassified from prepaid lease payments AR TELAN AREL 5 3 T EE T 20 S (a) 863

Amounts included in property, plant and PR s & st MR B 17985 A

equipment under HKAS 17 W2 ~ W Bkt 2 3

— Restoration and reinstatement costs —WRAR S Bl AE B AR (b) 3,456

22,150

(a)  Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used
properties were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current
and non-current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to approximately HK$21,000 and approximately HK$842,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b)  In relation to the leases of restaurant premises that the Group acts as
lessee, the carrying amount of the estimated costs of reinstating the
rented premises previously included in property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$3,456,000 as at 1 January 2019 were
included as right-of-use assets.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which were
classified as properties are measured under HKFRS 16 at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

1 32 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

VB FH % 6T B 2 46 6T A o B 5
YRR (77 o S 5 i i e S )
(/ﬁ)

A i B ek e R SR 16 9% AL EE
(#)

TEBARMA (#)

AR AR E R =% — L —
H—HZWRHEE LN %I

(a) M AWEZ B L TE A R
SE - NEF A=+ —HoE AR
A5 L KT o A IR P 7 v B S R A v
BIZE 1659545 » FEAS AR 6 3TH 2 B &
Ik ) 31 43 43 Bl 4 5 #2.1,0007T K £
7 842,000 B T 408 £ 1l A A
B o

(b)  wEASSE [ 1 A RN 2 B R A
Bz RN NLE—H—H:%
AR A BB Kk fls 2 L ED
3 2 BB Al R RS B T (E A A U
3,456,0000C > B 51 A G E o

HoF—hWFE—H—H# oM
T 2 1) FHL B it AR B 7 s B S
o Y JI 55 16508 LA SUAS ik 25 AT AT 2 5t
I8 AT AT 99 s 1R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. JEH BT J R 5T 75w % 3t
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HHR ([FHHS M BEREEA])

(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(/?’Ef)

A ik S B ek e R SR 16 9% [
(#)

1ERBARMA (H)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts THIAER _F-NE-H—HZ

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position fr G BBSIR DR h R 2 R4

at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the Hh R 9 B o IR A 2 S ) R BN TE H
changes have not been included. AN ELHELE A o

Carrying Carrying

amounts amounts

previously Under

reported at HKFRS 16

31 December at 1 January

2018 Adjustments 2019

W7 s I

5 Tl et e

RoF—N\E 165

+=A REF A

=+—H —~H—H®

2 e i R e i B R 1HG ¥

HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$’000

W T T BT T T T

Non-current assets Ik B &

Property, plant and equipment EN NS 13,827 18,694 32,521

Prepaid lease payments P B BOE 842 (842) -

Other receivables L Ath 18 i 3R OE

— Rental deposits —-MHeEse - 3,693 3,693

Current assets B &

Deposits, prepayments and other Fie 4~ T SOH K CH At ik

receivables A 11,526 (3,714) 7,812

Current liabilities B A 1%

Lease liabilities HEARA - 9,190 9,190

Non-current liabilities Ik B A 1

Lease liabilities HEAE - 8,641 8,641

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities MGk : iz —F—LFE+_H=+—H
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, E 4R BE DA P 42 O vk 2 i A T )
movements in working capital have been computed based on opening BB RN 5 o B A S R
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as R —F—LFE—H—H

disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
of other new and amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) -Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 sets out how to determine the accounting
tax position when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The interpretation requires the Group to
determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed
separately or as a group and assess whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment
used, or proposed to be used, by individual group entities
in their respective income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following
four standards.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised the transactions that generated
the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective
of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and
undistributed profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of application
of other new and amendments to HKFRSs (Continued)

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

HKFRS 3 Business Combination

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, the entity applies the
requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring its previously held interest in the joint
operation at fair value. The previously held interest to be
remeasured includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and
goodwill relating to the joint operation.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation that is
a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the
entity does not remeasure its previously held interest in the
joint operation.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle will have no immaterial impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to Detfinition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Association or Joint Venture’?

Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

HKFRS 9, HKAS

39 and HKFRS 7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Except for the new and
amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments:

U add an optional concentration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis;

U clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs;
and

U narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers
and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce
costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the
amendments:

. include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

1 3 8 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material (Continued)

U replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

. include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset take into
account a market participants ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

U Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

1 40 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

3.

EREG A BOR (4)

ARMEEBT 2 EE R 2B B
A P28 5 v R o i B s i
o B AT 2 A AN E A
G HEBE AR AN
f(E B fhst - hst EE S A
ANRBEER AEBMGEETIL 2
BLE AR B G A A e
IR 519 € % 18 1) 7 ol B (R A
REBAMBREPFIE &K
W& 2 0 B AE AR B T DU
it 52 - M JB A v B i ME R 52
B8 TR A5 k) A B i 2 B AF 3k
25~ MR IE A v A o ME RIS 16
W F—JLFE—H—H)&F
HBa R 1798 (&M
oA HE RSB 1658 2 1) AR Z &
32 5 B BN SR AE BB FE A AL
BEZ R (Pl &5l
N (178 | b2 Al B B
W B e I B 36E [ A W P
ZAEFAEE) B A -

I 4l B SR B (LT B D AR
Je— #1155 2 BL3E B 6 s K
AEE S E T — 25 AR &
FE i e M e B AR B4 T 3 22 B T
FEE A K IR 25 19 RE T o

BEAh -l S B ¥ T - A REE
AP RN REERE WA BE
B BE R A BB N R
AIREZEREEESBAE
B AREEE = AR #odt n T

o MU ABRRERIN
H 3 m] 45 2 M R & E B R
FUR 5 B S 2 E (ORAEH

K

)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

3.
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Basis of consolidation AR HE R

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

U potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

U rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

U any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

1 42 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

3.

FERGEBOR (4)
AR R H AR YR (A4

WAL N AR R 2 SRR
B K 22 iR > A 42 11 47 T 3 450 3
AT EHE ST > e £ SRR DA T
B ERAE ) BL5 B B A
BHEHS o fERPA ASE B R I BB 5
BT R DA T HLHE T ey
5 75 T A A B R R L
LA

o REEFA B A
T H A A A A SR
Z R R oy W

o REE - HAhZEERA A
o2 J5 i A 2 AR B

o HAb B EPEELEZHER B

o AHEAEHRE (BIERSLH
R K& L2 B ERA) I
R WA S [ R A I
A T8 A BRI B 2 B Z AR
BN EH B AU -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9,
or when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

1 44 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

3.

FERGEBOR (4)
A 4 17 BLAT PR B 4 ) 2 M a5 5 B

i A 52 B B3 A FA JB > ] 2 4 2
5 Sl 0 A A A O 2 S 4 TR T
O3 w2 AR 5 AR B A B A 5L
Gy o A B2 1 2 B 2 AR B o0 R MO
Je i i < M TR (EL T AF b B - DA
WA 15 25 7% Y J 2 w2 A B E 25 A
B > AL IE AR PR AN AR B K T 2 RO AR
2 [V AR) A LR 2 7 A 4R [ % I 2 e
1HE 2 2 T T B T AR R ot A

2 RO 2 1 98 2 e RH B S A
B 2 B 2 2 S B (B ] 2 AR AR
22 R0 TG P T i e R o S e
AN AR N

AR B 23— [ B R 2
AR IR T A W) 2 R
DA FE 5 R 4 (A ) i #¢ 1k A
AR o Wi i B 187 48 4 Bl D - 3 1%
() E W BAUE 2 A B (E S AT AT R B
i N REEZ BB HRGA QA
A NGB A R 2 B E (B
TR ) B B AR AR B 2 R 2 2
B o ST I JH At 2 T Wi 4 e R B
i P JE 2~ W AH B 2 BT A 4 R LA
WA LEC BN EZWE L F
MBI EE kBRI AR (A
e 7 s B i A Y R BT B,
TR EE R R AR A s
— R A o A KRR H
T3 R B 7S i 2 R AT T R 2
O3 FUARL(EL - PR 0 7 ol 5 e o
FU S5 9 5% T HCAR A IR IRp AL 25 40) A1 Tl
R0 SR B (AN ) A
A A ERRZTE 201 R
BLAS @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

U lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any of
the CGU within the group of CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a CGU within
a group of CGU), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGU) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any retained
portion of an investment in a joint venture that has not been
classified as held for sale shall be accounted for using the
equity method. The financial statements of a joint venture
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

U the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

] the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

] the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Commission from securities dealing are recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant contracts are executed.

Placing and underwriting commission are recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements or
deal mandates when the relevant significant acts have been
completed (i.e. when shares are allotted).

Clearing and handling fee income are recognised when the
services have been rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payments have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Excludes non-lease components

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and Ileases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of assets that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEEBUR ()

Leases (Continued) Mg ()

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in A E 5] (E 2 BN (1R 1% [ 752

accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued) 1Y 73 P 15 3 JE JH 25 v B 35 7R 7 T R
Fl16HE#E) (#H)

Right-of-use assets 1B

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: o7 R T Y LA LA

HER RN YL SR

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

+  any lease payments made at or before the commencement o JABHES H B I & AT AT
date, less any lease incentives received; RT3 WAl 2 Wi iH

2
. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and . A 18 2 AR B AR A W) 46 B2 AR
A5 R

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . ARAEE R PREE K AF BB E
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, FE ~ 18 JFAH B & 2 i A8 15 b B
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the 18 I AR B e 22 A B A k&
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms Age A B A A R B0 T 2 2 A G
and conditions of the lease. AALFL o

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated o8 R O AR Bk < AT AT BR ET AT

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any B KO E R R AT R R A

remeasurement of lease liabilities. £ A AT o] 2B s A R e

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain T A 45 3] i FH A 4% PR IR B o

to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end HORR B B T A RE Y (i R RE

of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date S AR AR EE MG H

to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets H 2 4E 0 45 o) 2 R TR

are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its B o TE H A E LT o 6 A E R

estimated useful life and the lease term. L A0 Y A EL A {58 4 59 B AH 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are presented as within line item of
property, plant and equipment

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 97) and initially measured
at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

U fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHBE ()

Leases (Continued) Mg ()

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in A FEL RN (B HRIER 2

accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued) 19 285 15 3L JE ST 25 7 B 5 R 7 2 A

F165EH%) (H)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HE A F (#)

The lease payments include: (Continued) HEM KA ()

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a o BN B AR T E
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the ik #0245 BRI B 46 H B0 45
commencement date; R R 5 &

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under o N [EIAE U R B AE (DA AR TE I
residual value guarantees; T LA S AT Y 3O

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is o MALEGHEEITHER
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and S RIGZ s E R AT E S &

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the o RRORAHE SR E A (65
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to FHL3 F Wl A 4 (3] 1E 47 4% 1E AR
terminate the lease. B ERE) -

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental J W T 355 4 586 8l Y R R R B A AR

rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as W2 {55 F BA 4 H A Y T 35 A 4 R R

at the commencement date. Variable lease payments that Fh iR o AN R A i Bl A F Y m A

do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the LB Ah 3kl et AR B B 1 B AF A

measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and W& EsHE > WM R EHM

are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or SIE WL B 2 A R e R A B S

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted TR BRIE B #A4E - FH & B &S B
by interest accretion and lease payments. FE K fH & A 3R AE 9 2% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

U the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

U the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

U the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

U the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis iS more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s joint venture.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialftatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Obligations for contributions to retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the PRC central
pension scheme, are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair value of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses (unless the
goods and services qualify for recognition as assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in a joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities in a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use asset and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other then goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method for agricultural business and on first-
in, first-out method for food and beverage segment and
alcoholic beverage distribution segment. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
at banks and securities brokers, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

1 74 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHBE ()

Financial instruments (Continued) @ T H (4)

Interest/dividend income is recognised on an effective MEE T EmS - FLE Sk A

interest basis for debt instruments. i B W ) e RE B 3R o

Financial assets 2

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial BB E R A 5 A

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are TR T MG 2 4 i AR e

subsequently measured at amortised cost: §H A E &

«  the financial asset is held within a business model o AL EHBEWRESEN
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; ZEBHEANFEEZ&/ME
and 2893

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to o AAMERASNREEHMEEY
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and T 4 U B AR 5 S AT AR 4 T i R
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BEAERNE -

Financial assets that meet the following conditions R R SR 2 4 & B AR T

are subsequently measured at fair value through other AAEE A HA 2Tl 4 ([Z A

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”): MEEFEAH AR ) 52

«  the financial asset is held within a business model o NEDIHUE A B A S
whose objective is achieved by both collecting B RlE R A H 2 SRR
contractual cash flows and selling; and KNFFEZERERE &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to o AAMERASINRFERMELEY
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and T 4 U R AR 5 S AT AR 4 T i R
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BEAERNE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

U it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

1 7 6 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHBE ()

&M TH ()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued) <2 F (A
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TR EESHREE T E ()

assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i1)

(i)

178

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit and loss. All other changes in
the carrying amount of these debt instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit and loss
with corresponding adjustments to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of
these debt instruments. When these debt instruments
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified in profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will continue to
be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
“Other income, other gains and losses” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHEBER ()

Financial instruments (Continued) @ T H (4)

Financial assets (Continued) <2 F (A

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TR EESHREE T E ()

assets (Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL (iv) #EAREHEFABREZEME

23

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being ANFFE P AN B A% N A
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as B 5T A At 4 1 U 4 2% 48 72 A
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Foe s B A T A At 2 T i 25

f SRR 1 S L PR A R
B 0 5+ AR 3 7

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value WA REEF ARG Z S E
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value ERABREHRY A REE
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net whaE o ARl o e (B I 4 B
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any TE A8 75 P AR o AN Rt iR
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is 2 W g B R AN ELRETE
included in the “other gains and losses” line item. 4 & E R 2 AT T i S 5k

AR Sl AT H: A i 48 K s
BIHHE K-

Impairment of financial assets &l &
The Group performs impairment assessment under expected A 4E [ AR 95 A v B BS 2 E HI 29
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including SERIEENE SRR ([TADES
trade receivables, loans and interest receivables, deposits iR ) RS R EE S EE
and other receivables, trust bank accounts and cash and cash e (60 FE FE A HE 3k~ HE A &k K ]
equivalents) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS B 1 4 T HoAth IS 3OIH 5 FTER
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to FTTERE R 4 B 45 EY) ) #EfT
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. TR A o T MG B 1E B R A
el H B R DL BUE B R B )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings should tailor to reporting entity’s specific facts
and circumstances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

1 80 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

EREG A BOR (4)

ST H (H)

BB E (4)
<& il B ()
Eo

WM MEEERERAE TR
A TE Rt AT A 0 08 B AR B A RD
EAEE RS HIE SR
o B S 0 128 H TEH A5 B s
8 (F1218 A B85 SR 1) il 45
TE I AT RETA e H AR 1208 H A
P 38 ) S T BSR4 A ) TE
{5 SRR o GFAG T ARAEAS 4R H 1) i
TE05 Bl B A B AT - WAR R
N RE R 3R~ S iR AR DL LA Kl
i BRI IR L B R AR L T
T B AL AT 9 2 o

e
i e

il

A

AR I — LR MR R R 4 S Y
MG R EE - 2% EE NG
5l 18 B A R A R RS A
At 8 B Al K s fi P A
0 HLEC) 48 A A B AT L R BT A (B
AR o A R HL A R DT

2

JE) o

BUBTA HoAt TR & A< £ B #9541
SR 121 A FEIE Bk 1 B SR
B R > BRI B 045 e R LA
s B TR By b B0 8 B A 4
i R 4 ) B FEAL 4R e 4H - WEAG 2
745 JRE A R0 2 1 B0 TR 1 B 4R 9 AR
1% B 045 e LA S T 3 A 2 A B T
A M s e o 2 5 K R 3 0 17 E



Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

Rl 75 ¥ 7 I 51 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

182

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly: (Continued)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 365 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i1) Credit-impaired financial assets

184

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Write-off policy

(iv)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHEBIER (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) S TH (%)
Financial assets (Continued) & B E ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) <l B (A )
(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) (v) FAHEEEBNE 2 LR
(%)
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —m s > HESEEEAAR
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in SEMRBESLHBRNINE S
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the 0 B < U e BEL AR A [ Y O
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective 0T A B4 i i 2= A I
interest rate determined at initial recognition. ) ey e R I R 1) B PR )R
5 o
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater ik FE 2 (5 S0 s 18 4 SE S L ME
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument BB A E B T B KRR
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments DT R I - B 4 il T B4R
are grouped on the below basis: DA 2 v i 51
. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s . Sl T B (R4S 4E [E
trade and other receivables, finance lease JRE AT J 3 B L i R Wi 2k
receivables and amounts due from customers are TE ~ Rl B IS A
each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related FE W & F 3CH & B 8T
parties are assessed for expected credit losses on LB SL AR o 1) BR T B
an individual basis); X G B 1 %
] ) B HE A )
o Past-due status; . A AR L 5
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and o fE NWIPER ~ A K AT
E -S4
. External credit ratings where available. . HNEBIE R4 (HE)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure B LRSS L 2 e ) > DA
the constituents of each group continue to share similar A5 40 B A0 A 48 o0 VE S LA L
credit risk characteristics. B e 1
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying ) B S F2 4 il 7 1) AR R T (L R T
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is BRI e E E S S E s ]l
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated ) B S A F5 4 T 1) 4 B AR BT
based on amortised cost of the financial asset. =10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability is held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-making; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading (or contingent consideration that may be paid
by an acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

U such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

U it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
For financial liabilities that contain embedded derivatives,
the changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are
excluded in determining the amount to be presented in other
comprehensive income. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to accumulated
losses upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

()

(i)

(iii)

has controls or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(1)

(i1)

(ii)

@iv)

(v)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3.

192

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical accounting judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimation (see below), that directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Recognition of deferred taxation

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses of the Group of approximately
HK$35,865,000 (2018: HK$112,723,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than or more than expected, a
material reversal or recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or recognition takes place.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s financial assets
unquoted equity instruments, amounting to HK$637,000
(2018: HK$7,125,000) are measured at fair values which
being determined based on unobserved inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the reported fair values of these

instruments. See Note 38.3 for further disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. & %5 6 3 1 B & 4 5F A 0

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and loans and
interests receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings/past due analysis as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables and loans and interest receivables are disclosed
in Notes 25 and 26.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$13,340,000
(2018:HK$13,827,000), after taking into account the
impairment losses of approximately HK$44,636,000 (2018:
HKS$Nil) in respect of property, plant and equipment that
have been recognised respectively. Details of the impairment
of property, plant and equipment, is disclosed in Note 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: AREFEARERE Z W ASHATE :
2019 2018
e S 1 S SN
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T
Revenue KA

Sales of feedstock products B B B B EE 15,232 36,473
Alcoholic beverage distribution business TP AE R 8 2E 5 12,314 10,133
Food and beverage business B SO SE S 68,793 12,494

Dividend income from listed equity AR E 2 KB RA
investments 86 113
Loan interest income B B A 8,476 10,662
Provision of children education services f it B = 20 F R Es 5,427 1,182

Provision of financial services P At < Rl R B

— Commission from securities dealing — W5 & 1,165 1,694
— Placing and underwriting commission — Wi M s i & 33 255
— Bonds commission — &5 34 =

— Interest income from securities clients — K BEHFEF WA E
A 339 72
— Clearing and handling fee income —HE R TFEB WA 231 336
— Asset management commission —EEEMHME 14 9

112,144 73,423
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision maker

(“CODM?), for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS

8 are as follows:

198

Agricultural segment comprises the feedstock products
business in the PRC;

Money lending segment comprises provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong;

Financial services segment comprises advising and
dealing in securities and asset management;
Securities investment segment comprises investment in

listed securities;

Food and beverage segment in Hong Kong and
Singapore;

Alcoholic beverage distribution business comprises
distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and

the PRC; and

Kindergarten or pre-school education business.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. rEEP (4Z)
Geographical information Hi % Bl
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Hong Kong A 4B ] 2 584 SERS AR A R~ A
and Singapore. ST o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external RAEFE AR G AN 2 U A& BT
customers is presented based on the location of operations. B TR #3170 AR B B 2 IR
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is B & BRI & E e #h 3 R o
presented based on the geographical location of assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets (Note)
KAMBEFZBA FEW B & E (P RE)
2019 2018 2019 2018
R ZF - NE 2R e F - N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o3 B BT BT T
PRC H 15,232 36,473 1,526 4,249
Hong Kong U 94,597 36,455 37,473 30,232
Singapore IR 2,315 495 457 2,620
112,144 73,423 39,456 37,101
Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to financial instruments [t 5E « IF I B A A A 60 B 4 il T L A R Gk
and deferred tax assets. BLTH & A B -
Information about major customers FHEEER 2GR
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no NEE B —JUE R - F— )\
customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the +—H=+—HILEE HEEF
ot BB A A 4 M AR A 10% A |
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 02 Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Yo

Bank interest income
Interest income from a joint venture

Dividend income from fund investments
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss of loans and
interest receivables
Impairment loss of trade receivables
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Bonds interest income
Interest income from other receivables
Impairment loss of amount due
from a joint venture
Write-down of inventories
Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on bargain purchase
from acquisition of a subsidiary
Reversal of impairment loss of
trade receivables
Sundry income
Consultancy and referral fee income
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

e A~ i W 25 B i 18
2019 2018
ZEE EF N\
HK$’000 HK$ 000
i ST BT o

SRAT R B A 108 76
KE—MGEMREZ

FE WA 249 341
HEBEZRERA 11 118
HEYE - R L

(K518) i 28 (527) 19
JE i B 3k K A S 2

W {E 5 48 (6,201) (6,804)
JFRE WAz B 2k . Uk (L M 4R (8,797) (2,928)
iRy /N

s, (EH) 1 (308)
& F B A 329 &
A R ik TE R R e A 168 a
JE U — ] & S E K IE 2

W AH 18 (172) -
oA & (902) -
ERY SN E PRI i

(44,344) 5

W B — ] BfF JBS > W] 2

e T 1 O 1,903 -
JFRE WAL B 2K 2 Uk (L M 48 4 [

12 57
A TH A 2,231 829
A S A A 2,933 1,338
BE 55 (5 48) Wi 35 75 48 (295) 24
(53,293) (7,238)

BRERREERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities
Finance Charge

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Over-provision in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax charge (Note 31)

Total income tax expense
recognised in profit or loss

204 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

8.
A A S
S5 2
9.
R 3B IH
Hh B 4 2 T A5 B
i M 5B

A 4 B R AR AA
A

PRAEFL A 57 (P E31) -

TP 18 1 e R 2 P 45 Bt

BH S 484

S B B A

2019 2018
“EE ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
wWTX BT
2,019 -
7 38
2,026 38

Fr 5 1 P 52
2019 2018
ZE A ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
wW T WHTT
231 232
231 232
99) -
88
132 320




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

9.

e fa BB 32 (A7)

AR —)NE=ZH - +—H > Fis
THEEE - LERYE (B
#1) (EBT79%) W) 5 % (1 fol 35
K1) HG| A A% HI A5 R
JE oI ERERN —F— NFE=ZH
N H % E AR S IR B H
T 7 e o AR T A A A5 B R
> A G A 2 B 52,000,000
TG Yt A 1% 458,25 % 1) Bl FR B > 1
8 3 ¥ 52,000,000 7T 1Y Y ] % 4%
16.5% 1) Bl BB o A 1F & 7 A% il
A0 A% 11 4 13 B 2 i )51
SEIR16.5% 2 B — Bl R BLIH -

BRI > A 4F B R - 7 o A A5 i Y
b B 52,000,0007T 2 Al 5 HIE SR
Yii A ¥% Bl R 8.25% w1 B > i i R
5 152,000,000 70 2 Ak 51 HE SR B i A
TR F16.5%F1H -

MR (2 A R LA 8 4 25 i 15 Bl
) (TREMABEYE]) X (¥
Fr S BUIR B R o o S
) T A A BE A B R A 25% o

Ho A w3 [ A 2 BLTE G 4% A B
i R AT B AR E A

BRERREERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

9. FRfeBLbA L (4

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the AAERE 7 Fr /8 B B S B4R A E 25 X
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or LA 4 T U 2 3% 2 B B R s 48 2
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: HEADR -

2019 2018

Loss before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of share of loss of
a joint venture
Tax effect of temporary
differences not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax loss previously
not recognised

Over-provision in respect of prior years

Income tax of concessionary rate

Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions

Income tax expense for the year

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

206 Annual Report 2019

“EF A ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL BT

W Bl BT s 15 (105,381) (40,974)

1% 7 W A 15 BB #16.5%

R s

(—F—/\4:16.5%) (17,388) (6,761)
ARz L2z

55 e 28 14,461 5,470
BHBABLZ WA Z

iR 2 (118) (1,701)
JEM— MG ESEZEERZ

Tl 55 2 28 286 297
KTHERZ UREFEZ

55 e 28 179 175
KPR ZBE R

BT % 2 4,175 3,391
BHAERTHRZ

Bl s 18 (67) -
o AR A B R AR A (99) -
B ERL R T8 (185) (151)
AE A ] 9 HE [ AR 2

B JB8 2 W) A [ B 3 2 5 2 1,112) (400)
A N B 15 80 BA S 132 320




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
oSt (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. A4 g HE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after A4 B B &R FHA 7

charging/(crediting): (#K %) T34 1H
Employee benefits expense flé B A& F] B 3¢
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (A6, 955 78 =5 P <6 )
— Salaries and other benefits — ¥ & K HAth 48 A
— Contributions to retirement benefits — 3B R AE | w1 H 4R 2K
schemes
Directors’ emoluments 3
Total staff costs & B B A JE%H

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense ffE 58 /4 B 32 2 17 & i A<

(included in cost of sales and services) (FFA 8B K IR A )
(Note a) (B 5Ea)
Auditors’ remuneration A% 5 B 35 P
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEUA5H AR 0k T 4 6
Depreciation of property, W3~ BB e e

plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Minimum lease payments paid under HRA% L AT 2 K
operating leases in respect of &) S AT 2 AR AH 4

land and buildings

Note:

a Cost of inventories includes HK$1,604,000 (2018: HK$1,699,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation, write-down of inventories and
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, which amounts
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above for each of these types of expenses.

]

A1 HE M 5 15 s 48, (Wi ds)

At -

2019 2018
ZF A ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL W TOC

39,886 18,302
1,750 762
4,549 4,545

46,185 23,609

45,315 43,754
1,020 987

- 21

23,657 3,932

295 (24)
- 6,880

R BABIEARE TR i
A7 B MUk S W) 2~ W7 A (L A
8 7 #51,604,0000C ( =& — )\4E i
#1,699,0007C ) > #% 4 B8 I8 45 75 w5
5 5% 55 B SOBURINA b SR BT 4% 5%
HHEHIN -

ARERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors of the Company and the chief executive are as

. HELRERITHRARME

EAT S AL R A #EH R E R
BN B 2 P & s 1 s an

follows:
Salaries, Contributions
allowances  to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
i W R BIREA  DIRHESS
ik Bd Atdfka IRHER b e A At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
& T &R EW T W T T T
2019 SRR
Executive directors ArES
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul BB EE

(Chief Executive Officer and Chairman) (TRAKRER)

(Note (v)) (HFE)) - 2,640 18 - - 2,658
Mr. Lam Chun Kei MR IS - 576 18 - - 594
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Note (iii)) SEVEEA (MR Giid)) - 810 18 - - 828
Non-executive director FafEE
Mr. Zhou Jing (Note (1)) g (MEG) 109 - - - - 109
Independent non-executive directors L NER ViR
Mr. Chan Hin Hang ATk 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien ek itk 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Hung Kenneth MR REE 120 - - - - 120

469 4,026 54 - - 4,549

208 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11.

o i ket (48)

(e
] [ -

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

11, ERREETBEAEME

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#8)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement  Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
e Bk BIRER DRAKEZ »
{0 B Al WRER M AL At
HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS’000
R W R 0 HEHT T HEHT T T
2018 SN
Executive directors WS
Mr. Zhou Jing (Chairman) (Note (i) and (ii)) ~ FI&h 764 (EM) (BEREG) R (i) - 110 - - = 110
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul R EE
(Chief Executive Officer) (“CEO”) (B ([frEas]) ) = 1,600 18 = 200 1818
Mr. Lam Chun Kei MR e - 540 18 - 250 808
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Note (iii)) RIEHEA (HE3E Gii)) - 389 18 - 558 965
Non-executive directors FHfES
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Note (i) and (iv)) REWEEA (W RE (i) R (iv) ) 60 279 8 = 7 354
Mr. Zhou Jing (Note (1)) JG e (HEREG)) 130 - - - = 130
Independent non-executive directors B A s
Mr. Chan Hin Hang it ek 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien 75 it 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Hung Kenneth B R R 120 - - - - 120
550 2918 62 - 1,015 4,545
Notes: Bif RE -
(i) Mr. Zhou Jing was redesignated from an executive director to a non- (i) JHE AT IR =F— /FEARH +HH
executive director with effective from 15 June 2018. H¥ATHE F P E AT ES -
(ii) ~ Mr. Zhou Jing was resigned as a non-executive director and chairman (i) JHASREECRZF—JEAHTUH
on 14 June 2019. BHAL TR 94T HE 0 T s
(iii) Mr. Ng Ting Ho was redesignated from a non-executive director to an (i) SREWHEER_F-NFLH=HH
executive director with effect from 3 July 2018. FPATEHFE B RATHSE
(iv) The emolument shown above included approximately HK$60,000 Gv) b SCHTR I I 4 v 4 s 60,0008 £
for his service as a non-executive director of the Company and B AT AR 2 W) I A 7 3 = o 4 ARk R 5
approximately HK$294,000 in connection with his other service to a Z 45 o %) 294,000 70 B A% 45— [
subsidiary undertaking. e B 2 ) 11 S R A 1 A IR B AT
B o
(v)  Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul was appointed as the chairman of the (v) SRXBEECEBE/ANA LR

Company with effect from 14 June 2019.

H o F—JUFENA AR

BREMREHIRAD
ZEBE-NEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

11.

12.

210

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments shown above for executive directors were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The fees for
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors were mainly for their services as director of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. No
inducement payments to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office were paid or payable to any
director or the chief executive officer for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included, one (2018: two) director of the Company, details
of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2018:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries allowance and benefits in kind

11.

12.

B e TR CH W AR A

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes %5 7R 48 Fll 51 #1 {it Fx

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

ERAEETBEAENE

(#)

b SCR TR B AT 7 S I < R B
SFHEBANT RALEBEBERMZ
e Bs A B o JF BAT 5 5 ST IR L
T F e T B FIRAEA L A
EHAR -

REBEE_F-NFEL_F—N\F
ToA=t—HILEE RS
B EEATEO B S R B R AE
TP < 19 22 B o AR =& — JLAR
K=F—/NF+_H=+—HILHF
JEE > Sf7 48 1) A fo] 7 2 B BAT LA
B S SRR AHE AT i A A 4 B =
NS AR ] T 2 8 R A

he 4 B = W I B

JAAS AR BE - A AR B L4 B # R B
o —Z (ZF—/NE MWL) A&
AFEE WM e R EOR £
SCRRELL o A A AR BE#R T M 44 (—
T NF: =)W ARFESE
s EEATH B 2 i = e B 2
EWME

2019 2018
SECRE RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
5,385 4,470

72 54

5,457 4,524




12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

Emolument bands

HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

DIVIDEND

12.

h¥émebilE R (A7)

P <8 A < AT 6 8 A 9 AR % ) 5
FHEmAEE ZHAMT

Number of employees
e 5\ %
2019 2018
SBRE A

P < A [
5 0 2 171,000,000 70 1 -
7 1,000,001 7T &
7 %1,500,0007C 2 2
#%1,500,001 T &
# 2,000,0007C - 1
7 %2,000,001 7T £
#2,500,000C 1 ot
4 3

13. ik B

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders

of the Company during the year, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018:

HKS$Nil).

7 JEE 37 48 1] A 2 ) 3 20 s B SRR
A SR IR A IR, - B RS IR BLAR
IR RS R AT ] RS, (= F — /4R
BWZET) -

ARERREERAT
—s—nzaes 211



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. B8
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share A E) BEAA N AL B B 3 AR K
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the Jiq 18 TG AR 15 DL S R
following data:
Loss s 18

2019 2018

= L
HK$’000 HK$’000
wHETE  NET

Loss for the year attributable to owners Al AT IR A R R 2
of the Company for the purposes of basic AN FHEA N RE AL A 4E
and diluted loss per share [ <Ei! (104,211) (40,542)
Number of shares W02 H
2019 2018
ZE g F - )\4E
’000 000
T T K
(Restated)
(RHEI)
Issued ordinary shares at beginning of AR B AT B 4 i
the year 1,224,236 993,596
Effect of share placing on 9 April 2018 B —/NAE AL H KA
Hie B 1) 5 8 - 33,752
Effect of share placing on 24 May 2018 W _F—/NFHLH_+MH
e 3 T 5 ) 2 2 - 112,217
Effect of share consolidation on WoF—NERH =+ /N\H
28 May 2019 J&e A5 G A B 5 2 (1,071,207) (997,119)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7l 5 5 I 5 A J2 # ¥ 5 48 =
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss 8 FBE I HE - 1)
per share 153,029 142,446
The weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2018 TEF— )\ A B  EE
has been adjusted retrospectively for the share consolidation MRS e RE, § - E— L
which became effective on 28 May 2019. o = s AN = 2 o
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended SREE_F-NER T /\F
31 December 2019 and 2018 did not assume the exercise of + = H =+— H IL4E F 2 & B i
potential ordinary shares granted under the Company’s share 5 18 IRF > Sl AR BAR A A &) B %
options scheme outstanding at year end since their exercise RETH B2 B HLR R o R AT 2 78
would have an anti-dilutive effect. T 5 BT 0 > TR A HL AT B
A2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Cost
Balance at | January 2018

Additions

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2018
Adjustments upon application of
HKFRS 16 (Note 2)

At | January 2019 (restated)

Additions

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment

Balance at | January 2018
Provided for the year
Disposals

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2018

Adjustments upon application of
HKERS 16 (Note 2)

At | January 2019 (restated)
Provided for the year

Disposals

Impairment loss in profit or loss

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 31 December 2018

A
REF—F—A—RH2Z&

B

i
Yo R
EiEHz v

BB NE+ZA=+—A2z&R
7 B o e
Fl6 AR MG ZME (Hek2)

B

it

W 2 1 (k39
EREELHE

REF-NEFZAZH—H 25

Ratdi - SR WA

REF— N~ —H 2 &8

B A
it
EiEHz

BEZ—-AE+ZA=F+—HZ
Ei s
T R 7 s S 2 e U
F6 A M2 (k)
REZ—NE—R—H (BEF)
O A
e
M2 W AR
[EREE R
RoZ—fE+ A=+ —B2 88
J i
BoE-REF SR 28R

RZF—-NFFZA=+—HZER

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

15. W€~ Wl e wk s

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Leased Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
Lands Properties Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
R KB R
LIER ilEE7E S Wy HEWmEEE  RERES  RAERME fi At
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ki EHT T ki BHT T ik EHT T ik EHT T
(Note (i)) (Note (i)
(B E ) (£ )
- - 6,185 4876 6,738 1,655 3,183 22,637
- - - 6,034 10 1,270 918 8,232
_ - . - = (25) (259) (284)
- - - 1,980 - 533 - 2513
- - (321) (189) (382) (23) (24) (939)
- - 5,864 12,701 6,366 3410 3,818 32,159
1,032 21,781 - (3,950) - - - 18,863
1,032 21,781 5,864 8,751 6,366 3410 3818 51,022
- 30,060 - 6,391 - 2,796 - 39,247
- (750 - (683) - (379 (325) (2,137)
- 7,274 - 2519 - 4 - 10,535
(18) 13 (109) (63) (130) 5 3) (305)
1,014 58,378 5,755 16,915 6,236 6.574 3,490 98,362
- - (4,353) (3,061) (5,479) (1,315) (1,095) (15,303)
- - (163) (2,173) (477) (391) (728) (3,932)
- - - - - 20 147 167
- - 232 128 336 18 22 736
- - (4,284) (5,106) (5,620) (1,668) (1,654) (18,332)
(169) (494) - 494 - - - (169)
(169) (494) (4,284) (4,612) (5,620) (1,668) (1,654) (18,501)
(21 (18,047) (156) (3,263) (457) (932) (781) (23,657)
- 500 - 578 - 126 292 1,496
= (31,701) (1.420) (1.478) (283) (3,752) ) (44,636
3 (14) 105 50 124 4 4 276
(187) (49,756) (5,755) (14,725) (6,236) (6,222) (2,141) (85,022)
827 8,622 - 2,190 - 352 1,349 13,340
- - 1,580 7,595 746 1,742 2,164 13,827
BREMBRERIRLAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. W3- Wlm Kkt (42)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for PR BH B g 2 Ah > bali W 2 i
buildings under development, after taking into account the B R H (K85 B R i fE ()
residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the PLE $RIE 1% T 9 R aH R I

following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of term of BF & ES5%
lease or 5% (LA HE 3 £y i)
Leasehold lands/leased Over the term of the lease gt/ &
properties HEWE
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of term of HEMERE fiL & =20%
lease or 20% (DA 1y e )
Plant and machinery 10% NS § 10%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 33.33% B HE R 10%-33.33%
office equipment NEE ]
Motor vehicles 10% - 25% i 10%-25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. W3~ Wb Rkl (4 )
(i) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant () MHEHEEE (FGFADE-BE
and equipment) Bk )
The Group as lessee S B fE 75 R RN
Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total
M L MEME Mgt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WHTE  BETE WETR

As at 1 January 2019 R-F—-NWLE—H—H
Carrying amount AR T 863 21,287 22,150
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z2-LE+TZA
=+—H

Carrying amount R T A 827 8,622 9,449
For the year ended 31 BEZZ-NETZA

December 2019 =+ —HILEE
Depreciation charge TEEH 21 18,047 18,068
Impairment loss recognised T it 2 ok (L s 1R - 31,701 31,701
Exchange realignment e b, o % (15) (1) (16)
Expense relating to short-term T E R E R E K

leases and other leases with JRE A 7 v B S i o

lease terms end within 12 RIEE165% 2 HERH2

months of the date of initial I8l F 1A 45 3R 2 oAt AR

application of HKFRS 16 =il b3 2,247
Expense relating to leases of MEEEEMRE (N

low-value assets, excluding B (5 & 2 2 A

short-term leases of low B) Z BB X

value assets 504
Variable lease payments not Rt A EA G EZ W

included in the measurement SR K

of lease liabilities 130
Total cash outflow for leases L B4 9 Hh AR 19,771
Additions to right-of-use assets 3% s fifi I #E & & 37,334

ARERREERAT
—s—naxam 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

216

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses, and restaurants for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years to
5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Variable lease payments

Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are
based on 10% to 27% sales and minimum annual
lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. Some
variable payment terms include cap clauses. The
payment terms are common in restaurants in Hong
Kong where the Group operates. The amount of fixed
and variable lease payments paid/payable to relevant
lessors for the year ended 31 December 2019:

15. W&~ W os Bk i (A7)

(@

(i)

15 FH B (W A3~ W
Bk i) (#)

T %4 AR A B AR IR
BRI 2 T R B
B o B A AR 5 E IR 5
2AE B SHERT L o B I TE
8 7 2 8 b R > B4 A5 HEA
[a] A6k S AR A = 7% 18 E AL 3
Je ¥ Ak A AT 48 1] 39 1] B9 = R
IR - 7 42 1 B ) 5 4 1R 2 2R T
fRéE A A R 5 AT R BT o

LE LN -hE

BEREEESRERAEEHE
R R S B A 10% 2
27 %t HHY AT A ATk S AE
AL 1 A (8] 7E 1) B AR A LA
ESESRRCIE e ¢ IR
b BRAGR K o B A AR A A 4R
AR EEEBRR
LR e - NE+ A
=t —HILFEEN, AT
A B AR Y [ E B T B A
i 3 -

Number of Fixed Variable Total
stores payments payments payments
i o Wl %E iF 3 ] 5 A 5K fiF 5k 48 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
el T T T T T
Restaurants without % A[  fl B 5 2
variable lease BHE
payments 8 10,912 - 10,912
Restaurants with A gHEMNHKZ
variable lease BHE
payments 3 2,385 130 2,515
11 13,297 130 13,427
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

no 15 i e b st (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % — 2

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

16.

(ii) Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment

terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by

restaurants with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are

expected to continue to represent a similar proportion

of store sales in future years.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

i 2

I

% 1

Bright Peak Investment Limited

H g8 A RA R

Broad Sound Enterprise Limited
(“Broad Sound”) (Note (i))

Broad Sound Enterprise Limited
([Broad Sound | ) (Fff&E())

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operations

G AV
Akt /48 o B

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)
S8 I LB

(B 13532
BVI

£ ey

City Ally Holdmgs lelted (“City Ally”) BVI

BRFE A RA R (TBR K 1)

Delight Sky International Limited
EXABARAR

East Gain Enterprise Limited

R EARAR

East Shine Group Limited

Eternal Speed International Limited

R B A R

£ e

BVI
£ el
BVI
£ e
BVI
£ el

BVI
i e

Paid up

issued share
capital/
registered capital
B BT

JBe A/t A

US$1
IE
US$1
IE
US$1
IE

Us$1
B

US$1
IE

Us$1
B

US$1
IE

At A S — AL

15. W&~ Wl Bk il (A4

(i) VIEEMEAX ()

5 R T B A5 S A 1 A A 5
MER HERRRNERES
FE A T R B A 4B AR o T AR
& BA SCHR I A R A S8 AR A A
3 789 T B 19 AL L A9 o

A% 2 ) 32 B 4 v Z a1

T i A - A £ 1 W B 1 W) 2

THHEI AT
Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
Al i
it A R 5 b
2019 2018
ZE N ZENE
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
HE fil % HE M EEEH
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
B
- - - 100% Investment holding
Ergcgidile
100% - 100% - Investment holding
Ergcgidile
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
B
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
Ergcgidile
100% - 100% - Investment holding
B
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
Ergcgidile
REABREHIRA 6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

16. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 16. A2 &l X EH B 2 5 = £ 1%

THE COMPANY (Continued) (%5 )
Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
A8 ) i i
Place of Paid up i i i i B 1
incorporation/ issued share 2019 2018
registration/ capital/ BN ZEF-)N\E
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
Ak, BROBS
i i 2 ] 4% AL,/ 408 A/ A H#% fi] % H#% W EERH
Fast Creation Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
B IR LB B 1% BEER
Golden Harvest Holdings Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
R I BB B Erd-gids
Keen Profit Development Limited BVI US$1 = 100% = 100% Investment holding
PR B RAT AR Py iy 1% BEER
Profit Network Asia Inc. BVI US$600 = 100% - 100% Investment holding
E9 ey 600 7 g eidls
Rich Sheen International Limited BVI US$1 = 100% = 100% Investment holding
(“Rich Sheen”)
FRERBAHRAR ([HE]) R I BB B Erd-gids
Supreme Falcon International Limited ~ BVI US$1 = 100% = 100% Investment holding
018 B PR AT PR A ) Y iy 1% BEER
Way Union Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
BB RARA T R I BB B Erd-gids
Eternal Code Holdings Limited BVI US$1 = 100% = 100% Investment holding
A 5 A R ) Y iy 1% BEER
Happy Laughter International Limited ~ BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
R I BB B Erd-gids
Star Kitchen Catering Group Limited BVI US$1 = 100% = 100% Investment holding
BERMEERARAR Y il 1% BEER
CD Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$103,000,000 - 100% - 100% Licensed to carry on regulated
activity in connected
with dealing in securities,
advising on securities and
asset management
R A R 7 ik 7 1103,000,0007C FERRETT A B R
HE st
BRARERERZ
ZHREEH
Delight Sky Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% - 100% Money lending
EXRMBARAR ik #11,000,0007C £
Tony China Limited (“Tony China”) Hong Kong HK$40,655,000 90% - 90%. - Investment holding
A AR (TR EE T 140,655,0007C BEER
Town Ally Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - - - 100% Investments in securities
(“Town Ally”) (Note (i))
IREREARAT (THE]) EE LV it 7 £ B
(B RE (D))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

THE COMPANY (Continued)

16. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued share
registration/ capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital
Ak s/ BRCHAT
it 5 2% w1 44 Rk A8 2 e Ak /A A
Amber Wealthy Holdings Limited BVI US$1
B I B 1%76
Town Ally Investment Hong Kong HKS1
Company Limited
BB EHRA Hits b
Way Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100
T S A LA ] Hifs R 10070
Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”) Hong Kong HKS$5,000,000
PO I TR A R 7 Ei #%5,000,0007C
( Pl B WL )
Nobel Education Organisation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000
(“Nobel Education”)
St A E R AR Hifs 1 115,000,0007C
([HEMRHE])
Star Kitchen Catering Hong Kong HK$1
Group (HK) Limited
ERHREER (F) ARAH Hits ficki-ab
Wala Wala Limited (Note (ii)) Hong Kong HK$10,000
HERENARA R (WEGi) i #110,00078
Xiamen Dongyu Trading PRC US$4,500,000
Company Limited* (Note (iii))
BP0 A A R (R Gil)) B 4,500,000 76
Longyan Dongyu Bio-feedstock PRC RMB18,000,000
Company Limited* (Note (iii))
HE A TR A AR R ) HE AR H18,000,0007C
( Btk Gitd) )
Fujian Oriental Unicorn Agricultural PRC RMB1,000,000
Company Limited* (Note (iii))
AR HE A T R SR AR A P il AR 1,000,007
FRRA ) (i 3E Gif))
S English names are translated for identification purpose only

Proportion of

ownership
interest held by
the Company
A5 ) i i
i i i i L 1
2019 2018
“E R “ENE

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
H#% [i] #% H [
- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 51% - 51%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - -

- 100% - -

- 90% - 90%

- 90.4% - 90.4%

- 90% - 90%

16. A 2w\ 3 Z W& 2 ¥ Z 5F 1

(#)

Principal activities
ER 33

Investments in securities

[eid s

Provision of administrative
services and investments in
securities

FRAEATBOR TS R 55 B ¥

Money lending
T

Distribution of alcoholic
beverage in Hong Kong
and PRC

AT s i o B 4 B T A AR

Provision of children
education service

R E R A R

Food and beverage business
1 R fOR

Food and beverage business

B R
Investment holding
BE

Trading, development and
manufacturing of feedstock
products

SR EE 2 B 5
LE YL

Eco-breeding, animal
pharmaceuticals and
terminal marketing of
agricultural products

A RER A ~ B A TR E
i

ARERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

16.

17.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 16. A ® T E B A 7 = 1%

THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

(%)

EXRBINARFZME LA EF
A0 % 55 W Ja 2 ) Y B A
ZHRBBEE -EFR L MEFI
H At F6 8 2 ) 2 R I 4 T R R
Tt e

P A1 4 J3E 1A AR S R Ja 2 W 2 34T

during both years. AT AT 5 78 5

Note: B RE -

(i) The subsidiaries were disposed during the year. Further details are set (i) % 55 I A R 2 IR AR A A i 6 o A
out in Note 39. — 2B WA SR B EE39 -

(ii)  The subsidiary was acquired during the year. Further details are set (i) "% 55 B A B B A 4F B A AL o #E
out in Note 39. — 2B WA R B EE39

(iii)  The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned (i) #Z%5 W B 28 m] DASR i i A 2 2 T X

enterprises.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current assets (included in deposits,

prepayments and other receivables)
Non-current assets

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2018
—E— N\E
HK$’000
T IT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. GOODWILL

Cost

At 1 January

Additional amounts recognised from
business combinations occurring
during the year (Note 39)

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment losses

At 1 January

Impairment loss recognised in the year
(Note 20)

At 31 December

Carrying amounts
At 31 December

19. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Trading rights

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

18. w2
2019 2018
B ME SF AR
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T e i d e T
B A
w—H—H 35,308 15,108
RN HEAT ZEHS A OF BT R
Z RSN I (K EE39)
- 20,200
wt+—_H=+—H 35,308 35,308
2 EH WA 1B
w—H—H (15,108) (15,108)
AN T RR IR (B 1R (B EE20)
(2,967) -
wt+—_H=+—H (18,075) (15,108)
I T
wt+—_H=+—H 17,233 20,200
19. ERE E
2019 2018
“R®-NE T N\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
32 o W 500 500

ARERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

Intangible asset comprised the eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group can use
to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights are
considered by the management as having indefinite useful
lives because they are expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading rights will not be amortised
until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the trading rights with
indefinite useful life are allocated to the financial services
business cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment
assessment (Note 20).

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs for
impairment testing:

19.

20.

B E (47)

TR B L3 I I 52 P B A I 2
P 58 5y 2 B AR HER o 5 5 W ) A A
AR 1 T AR A T B e U 2 A ]
f7 48 WY FH 5 A4 BR Al o A Bt > 4 B
R 2o 58 oy WRE WA R T 5 P 4

i PR 25 B0 A 4 1 4 R R UK 4
BE WA o 5 5 HELE B 2 7y i B
A7 R R 2 BTt A & F LA g - AR
> Hoof AR RO A B R 3R B AT
A T8l (L FRF 28 AT 9 (0l o

T o R o W (E R A T B
e B W] AR 2 22 B HE T o I
= IR B S B 2 B AR R
(TREEAEREAM]) (MEk20) -

(ERET R R /A8 YL E DY
e B ik i 2 B 4 e 2R BT DA
U

POBREL AT U T B A W
7R (B

2019 2018
“E - F— /)
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T BT oo
CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution R RO 0 B 2 5 2
business B 4 7 A B 15,441 18,408
CGU in children education business BEAFTELZ
Bl A BLAY 1,792 1,792
CGU in financial services business i Rl IR S SE S
Z B A A A - =
17,233 20,200
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING 20. SR E - EBEERME K

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding the discount
rate and growth in revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimated the discount rate of 16.42% (2018:
15.45%) using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the CGU. Changes in selling price and direct costs were
based on past experience and expectations of changes in the
market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period had been extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be more than its carrying amount.

Accordingly, impairment losses on goodwill of
approximately HK$2,967,000 (2018: HK$Nil) had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CGU in children education business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding the discount
rate and growth in revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimated the discount rate of 18.54% (2018:
18.87%) using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the CGU. Changes in selling price and direct costs were
based on past experience and expectations of changes in the
market.

B Be i i 2 B 4 i A L Ao A
Wk ()

e B 4 i A L 2 T W R R
e Lo FL T AR B Al S

RS AR 5 81 58 B < B < e 2 A

A B 4 AR LA 2 A [e] A 4 RE T A
A B E & o (8 A (B R
T ERETY 5A B A R B
DA B A Ko B3 A 3 = i Ak o
3L TR (o ) B T ) R A B T B R
16.42% ( —F — )\4E:15.45%) >
20 HI A 2R S I T 35 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in children education business (Continued)

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period had been extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU
was found to be higher than its carrying amount. No
impairment losses (2018: HKS$Nil) had been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumption would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed their recoverable
amount.

CGU in financial services business

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a period of 5 years and pre-tax discount rate of 19% (2018:
21%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%).
The discount rates used reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant business. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted revenue and operating costs which
are determined from past performance and management’s
expected market development, and taking into consideration
the temporary refrainment from providing further margin
financing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING 20. SR E - EBEERME K

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in financial services business (Continued)

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be less than its carrying amount.

No impairment loss (2018: HK$Nil) was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2019 as the amount had been fully
impaired.

In the opinion of the directors any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed their recoverable
amount.

CGU in provision of food and beverage of services

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding the discount
rate and growth in revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimated the discount rate of 12% (2018: 12%)
using pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
Changes in selling price and direct costs were based on past
experience and expectations of changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period had been extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 2.5% (2018: 4%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

20.

21.

226

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in provision of food and beverage of services
(Continued)

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be higher than its carrying amount. Impairment
loss of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) of approximately HK$44,636,000 (2018: HK$Nil)
had been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2019.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed their recoverable
amount.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as
follows:

Cost of investment in a joint venture

20.

21.

T — [ 5 A 3 2 B AR

Share of post-acquisition loss JRE A1k 5 J 4% T 18
Share of other comprehensive income JFRE A JHE At 4 T ik A

Effects of equity transaction
of a joint venture (Note) R (KfEE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, BLVD Cayman Limited’s
ownership interest in its operating subsidiary was increased from 80% to
100%. As a result of this equity transaction in the BLVD Group, the Group’s
share of net assets of the BLVD Group was increased by an amount of
approximately HK$1,676,000, mainly due to the purchase consideration
paid by BLVD Cayman Limited for the additional ownership interest was

lower than the carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired.

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the
reporting period are as follow:

1. R—HEEREZIERE (4)

WA

WEZE—FE—tE+ A=+ —HILERE
BLVD Cayman Limited 7 4 4 i J& 2 & /Y
ST A RERE 4 H180% 14 Il 2£100% © H A BLVD
GroupZ |l iR HEZE 5 » A 48 |8 EE A BLVD
GroupZ & i 15 {H 34 il %1% 1,676,000 >
F 3 A BLVD Cayman Limited #i#84MIr A
R AEE i 117 S A5F B ol e AU A 2 o B o
Jie HEE %5 194 R T (LT 3K

AL E R IR 2 & B AR ST
mr

Country of
incorporation/ Principal place Proportions of ownership
Name of entity registration of business interest held by the Group  Principal activities
At ML/
B kit B K FEERNE i 1 H i L FEEH
2018
SR ZENE
BLVD Cayman Limited Cayman Islands Singapore 50%  Operating restaurants, cafe and
R s takeaway outlets in Singapore

Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”)

Summarised financial information in respect of BLVD Group
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in BLVD Group’s
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. BLVD Group is accounted for using equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

RE AR R MR RN E R

BLVD Cayman Limited & 1 [} J&
2w ([BLVDAE H ) Z W % & B
1t 22

BLVD4E [# 2 W45 & o} i 4l 4 51) 4n
N o DATN B R A AR R A
B 55 e 4 YEE B A R BLVDE B 45
A WA B i 3% I 81 7 1 4 % > BLVD
52 B 5% 55 45 B A S 3R TN 66 D RE
BN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21, R—HIEBEEILRE (H)
BLVD Group BLVD4: [

2019 2018
—F oA ZF N
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL W TOC

Current assets B A E 6,593 5,243
Non-current assets FE Wi B A = 38,721 14,927
Current liabilities i B BE (20,441) (16,707)
Non-current liabilities R E AR (34,214) -
Net assets HEFHE (9,341) 3,463

The above amounts of assets and liabilities [ #lt &&E & A& &0+

include the following: T3 &I -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 S B S5 EY) 992 885
Current financial liabilities ) R (RS

(excluding trade and other JFRE A R TR B At IR A 3K T

payables and provisions) B A ) (9,265) (6,090)

2 2 8 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21, R—HIEEBLEILRE (H)
BLVD Group (Continued) BLVD4 H (4F)

2019 2018
—E—RhE F - )N\4E
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T oo

Revenue e A 45,254 52,997
Loss for the year attributable HE 4 A N EAG

to equity owners A 1R (12,736) (3,602)
Other comprehensive income for the HE 4 A N A A 4F BE HoAth

year attributable to equity owners A TH UL A (68) (82)
Total comprehensive expense for the HE 2 B A G AR 4F

year attributable to equity owners 4 TH B S A RH (12,804) (3,684)
The above loss for the year include the following: RAEJE 7 Bl sfE el dE o & I8

2019 2018

—EZJUE F— )\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Impairment loss of intangible assets Y & B 2 WUE 1R 2,159 413
Depreciation e 4,381 4,193
Interest expense FE S 1,828 582
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —2E— L4 1 —H =1 —H I F/&

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
BLVD Group (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in BLVD
Group recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net (liabilities)/assets of BLVD Group BLVD%E [
(1) & FE
Proportion of the Group’s A 55 [ i A R HE 22
ownership interest Lt il

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in  4<4E [#] jA BLVD4E [#] 2
BLVD Group HE A AR T (L

The unrecognised share of loss and other Comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$4,670,000 (2018: HK$Nil) and unrecognised
accumulated share of losses as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$4,670,000 (2018: HK$Nil).

2 30 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

21, R—HIEBEEZIRE (F)

BLVD4 M (#)

3t B 5 T A AR A B A A B
RINTER ZFABLVD LB 2
e T (L 369 M

2019 2018
SEAE BN
HK$’000 HK$’000
WWTE T

(9,341) 3,463
50% 50%
- 1,732

BHE-_ZX—-NLFET+_H=1+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

22A.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unlisted investments: FEEHHRE:

— Equity investments — kA E

— Fund investments —HEHE
Debts instruments EHTH

— Bonds listed in Hong Kong —FE EHES

The unlisted equity securities at fair value represent investments
in equity securities issued by private companies. The directors of
the Company estimated the fair value of these securities is HK$Nil
because of the underperformance of that private company. An
aggregate of fair value loss of approximately HK$1,140,000 is
recognised in other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The unlisted fund investments at fair value represent the investments
place to a private funds incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received
distributions of approximately HK$565,000 (2018: HK$4,524,000)
from the fund investments, out of which approximately HK$555,000
(2018: HK$4,406,000) was return of capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed a
private fund with carrying value of approximately HK$156,000
to an independent third party at a consideration of approximately
HK$273,000, resulting a fair value gain of approximately
HK$117,000 is recognised in the other comprehensive income.

22A. ¥% 03 SU B A wE O\ 3L At 4 i ik 4%
Z & il

2019 2018

R F )4

Notes HK$°000 HKS$’000
R 5 T ou ki aT
a — —

b 20 7,125

20 7,125

9,567 -

9,587 7,125

a. WA REEREZIE EATRAE SR
TAFL AN R B AT 2 AR RS S 2 0 -
A % AL N A A AN E
HF RSB RE A REE R
Zn-BE_F-NFET_HA=1+—
H k47 B > 2\ Fo M (B s 18 48 A8 40 s
1,140,000 1 - A 2 187 Uiz 45 1A 752 o

b. EAAMMEFRZIE EHESRER
T B 2 T B R S, 2 FA S5 2 e 2 4%
%o

PR E—F—JLEF_A=+—H
Ak 4R BE > A 4R I i B 4 1% ) TR
#19 5565,0007T ( & — /4« ik s
4,524,0007%) - H > ) 4 #6555,000
I (=% — J\4FE < ik 154,406,000 )
By G AR IR

REE-F—NFE T H=T—HIt
R AREE M — A BWLE = E
S T P 40 7% 156,000 00 1 FA B2 FE 4
A 4 7 H5 ¥ 273,00000 > A A0 fE
{E Wi 35 40 ¥ 5 117,00070 7 H: At 4 T
Wi g A ffE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

22A.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has accepted
the offer from Convoy Collateral Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, an independent party to purchase
all of the shares of an unlisted investment fund at a disposal price
of HK$6.6 million (“Disposal Price”) by cash settlement in 34
instalments from March 2019 to December 2021. As at 31 December
2018, the fair value of the unlisted investment fund has been
discounted to a present value of the Disposal Price amounting to
HK$5,334,000, using a pre-tax discount rate.

For the remaining unlisted investment funds, the management had
determined a fair value loss of approximately HK$1,049,000 by
reference to valuations carried out by an independent qualified

professional valuer.

22B. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

22A. 3% 03 SU B AR wE O\ B At 4 i ik 4%
ZmmE R ()

(b)

(#)

WEE-Z—NFE+ZA=+—HIk
AR AR B B AN H R S A R
S T] (— [ A 7 s i ST Y A PR
Al —HWSLET A ) B A - 4%
B ([ &) # %56,600,0007T
B R T A R A B A R > DA
AN R34 (A =F—JL
EZAFFE - —FE+ ) e
W_E—NE+_H=+—H %KL
7 4B 4 N Fe B (B E A Bl Al R
B2 B 2 4 1 A s 5,334,000
S

PRl SR e A TR
Jig 68 2 5 1) Sr 4 A Sl (L T B
JE F) A L 76 A2 > 70 AR (L S R 4 o
1,049,0007C °

22B. ¥ 0 B R AR 2 & E

B

8 H e~ REEF AR R EZ &

i E

2019 2018
SRRE AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT

Listed investments held for trading: FEEEZ EHHE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — s bR AR 5 21,247 24,831

23. OTHER ASSETS 23. A # E

Other assets included statutory deposits with the Stock

Exchange and clearing house amounting to approximately
HK$230,000 (2018: HK$230,000) as at 31 December 2019
and are non-interest bearing.

232
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24.

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
— Non-financial services business
Less: Allowance for credit losses

— Financial services business
— Dealing in securities
— Cash clients
— Margin clients
— Clearing house

Less: Allowance for credit losses

o

o i ket (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

24.
JE A R
B
25.
e WA R K
— F <& Pl AR B S5

90 TR

— e AR T
— R B
~Be%F
—RiBEEF
— R

IERENY EE L]

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to approximately
HK$12,572,000 and approximately HK$17,516,000

respectively.

7R

2019 2018
“R A ZF AR
HK$’000  HKS$’000
wWTX BT
- 2,000
1,036 2,297
1,036 4,297

Wi B sk
2019 2018
“EE SF o NF
HK$’000  HKS$’000
#WTx BT
24,148 19,568
(12,641) (4,036)
11,507 15,532
127 35
943 1,966
1,070 2,001
&) a7
1,065 1,984
12,572 17,516

WoE—NERE—/NE+ A
=t—H>REEF GBI
Koy A & By T H612,572,0007C M &)
#%17,516,0007C °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —2E— L4 1 —H =1 —H I F/&
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(a) Non-financial services business
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date:

0 — 90 days 0-90K
91 — 180 days 91-180°K
181 — 365 days 181-365°K

The Group’s trading terms with its customers from the
non-financial services business are mainly on credit.
The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 to
60 days (2018: 30 to 60 days) to its trade customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and the management regularly
reviews the overdue balances.

234 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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PR fE S R B R R

S i o A
2019 2018
“EAE SEE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T oo T T
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2,004 6,048
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11,507 15,532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Non-financial services business (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$10,693,000 (2018:
HK$9,251,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, approximately
HK$2,004,000 (2018: HK$2,166,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2019, the management considers
that the trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers and to be
of a good credit quality.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group had not recognised an allowance for credit
losses relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances nor did it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

25. BEWCR K (4

(a) FEmliRBEEB (4)

N R —-ETFH =
H o 5k A 7 42 B R Wi R 3K &5
A H I a2 e
WK T - KRR T E A S s N
10,693,00070 ( & — /U4
# %9,251,0007C ) ° i E 1
&5 B o 4 W 2,004,0007T
(=& — VA ¥ %2,166,000
Jt) B 90K 5 DL F > 3% K
TR ASLAE A8 4 o 2 48 18 I
A% SE B BR A A AT HE A 5 o

R E—AEF A=
H o o SR B L I A
L H P R R
HE i HE A5 0 0 R A0 -

R-F-AFE+_A=+—
H 7 it JU) A 28 30 Y WA i
P L BIEF AR %%
BFHAEE 2 fE Rk R
o > WA B 1 1 R e R A
TR o AR 1 A B A
JE RS - B ZH A% 55 45 AR A
WE A R A EEE R
MR E) - H AR PR AR
AT A ROl [a] o A 4R ) S 4 A
S A R A A TR i B A
{5 B0 988 4 R > S 5 3 HE R
RSB A 42 F 4 KB 7 2 AT AT K
JH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. MEWIR X (4 )

(a) Non-financial services business (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

Overdue by: e
1 — 90 days 1290k
Over 90 days 90K

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

Balance at beginning of the year R A R
Impairment losses recognised on L WS K T A R
receivables B E TR

Foreign currency translation reserve AWt
Balance at end of the year ARG B

As at 31 December 2019, included in the allowance
for credit losses are impaired trade receivables based
on individually assessment and provision matrix,
with aggregate balance of HK$11,671,000 (2018:
HK$4,036,000) and HK$970,000 (2018: HKS$Nil)
respectively. The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables are not expected to be
recovered.
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(a) FEEmMRBEE ()

480 301 I A 9 L B B 0 P B

2019 2018

B NE T N\E
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T

8,689 7,085
2,004 2,166
10,693 9,251
G RG2S
2019 2018

B —NE —F— )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

4,036 1,294
8,797 2,928
(192) (186)
12,641 4,036

WEE-NUET A=
H > st A GG HEEE 2 &8
J 5 AR R A % A8 A4 i e
P 2 O W (E R BRI > A R
KRS Al 7 U5 511,671,000
(= F — )\« # %54,036,000
Jt) M it %970,0000C ( &
— /AW EI) fAe
ok {1 B AT MR Ak B B 1B ) 2 %
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Financial services business

The settlement terms of trade receivables arising from
the ordinary course of financial services business of
dealing in securities from cash clients and clearing
house are two days after trade date.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit risk
and the overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain the margin
facilities for securities trading. At 31 December
2019, loans to margin clients are secured by clients’
securities pledged as collateral with market value of
approximately HK$7,477,400 (2018: HK$6,767,800).
Management has assessed the market values of the
pledged securities of each individual client who has
margin shortfall at the end of each reporting period.
The margin loans are repayable on demand and bear
variable interest at commercial rates. No aged analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of securities margin
business.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, arising from cash clients
and clearing house, including those which are past due
but not impaired at the end of each of the reporting
period, based on the trade date are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired S 30 3 7 ek (L
Past due but not impaired: 7 I H R M
Over 3 months 3E A ULk

25. MEWCHRK (A7)
(b) 4 il R 5 3% %

HEe® P RAGR P8R 5 IE
4 Al R 5 S AR AR v i A
F) B SR ) A SR B R 2% 22 5
HAZ WK o

AR T BT 3 A 1 7 B USRS
TRFF B B 7 > DL B RS
B B - 7a B 45 K G PR
E B -

R 8K F AR5 75 1K
T N LN A
BORERRE - R ZF—JLE
+-H=+—H - BEEF
B & PR AE 5 K
(0 75 A EHEAH > T4 A W W
7,477,40070 ( & — )\4F i
#6,767,8007C) ° & H @ B FF
A T 5 R R A DR < e R
1) #5118 Fl 22 57 1) 2R 40 3 5 1Y)
T {E o PR a8 & Bk B He B R
Y &L THE V| By S G|
AR T 58 5 MR A 3 T B
A 5 R A SRS 1 M R T NI
40 T BE AME > WO S B
HR 84 2 7

R B4 5 P BT A 0 BR
{5 B0 15 38 4 1R 2 B SR Ak
(BRI & 3o R 2 E

R ) B 5) F 9
B A7 01

2019 2018

SR CF AR

HK$°000 HK$’000

WL BT

5 17

5 17
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Financial services business (Continued)

238

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$5,000 (2018:
HK$17,000) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, approximately HK$5,000
(2018: HK$17,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default as the client have no
past default history.

As at 31 December 2019, receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired represent unsettled trades
transacted on the last two days prior to the end of each
reporting period and it also relate to a wide range of
independent clients for whom there was no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2019, receivables that were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to independent clients that have good track
records with the Group or are subsequently settled.
When cash clients fail to settle on the settlement date,
the Group has the right to sell the purchased securities
of the respective transaction. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the purchased securities and past
collection history of each client.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

Balance at beginning of the year R 4 R
Amounts recovered during the year A A R ] 2 3ROH
Balance at end of the year R & R

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
loss of trade receivables of approximately HK$12,000
(2018: HK$57,000) was recovered and reversed, and no
credit losses was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 26.
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi 5 R % A B
Loans and interest receivables from KE—HEEEER

a joint venture R Wi Bk e ) R
Less: Allowance for credit losses WS B IR A
Analysed as: M By

Current )]

Non-current Ik I B

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans and interest receivables so as to minimise
credit risk. The granting of loans is subject to approval
by the credit committee, whilst overdue balances are
reviewed regularly for recoverability. At 31 December 2019,
loans receivables are charging on effective interest rates
mutually agreed with the contracting parties, ranging from
approximately 5% to 24% (2018: 5% to 24%) per annum.

At 31 December 2019, loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$8,320,000 (2018: approximately
HK$8,281,000) were secured by a property in Hong Kong.

e 5k % B
2019 2018
SERE SFNE
HK$°000 HK$’000
W TR T
71,019 91,487
2,090 2,841
(6,304) (6.907)
66,305 87,421
56,749 79,391
10,056 8,030
66,805 87,421

7 A [ B ) R AR R T B Bk K
FIEHERr B A BE 1 > TSR M5 B
B 2 ik - I ERAREESR
B e e s g7 AR B I A A R
B B AT iR EAT AR T o R
—NWFE+A=+—H > B
F 7T 4) 77 M B T 2 2 E BE R T
BN TFHEFESEE4E (ZF
— \4E 5[ FE24JH)

WoFE—-NET+A=+—H JE
Wi B 3k K A B & W H58,320,0007T
(=F— \4F : #9¥58,281,0007T )
T 335 M A W 2 W) SEAE A -
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26. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26.

A maturity profile of the loans and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the maturity date,
net of provision, is as follows:

JE Wik B D B ()

AR BA AR 3 I B B 8] 5 2 Rl
I AE (Fn R4 20181 DL an
T

0-90 days 0290k
91-180 days 91 £ 180K
Over 180 days A 180K

The aging analysis of loans and interest receivables that are

not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 7 1 I A ek
Past due but not impaired e 4 H (H R e (E

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s loans and

2019 2018
. 'S e SN
HK$°000 HK$’000
wWTL BT
25,425 39,448
18,953 17,681
22,427 30,292
66,805 87,421

WA 25y S 6 Jel (L 2 B WAL K B A1)LB

Z RIS AR
2019 2018
B —NE —F— )\
HK$°000 HK$’000
Y ST T T
66,515 85,101
290 2,320
66,805 87,421

B RE T A= —H o at

interest receivables balance are receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$290,000 (2018:
HK$2,320,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, no loans and interest
receivables (2018: HK$2,296,000) has been past due 90 days
or more and is not considered as in default.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

26. BEWCE K KA L (;

As at 31 December 2019, loans and interest receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified
customers for whom there were no recent history of default.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
loans and interest receivables as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. Past due but not impaired relate
to loans and interest receivable owed from a customer and
was subsequently settled.

Movements in the Group’s impairment loss recognised of
loans and interest receivables are as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year ) & R
Impairment loss recognised Ol R I (E s 4R
Written-off i 574

Balance at end of the year R R

As at 31 December 2019, loans and interest receivables of
approximately HK$6,201,000 (2018: HK$6,804,000) was
individually impaired. The total amount of the provision was
approximately HK$6,304,000 (2018: HK$6,907,000). This
was related to a customer for whom the directors are of the
view that the collection of this loans and interest receivable
was not probable.

AZE—NEFT_A=+—H %
% 0 7 A Y1 2 R Ak e LIS
Ty B 310 e X R sk 2 2ok &
FHRB -ALNRERRE HRE
BB FR I A T R A ) AR BE 4 BR AT
Ry ] 8 ol [ o e A R A % S
JRE Wi B A B A R RHR U B - B
8 E I SR (E 2 A R ) B — 2
J5 #i R 2 B B AR % R B A B -
e HRCEE-

LA 4 T R A LB i R 2 Bk
EREEZEH T

2019 2018
—JUE E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T %W T oo
6,907 103
6,201 6,804
(6,804) -
6,304 6,907

WoFE—HEFA=+—H
Wi B 3k K A B A W %56,201,0000T
(=& — \4E i %6,804,0007T )
EMB S E BEASELSAE
#6,304,0000C ( —F — /\ 4 i 1
6,907,0007C) ° 3% 55 K IH Bl — 44 3
5 L JE T A ] % M A B R B R R
ZERFEAH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

27.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments
Deposits and other receivables (Note)

Deposits and other receivables included

under non-current assets

FEA TR E) B E
$ 4 B At JE W3R

Current portion included under current assets w1 A Ji B & & Z B HA K 7

Note:

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and deposits
were rental deposits and other receivables amount to approximately
HK$1,537,000 (2018: HK$ Nil) and approximately HK$6,846,000 (2018:
HK$ Nil) respectively, which are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses after more than one year. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within

27. ¥4~ TR B AL fth Ok

2019 2018
“E-hE T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT oo

1,180 1,916
23,118 9,610
24,298 11,526
(8,383) -
15,915 11,526

A A (9] (1 HL At R SRR T~ LA R T R e
455 L 4 92 4 S Ath B W5 IE > 4 Bl 2 44
W #1,537,00070 (& — /\4E b i Eo0)
Fe 4975 156,846,0007C ( & — /4 : iEHEE
JG) > 39 TE A — AR AR i (e SR R Ay B S o
JIT A Lt o R T At i T T A

one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and deposits were
loan to joint venture amount to approximately to HK$2,080,000 (2018:
HK$2,800,000), which is unsecured, carried interest rate of 9% per annum

and repayable on 18 December 2020.

242 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2019

— A T i [ e R A B S

AR A (B0 114 At 8B A R T~ TS R S A 4
542 T & 78 A 20 8 34 ¥ 12,080,0000T
(= F—)\4F : #%52,800,00070) - 5% 5% &K
Ty AR A~ $ B AR % T Bl i & AR
A+ CH R



28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK 28. BH4&RBAZEY (&t

ACCOUNTS

Cash and cash equivalents

fRRERITIRS

Trust bank accounts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group,
deposits placed with securities brokers and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank balances that earn interest at floating rate based on
daily bank deposit rates and short term time deposits that
earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates. The
bank balances and short term time deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents and trust bank accounts of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$120,000 (2018: HK$363,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’
s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The Group maintains trust bank accounts with authorised
financial institutions to receive and hold money deposited
by clients in the course of the conduct of the regulated
activities. These clients’ monies are maintained in one or
more trust bank accounts and bear interest at commercial
rate. The Group has recognised the corresponding trade
payables to respective clients. The Group currently does not
have an enforceable right to offset those payables with the
deposits placed.

Bla kBEEED

;Y=
2019 2018
B -NE T 4E
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T T
29,689 68,576
10,689 22,996
40,378 91,572

B KB B S5 E Y 18 A B P £+
B A7 WO 78 I3 KA 2 A7 K R
T =8 A B Lk B 2 JE W SRAT A
o RIEE HRIT A RA R R
BRI B 2 SRAT &5 B M %45 1 S
T KM S B A B 2 E A
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T Sl 4 20 3 46 X % LA B R A
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B AT R BB E ) > AR [ W] 9
A HE AT A1 R S5 R SR AT A AR
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
— Non-financial services business
— Financial services business (Note (ii))
Dealing in securities
— Cash clients
— Margin clients
— Clearing house
— Asset management
Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities

Notes:

29. JEAF MR sk e 3L A HE £F 5% I

JRE A5t Bz K
— JF < il e 5 26 5

— & MR SR (BERE b))

H O gy
—HexF
—RBEEEF
— AR
—HEEH

At B A 3RO B TEH AR 28

FHAM

(i) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from non-

financial services business, presented based on invoice date at the end

of the reporting period:

0 — 90 days
91 — 180 days
Over 180 days
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090K
91 % 180K
180K

B3

()

2019 2018
“ERE CE N
HK$°000  HK$'000
W T T T
8,369 5.058
7,690 16,201
1,887 5,917
156 938
574 923
12,294 8,490
746 305
31,716 37,832
AR 78 0 e B I 25
3 2 9 2 R S5 2 M M e 2
B4 47
2019 2018
R
HK$’000 HK$’000
i -7 T
6,766 1,211
79 933
1,524 2,914
8,369 5,058
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30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financialftatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)  The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the ordinary
course of financial services business of dealing in securities are two

days after trade date.

Trade payables to clients bear variable interest at commercial rates,
and are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view
of the nature of business. At 31 December 2019, the trade payables
amounting to approximately HK$10,689,000 (2018: HK$22,996,000)
were payable to clients in respect of the trust and segregated
bank balances received which are held for clients in the course of
conducting the regulated activities. However, the Group currently
does not have an enforceable right to offset these payables with the
deposits placed.

AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE

The amount due was non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$4,717,000 (2018: HK$8,699,000)
arising from subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong
which are available for setting off against future taxable
profit of that subsidiary and due to expire within one to
five years and estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$31,148,000 (2018: HK$104,024,000) available for offset
against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Other
temporary difference is not material.

29.

30.

31.
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. MiEAR
2019
ZE M
HK$’000
T
Lease liabilities payable: JRE A1 L 5 £ 1K
Within one year —4E N 19,416
Within a period of more than one year I — AR (H DA W 4R
but not more than two years 10,661
Within a period of more than two years A8 7 AR (H D R AR
but not more than five years 6,807
36,884
Less: Amount due for settlement W B i B AR R 128 H A
with 12 months shown under current liabilities B HA 45 5 0 R (19,416)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months FIA I T By B AR R 121/ H &
shown under non-current liabilities 2 19 48 B oA 17,468

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

As at 31 December 2019 Wo_EZ—-NWE+_H=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

33. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
5 i v 00,0150 19 ¥ 7 i

Authorised:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Share consolidation (Note (iii))
Share sub-division (Note (iii))

At 31 December 2019

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2018

Issue of placing shares (Note (1))
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (Note (ii))
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
Share consolidation (Note (iii))

At 31 December 2019

Notes:

(i) Issue of placing shares

33. A

Y
N — N\E—H—H-

ZE-NEFTZA=Z+— K

—“E—FE—H—H
WA B (B 5E iii) )
Fe 3 4 4 (B 5 i) )

R-FE-NEFTZA=1T—H

CRITACHL:
R_FE—NFE—~H—H

AT E B (B EEG))
A7 [ B P8 WEE AR B AT B A
(Bt 5 Gi) )

REF-NFF+ZA=+—HE

—“E—JLFE—H—H
WA A B (B 5T i) )

RE-F—-AE+ZA=1+—H

On 24 May 2018, the Company completed the placing of an aggregate
of 184,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
to not less than six placees through placing agent at HK$0.10 per
ordinary share. The net proceeds from the placing of shares amounted

to approximately HK$17,585,000.

Wi

()

Number Share
of shares capital
JBe oy i H JBe AR

’000 HK$’000
T T
100,000,000 1,000,000
(87,500,000) -
87,500,000 -
100,000,000 1,000,000
993,596 9,936
184,500 1,845
46,140 461
1,224,236 12,242
(1,071,207) (10,712)
153,029 1,530
47 L A5 I

AT — \ERH +MUH> AN
75 38 i 5 QB DA 3 8 I 7S 10,10
G ) K 58 B 1] AS 2D 1R 7S 48 7K R A
fic & & 3£184,500,000 /8% 45 /% i (& #5
#50.01 70 1 A8 2 7] 5 48 i o fic B 11 1
) T A5 K JE U R £ A7 917,585,000
j‘Eo
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

248

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 46,140,000 ordinary
shares were issued upon the exercise of a total of 46,140,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$0.1072 per share, giving rise to
aggregate net proceeds of approximately HK$4,946,000.

Capital reorganisation

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 27 May 2019, the
special resolution approving the capital reorganisation comprising the
share consolidation, the capital reduction and the share sub-division
was duly passed by way of poll and took effect on 28 May 2019.

The capital reorganisation involved,
(1) Share consolidation

Every 8 issued and unissued then existing shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company were
consolidated into 1 consolidated share of par value of HK$0.08
each.

(2) Capital reduction

The par value of each of the then issued consolidated shares
were reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the
paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.07
on each of the then issued consolidated shares, the credits
arising from (a) such reduction of the paid up capital; and (b)
the cancellation of any fractional consolidated share in the
issued share capital of the Company which may arise from the
share consolidation, which together, amount to approximately
HK$10,712,000, were credited to the contributed surplus
account of the Company.

(3)  Share sub-division
Each of the then authorised but unissued consolidated shares of

par value of HK$0.08 each was sub-divided into 8 new shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

33. A ()

(i)

(iii)

(#)
AT 5 N JB MO 4% 9% 47 B A

WEE-F—NE+_H=+—H
1k 4E 5 46,140,000 8% % 48 B A LA
A7 (618 4 s %50, 107208 47 i & 3t
46,140,000 /B H R 2547 BT 2 A= 2
JT 75 K JEL R AR AR AR A 2 W 154,946,000
=

Jbe As AL

RER —F—NFEDH —+-EH#AT
IR A R g R A A (R
15 B 43 OF ~ e AS 1 98B e 3 7 A
R e 58 DA SR SR T U IE
i, R —F—FERA A
A2 o

Jie A o A LA
a Rt E o

AR ] e AR Hp RS A R T (B
s #0.0100 2 B 34T IR B 4T
R RE A R B A DE B
J& T {E ¥ %°0.0870 2 A HF B

o
@ AN

7 Tk S AR N B SR A (DA
B 1 IR B AT D I A v T
0.0776 45 FR) - A% 15 1B IRF £ 3%
114 OF B 03 2 T A B ¥ %50.08
JC M 6 2 i #0.017T > [ (a)iZ
19 L A AR 5 S (b)sk 85 A
&34 B 1 RT RE 2 AR 2 AR
AT B A AT o] F RS IF
By 2 A 2 R R A L A S
10,712,0007C &7 A 28 24 & 4 A
BRI -

3) RGN

A i T8 B U5 50,08 7T 2 H R ik
FEH R BEAT A DR B AR 2 4F 58
J A B T L ¥ %50.01 08 2 87 ik

,f/\o



34.

RESERVES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

34. Gkt

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 123 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value. The application
of the share premium account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from
share capital and share premium due to capital reorganisation
comprising the share consolidation, the capital reduction and
the share subdivision.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) and special general meeting
(“SGM”) held on 24 April 2014 and 3 February 2016
respectively and took effect on 5 June 2014 and 4 February
2016, the directors were authorised to use HK$195,134,000
and HK$15,782,000 credit balances in the contribution
surplus account result from the reduction of the paid-up
capital of the Company to eliminating or setting off the
accumulated losses of the Company. Pursuant to a SGM
held on 27 May 2019, the special resolution approving the
capital reorganisation comprising the share consolidation,
the capital reduction and the share sub-division was duly
passed by way of poll and took effect on 28 May 2019. Up to
the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$210,916,000 (2018:
HK$210,916,000) credit balances in the contribution surplus
account were used to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arises from (i) capitalisation of a loan
and represents the difference between the amount due to a
former beneficial shareholder capitalised and the nominal
value of shares; and (ii) the expiry of conversion option of
convertible bonds and warranty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

34.

RESERVES (Continued)
PRC statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate
at least 10% of its after-tax profit, based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
and financial regulations applicable to PRC enterprises, to
the general reserve until the balance of the fund reaches
50% of the PRC subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter,
any further appropriation can be made at the directors’
discretion. The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the capital
on the condition that the general reserve shall be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such
increase.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve comprises the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted to
executive directors, employees and consultants of the Group
that has been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations.

FVTOCI reserve

The reserve represents cumulate gains and losses arising on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3s.

Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2013.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible persons, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for the shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and options which may be granted under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue on 30 September
2013 unless the Company obtains a refresh approval from its
shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company under which such options are granted, as
the case may be, shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating whether the limit has been exceeded.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options which
may be granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time
to time. No options may be granted under any share option
schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing from 30 September 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

3s.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as determined by the board of directors in
its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant
option but in any case the subscription price shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal
value of a share. The options must be taken up within 21
days from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified by
the directors to each grantee, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer of the grant of the
options but shall end in any event not later than ten years
from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to encourage the
participants, including employees, business associates and
trustees, to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and at the same time allow the participants to enjoy
the results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions and to provide the participants with incentives
and help the Company in retaining its existing employees
and recruiting additional employees.

No participant shall be granted an option if the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant to such participant would exceed 1% of the
shares for the time being in issue unless the proposed grant
has been approved by the shareholders in general meeting
with the proposed grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting. A circular must be sent to the shareholders of the
Company disclosing the identity of the proposed grantee, the
number and terms of the options granted and to be granted.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
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35. It il 2 5 (4)

(Continued)

Where any grant of option is to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an independent non-executive Director or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
and the proposed grant of option, when aggregated will result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HKS$5 million, then such proposed grant of option(s) must
be subject to approval by shareholders on a poll in a general
meeting where all connected persons (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company must abstain from voting in
favour at such general meeting (except where such connected
person(s) (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) intend(s) to
vote against the proposed grant of option(s) and his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular).

Details of specific categories of the share options granted by
the Company are as follows:
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3s.

254

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Name of Grantee

HEAEA
Directors:

Mr. N.g Man Chun Paul
L3¢ §i

Mr. Ng Ting Ho
REHREL

Sub-total

it
Employees

B8

Sub-total

NGt
Other eligible persons:

KA ERAL:
Consultants

L]

Directors of a subsidiary

WA

Sub-total

i
Total

£

Weighted average exercise price
Exercisable at the end of the year

Option
Type

e B

2017 Apil
ZF-tEmA
2017 April

“F-Lm

2017 April
“Z-tENA
2017 November

A

2017 April
“Z-tEmA
2017 November
“E-tEt-A
2017 April
ZF-tEmA
2017 November

e A

iR
R T friE

Date of Grant

pLE]

7 April 2017
“Z-tENALA
7 April 2017
“E-LEMALH

7 April 2017
“E-tENALA
21 November 2017

ZE-tE-At-R

7 April 2017
“E-LEMALH

21 November 2017
“F-tEt-AZt-R
7 April 2017
“Z-tENALA

21 November 2017

e A
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Exercisable Period

A

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
ZE-LENALRE
ZE-NEMAAR
7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“E-tEMALHE
“F-\ENAAR

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“T— N EAE
“Z-NEMARE

21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
SRt t-RE
e SN2l e

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
ZE-LEMALRE
- EMAARHE
21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
Bt g I
e S5 ol o
7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“F-tEMALAE
“Z-NENARA
21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
I S v 1 i 0 2
R MEF-AZFH

Exercise
price

per share
AT

HKSH 50,1072

HKSHH0.107278

HKSH 80,1072

HKS1 H0.086070

HKSHH0.10727¢

HKSH H0.08607C

HKSi 80,1072

HKSH#EH0.08607C

35. Mt fhsk 2 5 (4)

Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at

1 January during during during 31 December

2018 the year the year the year 2018

REZ- N5 KB
-1 2Rt
AL iR LG ERER HAR B
7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
15,380,000 - (15,380,000) - -
7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
30,760,000 - (7,690,000) (23,070,000) -
15,380,000 - (15,380,000) - -
46,140,000 - (23,070,000) (23,070,000) -
69,210,000 - (46,140,000) (23,070,000) -
HRSIER0.10727C - HksERolnE  HKSEF0L077 -
69,210,000 -
— —
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme
for both years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. Out of the
share options granted in 2017, 46,140,000 share options has
been exercised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share Option Scheme was Nil.

The fair value of the share options granted to employees
and directors was determined using the Binomial Model.
Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has
been adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including
the probability of meeting market conditions attached to the
option), and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility

Exercise multiple

Risk-free interest rate

Expected dividend yield

& A fE
1118

T R

A7 (A5 8

4 Ja oz 7|
S

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant. No
share options were outstanding at 31 December 2019 and
2018.
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Option type
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PENSION SCHEMES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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36. BIkEFE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a central defined contribution
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
central pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to all retired employees and the Group
has no further obligations for the pension payments on post-
retirement benefits beyond the monthly contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, defined
contribution retirement benefits expenses of approximately
HKS$1,804,000 (2018: HK$824,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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37.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

A subsidiary of the Group is licensed with SFC for the
business it operates in. The Group’s licensed subsidiary is
subject to liquid capital requirements under Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted
by the SFC. Under SF(FR)R, the licensed subsidiary must
maintain a liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of
its total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid capital level
of the licensed subsidiary to ensure compliance with the
requirements under the SF(FR)R.
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37. BAREM (4)

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:

Debts (=0

Equity (Note) wEa (fEE)
Gearing ratio EAAELE
Note:

Equity includes all capital and reserve attributable to owners of the
Company.

AEBMEREAABREERERE
A o A J BB A B — R A AR
% E A A DL B A B E A 1A

o L gt -
EAR R R

RS IR EA AR

b

2019 2018
TR JUE F 4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T
136,726 243,416
N/AABEH NA A% H

HE A5 45 A R A HE A Y 2 o A

it =

BREBLEERAD
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. &R LH
38.1 Categories of financial instruments 38.1 ik T HER
Financial assets & F
2019 2018
“E g ZF— N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Fair value through profit or loss &2\ A& (H 71 A 18 7
(FVTPL): (T EFA A7) -
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL i | #% 2\ 7 (B (6 71 A 18 7 il %2
Held-for-trading FIEEE 21,247 24,831
Loans and receivables: Bk R E A
Other assets Fo A & 230 3,167
Trade receivables JFEE Wi H 3k 12,572 17,516
Loans and interest receivables AT B2 K % A S 66,805 87,421
Deposits and other receivables Fiz 4 I L At 1R i R IA
(included in financial assets) (FFA & Rl&E =) 23,118 8,241
Trust bank accounts fERESRITIRF 10,689 22,996
Cash and cash equivalents e KR EEEY 29,689 68,576
Investments: BE -
Financial assets at fair value Fe 5 S AEAE FT A H A A TH
through other comprehensive W A 2 4 RlE
income 9,587 7,125
Financial liabilities A
Financial liabilities at amortised — & #E5 AN 71 52 2 2 [
cost: =¥
Financial liabilities included in & A JEAT R 3K S o Ath 8 £5)
trade and other payables PIH 2 4 AR 23,023 35,309
Amount due to a joint venture JE AT — ] & & A 2 3K E - 56
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 BA s JEL B AF P H A K iR

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, other
assets, trade receivables, loans and interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trust bank accounts,
cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, trade and other
payables, and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

AEHZ FEEHM T AGRE
A RBEEF ABRLZ &M
B H A E R OR ARC
B ST B R B )R ~ e R A
WSO IA ~ {5 FERATHRE ~
& MBEFEY - %A REE
FEAH: A 2 T R AR 2 A
FEE ~ B AT B e A A<t 3R
LB ARE - %5 e TR
wF TR A A B B G B R < BL%
S5l T B A R 1 Je B T
Je B (TR Bt~ ) 3R L B B
HoAte B A% LR )~ 1R 5L B K
U B A o A R B0 T A
% S5 JE R B4 BRSO R 3 e A
B ) B A P I B % A TR
Bax > e A B IR A A b PR IO
1 it -

7 4 [ e 4 b L T 2 L
FRU lCHC A8 B B 8 % 56 SR
Z I S ) o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk

262

Foreign currency risk management

Transactional currency exposures arise from
revenue or cost of sales by operating units
in currencies other than the unit’s functional
currency. Substantially all the Group’s revenue
and cost of sales are denominated in the functional
currency of the operating units making the
revenue, and substantially all the cost of sales are
denominated in the operating unit’s functional
currency. Accordingly, the directors consider that
the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group are exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rates bank deposits and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate loans receivables. The
directors continues to monitor the interest rate
exposure of the Group.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 [ R B B H A K SR
(Continued) (#E)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 3821707 53 ) Bz (#%)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

All of the Group’s loans receivables are based
on fixed interest rates with original maturities
in range of 3 to 240 months (2018: 6 to 300
months). The Group prices these loans receivables
strategically to reflect market fluctuations and
achieve a reasonable interest-rate spread.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest rates.

Changes in market interest rates may affect the
Group’s securities margin financing business
and the Group mitigates this risk by revising the
margin financing rate as and when appropriate.

Interest rates on bank deposits are relatively low
and not expected to change significantly.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact on interest-bearing financial assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates and considers
the risk is insignificant to the Group.

R 3l B B (A

A 45 [ BT A RE B K A
[ 5 F 2R > JE 4R ) AR
RF3E240M A (&
— J\4E 1 623001 H ) »
A SE B A R w5 % 5E
JRE B RR e > DA S B T
5 0% Bl K 3G N A
R o

AL 2 EMRT R
B 7 45 B 2 2 AT o] 52 )
7 A R

R RIUES X(ah-5 2 FS
5 B 2 w5 I AR B R
WS AL EB R E
18P0 Sk pR A e
bt =R & % 1 R g

AT A7 3K AR K
AT AHERES -

LT > MR A
GHFEEMEREEL
EPNS 2 B )0
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued)

264

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. In addition, the
Group has appointed a team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/lower (2018:
15% higher/lower):

. post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$2,584,000 (2018: HK$3,110,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading equity investments.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties are arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the credit sales of goods to customers, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as the top
5 credit sales customers related to non-financial
services business and accounted for approximately
79% (2018: 30%) of the Group’s trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Regular review and follow up actions are carried
out on overdue amounts to minimise the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. An aging analysis of
the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is
closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors.

38. &Rt TH (%)

38.2 BA s JEL B AF P H A K iR

38.2.2 15 B8 B B PE % ik 1 77
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

266

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables arising from
financial services business, the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of trading limits, trading approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover outstanding balances.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of
each of reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Margin calls are made when the
outstanding balances due from clients exceed their
respective limits with consideration of the quality,
liquidity and price volatility of individual stock,
and the transaction history and credibility of the
clients. Failure to meet margin calls may result in
the prohibition of further purchase of securities or
liquidation of the client’s positions on a case-by-
case basis.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 on trade receivables and loans and
interest receivables individually or based on
provision matrix.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

38.2 BA s JEL B AF P H A K iR

(Continued) (#E)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 1 B b B PE J 0wk A 7F
assessment (Continued) 1 (#)

For deposits and other receivables, trust bank
account and cash and cash equivalents, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model application of HKFRS 9 based on 12 month
ECL.

The credit risk on deposits and other receivables
is limited because the counterparties have no
historical default record and the directors expect
that the general economic conditions will not
significantly changed for the 12 months after the

S % 4B~ Al B iR
T R RESRATIR F M B &
LB A EY) > AL B
A% 7 i o 5 i ot 559
R MG S A
& A #1248 A A5 &
s 182 AT 99 R Al o

4 N H Al R Wi sk TH 2
5 BRI A PR - RS
¥ FJ7 3 488 58 1 7 40
RO Bk > HL3E S T AR AT
PR DU S B R 12

reporting date. 8 A A% A e Bl oK s
i o
The credit risk on trust bank account and cash SEEEITIER MR & &

and cash equivalents are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading

assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

7 A B AT
Low risk

1R /2

Watch list

g

BRLH
Doubtful

s

Loss

i 15
Write-off

s

268
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Description

L

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

B 3 7 B 8 A0 PR 1 > L AT 9

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle after due date

(R AN 76 20 8 B AR S (A R B H AR &5

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

A0 0 A B R AR B A5 R - 4 AR
DA £ 5 B S5 38

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired

RV B

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
serious financing difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
A S R A B A B T Y B R EL A R
R B R A R

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

38. &t TH (4)

38.2 BA s L BE 4F P H A K iR
(#4)

38.2.2 5 B8 B B PE T ik 1 77
1% (#4F)

A 45 W A B B
AR P AG L AE LU B -

Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/

contract assets

HE Bk 0 5

other items

Hft R i/ H A

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

FEBEHEEEHR-RE REATHGEEER
A5 B BE

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL - not credit-  12-month ECL
impaired

T MBI B R A% 120 A NG B R
4 HE

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

T BUNTEN G Bl H— R % AT SR - K%
4 HE 4 5 A

Lifetime ECL - credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-

impaired impaired
FHRMEAGEEBER-C % FAUENGEEER-C %
5 B G

Amount is written off Amount is written off
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 [ R B B H A K SR
(Continued) (#E)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 1 B b B PE J 0wk A 7F
assessment (Continued) 1% (%)
The tables below detail the major credit risk TERAHDBEHEB EE
exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which R e O N S
are subject to ECL assessment: & B A AR
°F
External Internal 2019 2018
Shib ZENAE “E N\
credit credit 12-month or
Note  rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
1200 1 e AU
WEE RS R G REH I T A4 fE M T 4 0
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000

BT BT BT BT

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A R A A2 2

B T
Investment in listed bonds 2A  AA N/A 12-month ECL 9,567 9,567 - -
EfREE TER 12f8 A BAME Bkt

Financial assets at
amortised cost

BB 2 4
Loans and interest receivables 26 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 52,060 37414
R H RIS L [0S 12f8 A BAME Bkt

Watch list 12-month ECL 6,425 44,871

ERAE 128 A B Bl

Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit 8,320 5,136

fit impaired)

FRESTENERER
(Al )

Loss Credit-impaired 6,304 73,109 6,907 94,328

i {ERERA
Trust bank accounts 28 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 10,689 10,689 22,996 22,996
(FRERATIRF i ¥l 128 A B 5 Bl

BRERREERAD
—s—neam 2069
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

270

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Note
Bt
Cash and cash equivalents 28
ReRBeEEY
Deposits and other receivables 27
fk g RAMEGOR
Trade receivables 25
— Non-financial services business
e W — < RS 2 7
Trade receivables 25

- Financial services business

B R o — A S

External Internal

Shib
credit
rating

& feit

AA+

N/A
A

N/A
A

N/A
A

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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credit
rating

B

N/A
R

Low risk

(il

(Note 1)
(Hf7ED)

Watch list
BERLE

Loss

E#
Watch list

EREE

Doubtful

23

12-month or
lifetime ECL
12 3 e B
HHEEER

12-month ECL
12f8 A B85 Skt

12-month ECL
12f8 A B85 Skt

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
FRNTENERER

(B (AR

12-month ECL
1A BN EER

Credit impaired

s SEwfi

Lifetime ECL (not credit
impaired)

FREENGERER
(o e f R D)

Lifetime ECL (not credit
impaired)

FREFENGERER
(AR5 B

s TTH ()

38.2 BA s L BE 4F P H A K iR

(%)

38.2.2 5 B8 B B PE T ik 1 77

1 (4

2019
SRR

Gross carrying amount

L
HKS 000
AT 7
29,689

23,118

11,519

958

11,671

943

127

HKS'000
T T

29,689

23,118

24,148

1,070

2018
ZE N

Gross carrying amount

L
HKS$°000
T T

68,576

8,241

3,674

9,328

6,566

1,966

HK$000
T T

68,576

8,241

19,568

2,001
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Note:

For trade receivables, other than agricultural business
and financial services business, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,

grouped by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to provision food and
beverage of services, alcoholic beverage distribution and
provision of children education services because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for trade receivables which are assessed based
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit
impaired).

38. &t TH (%)

38.2 BA s JEL B AF P H A K iR

(%)

38.2.2 15 B8 B B PE % ik 1 77
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

272

38. &t TH (%)

38.2 BA s L BE 4F P H A K iR

(Continued) (#4)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 1 B b B PE J 0wk A 7T
assessment (Continued) 1 (#)
Note: (Continued) P& (AE)
1. (Continued) (#5)
2019 2018
I S IR: 2 —E— N
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
F 3 i 4H R FEWC I S s 1E R Wi B K
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT W T
Current (not past due) B4 (A ig) 3.37% 3,876 0.1% 1,292
1 — 90 days past due i #1-90K 4.66% 4,667 0.5% 1,674
More than 90 days past due % ] i 90K 52.11% 2,006 1.0% 708
10,549 3,674

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
allowance of trade receivables of approximately
HK$970,000 (2018: HK$Nil) is provided based on the

provision matrix.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 J o ol B PR H A R SR
(%)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.3 Liquidity risk management 3823 Ui B) & & BEE P

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its

I Hw ORI B E &
BEHZ mE L HE
PUE AL EEL - P
LEEMEE KRB &<
EHMGREL-EES
< WL B & B BAE

ago

A 4R 1 Y O J E B B
ZBLR R MR B E &
R TEORHAERF 78 2 B

liquidity requirements in the short and long term. S m e EE R E
BB & e oK o
The following table details, the maturity profile T R FES AL N

of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments.

R AR 9% & %9 oK ]l 83K
THZ & oA R A

/E\O

Effective Total
average On demand Over 2 years contractual Total
interest or less than but within undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year Over 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
IR ok Wil AGHRMNS
- SRk HRUE N E R S4E B E T A4
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$’000
EHT I EHT I EHT L EHT L BRI
At 31 December 2019 REZ-NEFZAZ+—R
Non-derivative financial FEEA N
liabilities
Trade and other payables HEAT AR R LA HE A 50 NAREH 23,023 - - 23,023 23,003
Lease liabilities HEARK 5.47% 20,385 11,574 7,018 38,977 36,884
43,408 11,574 7,018 62,000 59,907
At 31 December 2018 REF-NE+ZA=Z+—H
Non-derivative financial FliitsMAar
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 M A A5 308 NARE R 35,309 - - 35,309 35,300
Amount due to a joint venture JEAT — ¥ 48 A2 HUE NIARE A 56 - = 56 56
35,365 - - 35,365 35,365
REMRBEFIRAD
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets included in Level 1 11535 — @8k 2 & fl &%
N B EFIA B2 4 /g E
20N e ABE HE A HoAth 4 i Uk %5 2

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FEVTOCI
& V&

Financial assets included in level 2 45056 _ B 2 & [l B &=
N REEF A B

Financial assets at FVTPL
& RlE =

Financial assets at FEVTOCI
& RlE =

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the quoted market
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

2 74 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2019 2018
—EFEE 2N
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T A=+ —H IR B
BB R BRI =g
B 2 TR O WA o

RiGERTIGHEZ &M TAZ
N REET RS R 2 T
Gy Bt B o i Wi A8 AT 5 5 K
TE W B 32 5 BT ~ KRS e A
AC AT SE G IR R S
BB T A% S5 R S B
PR R I - R RIS T 2 52
By > i T 35 FU AR 2 15 i o A 4R
B FR A 2 4l B P 2 T
S8 R A - %%
THAERE — k-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

38.3 &t T HZ A RfEMG R

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

(#)

IR BA R E EZ &
& E R 2 A A E
(%)

ﬁ#%%%m%ﬁgzéﬂi

(WG A T4 T H) Z 8 7
ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%m Z
LG Al (B 7 5% 0 (8 A g 2 AT
BETH 5 BE > 2 2 UK
BREEMBE S -MTEZ
N FBEFTT 2 i A KA
B A s Bl T HALES
S Iy §

ik — JH a2k 22 T #OR i A B
JE AT B T S R A 4K R
HIA B TR =k -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

276

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are carried at other than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”), the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis. In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the trade receivable from and payables to
cash clients that are due to be settled on the same date
and the Group intends to settle these balances on a net
basis.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 383 &R T HZ A AEMEGE
(Continued) (%)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting 4 il B 1 Y
(Continued) (#8)
Gross
amounts of  Net amounts
recognised of financial
financial assets
assets (liabilities)
Gross (liabilities) presented
amounts of  set off in the in the Related amounts not offset in the
recognised  consolidated  consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
financial ~ statementof statement of R B 4 W 0L 9
assets financial financial Financial Collateral
(liahilities) position position instruments received Net amount
T 45 B

WHEN  REGHHE
[BY TR ¥ PAEY T V8 L]
SHEE SMEE  Z2MEE

(fff)z8%  (ARAFE (A FH SRR FREEM & B
HKS’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T LT LT T LT LT
2019 ZE-NA
Financial assets SHERE
Trade receivables from KEZETBAEEFZ
clearing house and cash clients FENR R 3 1,037 (910) 127 - - 127
Financial liabilities SHAR
Trade payables to clearing house and ~ [ZEH T KB EEF 2
cash clients TERTHR R (8,756) 910 (7,846) = - (7.846)
2018 v SV
Financial assets SHERE
Trade receivables from KALEPRBIEEF 2
clearing house and cash clients REdC iR 7,676 (2,152) 5,524 - = 5,524
Financial liabilities SHARK
Trade payables to clearing house and ~ FZH i R &% F 2
cash clients TERTHR R (19,291) 2,152 (17,139) - - (17,139)
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wl " HEMBAFREES
BUSINESS COMBINATION P

(a) Acquisition of Wala Wala Limited (“Wala Wala”) (a) WeiEEER R AR AW ([#

and the business (the “Business”) hidEdr ) REH ([E5])
On 17 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity R_F—-NE_HA+LEH &

45 [H g B E R 2 T 2 A %
HE I e R Bl A
#2,300,0007C » #e 4 FE 47 15—
] 7 & s G i AR ST 1 A BR A
Al EERF LB MEE A AR

interests in Wala Wala and a shareholder’s loan, at
an aggregated cash consideration of HK$2,300,000.
Wala Wala is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
business of operating a restaurant serving Japanese

Cuisine. TP ) 25 B 11 SE S o
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the AW HOBA Rk A A B
date of acquisition is as follows: B2 A REENT
HK$°000
T T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y2~ WE Bkt (BEEELS) 10,535
Accounts receivables JRE WK TH 10
Inventories & 100
Deposit, prepayments and other receivables 2 4~ TS T R At R i R T 1,414
Lease liabilities HEARE (7,274)
Accounts and other payables JRE A K TE R JEL At JE A 3K IH (582)
Shareholder’s loan JB R B K (4,754)
Total net liabilities R AR (551)
HK$’000
T
Consideration RAE 2,300
Less: Shareholder’s loan acquired T80 - i oA B ) i PR K (4,754)
Less: Net liabilities acquired s P ) B R E 551
Gain on bargain purchase EAEEY A (1,903)
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) B (%)

(a) Acquisition of Wala Wala Limited (“‘Wala Wala”) (a) WelgdEd #Ehr G R A F (3

and the business (the “Business’) (Continued)

Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$1,903,000 on
acquisition of Wala Wala is recognised in profit or loss
within the “other income, other gains and losses” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Wala Wala and
the Business

Cash consideration paid

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Wala Wala contributed revenue of approximately
HK$10,854,000 and net loss of approximately
HK$5,223,000 to the Group for the period from the date
of acquisition to 31 December 2019. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2019, the Group revenue
would have been approximately HK$11,998,000, and
loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have
been approximately HK$5,657,000. This pro forma
information was for illustrative purpose only and was
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2019, nor
was it intended to be a projection of future results.

2B & AE

brdEdr |) BB ([EH])

(#

i Wi S 2 7 2 7 R 1) 1 i B
Wi 25 5 7 1,903,000 7T iR 45
A 18 3 B H At 2 i 25 2 [
s A~ oA it K e 1E ] RY
TEH iR AR

W it 3 ik 3 i B 5 B 2 Bl <2 e
B

HK$’000

T o

2,300

W il S T A5 A 2

U R E - LA
+ o H=+— B #8H R
e Ji7 7y A 4 B B K IR A A 9
#10,854,0007C & iF i B £
55,223,000 7€ © fif Ui 1 =
Hik —F—JLFE—H—H%#
A RIS S5 [ B4 Mg A5 B 4 7
#11,998,0007C > 1 #% & — &
—hE+_H=+—HILEE
(1) e 48 4% 2 40 % %5°5,657,000
TG ° 7% #h 75 B R 4 50 A
> AN — 7 2% BH i A 1 = TH
W FE U~ — HE8AN
5 DL A 58 BB P AT 85 A5 ) i
YNES SWIVS -2 TP
EENTEY -
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of Belicious

On 20 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Belicious and the entire shareholder’s loan
at an aggregated cash consideration of HK$23,000,000.
Belicious is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the

ﬁ (/AE

(b) eI be A Iy T T mi

—E—)ENA+HA
A5 8 i LU A B T 2 A
R IE S PR Z B A
%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%%mﬂnmo
IC o b I IRF T T MR s — A
T WAL A RATR > £
BN U S R B A S B D
e T8 NG o

TSR B - AT R

date of acquisition is as follows: BZAREEWNT

HK$’000

T ot
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) W R m B (B EELS) 198
Inventories & 1,787
Trade receivables JFEE WA B R 2,259
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables % 4 ~ TE AT 2k A oAl 1B i 3¢ 1H 202
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &S EY 3,496
Trade and other payables JRRE A R R B JEL At JE A 3K IH (3,350)
Shareholder’s loan Ji& R ZK (1,519
Total net assets B E I H A 3,073
Goodwill arising on acquisition W b e AR 2 TR
Consideration AR 23,000
Less: shareholder’s loan acquired I PIT AL 1) B R K (1,519)
Less: Net assets acquired W BT U ) i E (3,073)
Goodwill (Note 18) P2 (B EE18) 18,408
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39. Wl B R A F R EB A
P (4

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Belicious (Continued) (b) Wl b A g = Tmi g (4 )

Goodwill arising from the acquisition was attributable
to the benefit of the anticipated profitability and future
development of the alcoholic beverage distribution
business. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill as the future economic benefits arising
from them cannot be reliably measured.

HK$’000
T T
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Belicious Wi e FI b F 1. jl 2
B 2 o Hi T
Consideration satisfied by: A REZ 7K
Cash paid SEREITER 23,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W : T AR 1) B 4 K B SR E (3,496)
19,504
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group W e 3 T ) A 5 B S A 2 i

Belicious contributed revenue of approximately
HK$10,132,000 and net profit of approximately
HK$2,073,000 to the Group for the period from
the date of acquisition to 31 December 2018. If
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018,
the Group revenue would have been approximately
HK$11,963,000 and net profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been approximately
HK$1,671,000. This pro forma information was for
illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
occurred on 1 January 2018, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.

WS S P 2 ) 7 R T 45 48 A T
SIS BOKL 73 8 265 2 ZL A i
1 B R AL & o 7% 55 ) 4 3l A
S 7 O B AR > T R B
EE A 14 R 2 S ] 4 0 32 T e

it

R H B E T — N E
+A=+—HHMH LA
IRy T W 5 A £E 18 B RR UK
A5 1510,132,00070 K #ii Fl
9 52,073,000 7T © fif Uiz Hf g5
R FE— NFE—H—H%#
A I ACEE [ U B AT
#11,963,0007C > 1 # & — &
—NE+-HA=+—HILEE
(1) &8 A1 4% 2 40 9 ¥°1,671,000
TG ° 7% Hh 75 B R A 50 A
i o Sl AN — 2 7 WA i i SR T
W F— )NFE—H—H AN
5 YL A< 58 8 B P AT 85 A5 ) i
VNE S BWIVS: (- E P Y
EHEMTER -
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(¢) Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited

282

(“Hamayaki”) and the business (the “Business”)

On 16 October 2018,
equity interest in Hamayaki and a shareholder’s loan

the Group acquired 100%

at as aggregated cash consideration of HK$813,200.
Hamayaki is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is an investment holding
company. The Group also acquired the Business of
operation of two restaurants serving Japanese cuisine
in Hong Kong including the rights and assets agreed
to be sold in the transfer of business agreement at a
cash consideration of HK$1,986,800. Hamayaki is the
leasee of the leases, on which the leased properties are
used for carrying on the business of operating the two
restaurants acquired.
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([Hamayaki | ) & 8 ([%
¥1)
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39. Wl B R A F R EB A
P (4

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(¢) Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited (¢) WilEHamayaki (HK) Limited
(“Hamayaki”) and the business (the “Business”) ([Hamayaki |) B % ([ 3%
(Continued) 1) (%)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the

TS F > R R KB

date of acquisition is as follows: B2 REEWT
HK$°000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ¥ 3 - i 5 Kk (FffsE15) 1,985
Inventories T8 2
Deposits, prepayments and other Fie 4~ FEAS AR B At B SRR TH
receivables 813
Shareholder’s loan Ji& 3R B K (822)
Total net assets % E AR 1,978
Goodwill arising on acquisition W i A Ak 2 v
Consideration AV 2,800
Less: Shareholder’s loan acquired Bok < BT oA i ) R K (822)
Less: Net asset acquired Uk BT WA Y E R (E (1,978)
Goodwill (Note 18) P (K EE18) =
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W % Hamayaki & 5 % 2 Bl & Ui i 5 #5
Hamayaki and the Business
Consideration satisfied by: AT REZ K
Cash paid oA B & 2,800
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

()

(d)

284

Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited
(“Hamayaki”) and the business (the “Business”)
(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Hamayaki contributed revenue of approximately
HKS$Nil and net profit of approximately HK$9,100 to
the Group for the period from the date of acquisition
to 31 December 2018. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2018, the Group revenue would have been
approximately HK$Nil and profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been approximately
HK$6,800. This pro forma information was for
illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
occurred on 1 January 2018, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Acquisition of Nobel Education

On 8 October 2018, the Group acquired 51% equity
interest in Nobel Education at a cash consideration
of HK$3,000,000. Nobel Education as enlarged by
allotment and issue of 18,734,694 new shares and is
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and principally engaged in provision of
kindergarten and pre-school education services.
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ANEEAE 2y B R AR SE SR B T

W B 4 i L B

AR \FE+HNH RE
Vo] A g 4 it SR R IS 1% 1
HE > B AE 5 553,000,000
G ° &% BC B K #%1718,734,694
JBEHT I B R A% > 40 AR
£ — [ s 5 A T 9 A BR
OS] B AL A HE
LR B WRHS o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Nobel Education (Continued)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

39. Wl B R A F R EB A
P (4

(@ WIEgEMmRBET (H)

W A K AR WSO

date of acquisition is as follows: 2 RMEEWT
HK$’000
ki aT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ¥ 3~ iE Kk (FffsE15) 330
Deposits, prepayments and other 2 4 ~ TE A R B Al R i 3 E
receivables 920
Cash and cash equivalents e kR EEEY 3,308
Trade and other payables AR AT R 3 e L At B At TR TH (2,190)
Total net assets &R T A 2,368
Goodwill arising on acquisition e i Ak 2 v
Consideration RAE 3,000
Add: Non-controlling interests o s JE 12 R RE 2 1,160
Less: Net assets acquired W T WO A E R E (2,368)
Goodwill (Note 18) R (B EEL8) 1,792

Goodwill arising from the acquisition was attributable
to the anticipated profitability and future development

of the children education business.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of
Nobel Education

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash paid
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

WA S E A PR ER L P

KMRERFTERZ RRERE-
HK$’000
T e
Wl B BB RNFH
ATRAE 2
BT 4 3,000
WA MR EEEY (3,308)

(308)

BRERREERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
i e Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Nobel Education (Continued)

(e)

286

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Nobel Education Organisation Limited contributed
revenue of approximately HK$1,182,000 and net
profit of approximately HK$537,000 to the Group
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2018. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2018, the Group revenue would have
been approximately HK$4,600,000 and loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
been approximately HK$3,126,000. This pro forma
information was for illustrative purpose only and was
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2018, nor
was it intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of 39% interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary

On 21 September 2018, the Group, a company
incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles with limited
liability, as the seller entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the acquisition of 7,800 sale
shares representing 39% of the issued shares of Tony
China at a consideration of HK$10,000,000. Prior to
the acquisition, Tony China is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as to 51% held by the
Company and as to 49% held by the seller.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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39. Wolik BB R O W) R B A
PF ()

(@ WELEmRBE (H)

(e)

Wl I Ef A5 ] K 2 2 B

RUEEH B E R — \FE+
H=+— B % R4 F
WA R A A 2 AL B EH R
e A &) s 5 1,182,0007T M Al
F &) s H537,0007C o it 1 B
HEWN _F—NF—H—H
BEAE > JI A 42 [ B U A A £ Y
5 4,600,0007C > T #EE —F
—NFE+ HA=Z+—HILFEE
() s 18 1% £ 40 95 3,126,000
TG o 7% M 75 R At 50 A
o AN — 7E 2% B i g 1 < TH
W FE— N\ E—H— HEAW
15 DL A 5 [ B % AT B A5 A i
INES BWIVN: (VR P S
AW EE -

W i e 22 S B JR 2 ] 39 %o HiE i

W_FE—-NENAZ+T—H
7 4R [H] B — ] A 28 F T 2L A
I3 5 MBS A BRA F (B
BH)GILEE W& NEA
B LA # %510,000,0007C 2 4 AE
Wi Wi 7,800 % F-7 5 1 4y (4 3R
Fl o B 2 EE AT A 239% ) o
i W - T 2 T SRR R B
AANFIZEEEME AT H
AT B T A FEA51% K%
49% i 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) B (%)
(e) Acquisition of 39% interest in a non-wholly owned (e) Wl Ik 2 & BT B 2> v 39 % HE i
subsidiary (Continued) (7 )

Tony China is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in
investment holding. It is the holding company of three
PRC subsidiaries. The Tony China Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of
feedstock products and related activities. The Board
is of the view that the acquisition represented an
opportunity to consolidate the shareholding in the Tony
China Group which can further strengthen the Group’s
equity interest in the Tony China Group.

The completion of the acquisition took place on 28
September 2018, and the Company holds 90% of the
issued shares of the Tony China and the seller holds
the remaining 10% of the issued shares of the Tony
China. Each of the members of the Tony China Group
will remain to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Tony
China Group on the equity attributable to owners of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018
was summarised as follows:

SR v [ 27— ] 7 7 s A1
S ARAF > FEREHRE
PEIBE > 2 =[] o B Y 2 R Y
PERCLN T o A p B AR B
R = A 7 B 73 S BRDRY S it B AR
R S5 o g R W R OE
TG PR SRR v 1 5 I A ) 44
B LA A AR
T SRR P [ B o i

Wi B = T A R — )\ 4E LA
A NH R AN AREA R
) B E B AT A 2.90% > i
B 7R AR B B AT Ry
RN AY10% o A H 3 4 [ 4%
B AR AR AT Z A2
5 A D e

HEE —F - NE+ZH
= — B IR s A R A
B 4 BT A 5 5 B 3 A 0
B N B HE £ 1Y 52 A2
T

HK$°000
BT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling L Wi i 2 I 48 % i B T M
interest acquired 8,969
Consideration: fRAE -
Settlement of other receivables A SR At R Wi EKIE 4,600
Consideration paid to non-controlling I JF ¥ i WE 2 S AF 2 ARUAE
interest 5,400
10,000
Excess of consideration paid recognised i #E # 19 2 51k 8 #E SR 1Y
in accumulated losses within equity AT E (1,031)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

()

(g)

288

Disposal of Broad Sound

On 13 February 2019, City Ally Holdings Limited
(“City Ally”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as seller, and an independent third party as
purchaser completed the disposal by City Ally of its
100% equity interest in Broad Sound its subsidiary to
the purchaser, at an aggregate cash consideration of its
subsidiary HK$2,300,000.

The assets, liabilities and loss on disposal of Broad
Sound as at the date of disposal are as follows:

R PN E 7

(%)
i # Broad Sound

W_F—NFE_H+=H>
AparlzHZEEEWE A
A City Ally Holdings Limited
(Icity Ally)) (fE&=E )
% M City Ally i Ho B & 2 A
Broad Sound ) 100% & % 1] 7%
SEES =07 (MR R R TT) SEIR
BRI S RE SR
2,300,0007T °

i J

K]

BT

HKS$’ 000
¥+

Loan receivables JRE Ui B K 2,296
Cash and cash equivalents Bl N B4 S5 A 3
Total net assets MG E 2,299

HI‘($’000

T o
Consideration ﬁ 18 ) - 2,300
Less: Net assets disposed W B EEE (2,299)
Gain on disposal HMEFHEZY 1
Net cash inflow on disposal of i B2Broad Sound 2 B & i \ i# 80

Broad Sound
Cash consideration \fﬁfi\ﬁ% 2.300
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W Bl KBS EY (3)
2,297

Disposal of Treasure Easy (g) i #Treasure Easy Limited
On 31 January 2018, Rich Sheen, an indirect wholly- NW—E—-NE—H=+—H>
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Li Ho Ay E) 22 T A E W A A
Kwong, a substantial shareholder and director of & 5 Bl Treasure Easy /) £ 2 it
Treasure Easy entered into the sale and purchase ﬁ%%%—?—%fﬁf‘ﬁﬁiTiE
agreement, pursuant to which Rich Sheen agreed to BEE BN EEREBE

sell its 51% equity interest on Treasure Easy, and the
entire shareholder’s loan owing by Treasure Easy to
Rich Sheen as at 31 January 2018, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$20,000 as Treasure Easy was at a
net liability position as of that date.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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H A Treasure EasyE’JSl%T&ﬁn

Bt —NF—H=1+—
H Treasure Easy HRERENE
PR R - A fﬁ_fmﬁ EVER
#20,0007C > J?' [Al /& Treasure
Easyﬁ/\ #% H R R B B ER
ﬁ_‘b o



Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(g)

Disposal of Treasure Easy (Continued)

The assets, liabilities and loss on disposal of Treasure
Easy as at the date of disposal are as follows:

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Trade and other payable

Shareholder’s loan

Loss arising on disposal
Consideration
Non-controlling interests
Shareholders’ loan disposed
Add: Net liabilities disposed

Loss on disposal

Net cash inflow on disposal of
Treasure Easy

Cash consideration

bF (#)

(g) % Treasure Easy ()

T

45~ TE A RIE B H At B Wi H

JEA5F B K B JHL At B A< 3K I
B AR R

S IHE A 2 1R
HE

I 2 B HE 25

B Z BOR K
mrEmEZBEFEH

HEFIH L BH

Hi B Treasure EasyZ Bl £ i \ i# 80

HaeME

W H AR R E - AR
& Treasure Easy & 2= 1 5 48 N

HK$’000
T T

198
(1,298)
(1,814)

(2,914)

HK$°000
i R

20

(1,428)

(1,814)
2,914

(308)

HK$°000
T oo

20
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

41.

290

The Group made minimum lease payments in respect of land
and buildings amounting to approximately HK$6,880,000
during the year 31 December 2018. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

Land and buildings + i R
— Within one year ——4FR
— In the second to fifth years inclusive — AR R AR
(EL45 H EE W 4F)

Operating leases for land and buildings related to office
premises, staff’s quarter and restaurant premises. The lease
does not include contingent rental.

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following significant commitments which were not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements:

Authorised and contracted for:

BHEEEE

Capital contribution to investments

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2019

40.

41.

R m ME R

AEHRNKRE -Z— NE+H
= H 1k B R AR
AR AH 445 3K 4 5 176,880,000 7T ©
AR IR > A 2 AR 48 R AT e
KR A 2 AR AR T G K I 2 2
WIE R R

2018
—E— 4
HK$’000
BT T
12,835

10,326

23,161

+ o KT RETE B I RR A E
Yy~ B T 1 & KA REY) € - %A

83 S L A 4
& ¥
¥ AR i
TS 0K - 0 2
B4 A 2 KR T -
2019 2018
B BN
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTE  BNETE

THIEH R T4

- 966




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM  42. Bl 3% 8 i 4 > fa {8 BHE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities RS AL G RE IS B E A
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from BEEEHFE - MESEESEAZ A
financing activities are those for which cash flow were, &y & TS B R 2 B BRI AR
or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s HHLGEHERBERMTBZHER
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing HE RS RE-

activities.

At 31 December 2018
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16

As at 1 January 2019 (Restated)

Changes from finance activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary
New leases entered

Exchange adjustments

Interest expenses

Interest paid

Repayment of lease liabilities

At 31 December 2019

Lease liabilities

HEAE
(Note 32)
(Bt 5E32)
HK$’000
s T
W _F— /) F+_H=1+—H -
i A s B 5 e 1 VE R BB 1698 IRF 2
H 17,831
B E—JUE—H—H (BEJ5) 17,831
Fil 15 B s )
Wi Mg — P o Jeg A 7,274
BRI E 26,657
[ifE 50, 5 13
) B B 32 2,026
B AT FLE (2,026)
fERHEaE (14,891)
W _FE—NEF+_H=1+—H 36,884

ARERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year:

(a)

Transactions with related parties

Related party
15 Wi 7y

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
R IEE

Mr. Ng Ting Kit or
his close family members

RIEBESEE R HAH

Companies controlled by
Mr. Ng Ting Kit or

his close family member 7 % H & Z & UL A
G IR S A B Interest income from securities
HA ¥ 2 A7) w2 M Bl A

BLVD Cayman Limited

BLVD Holding Pte. Limited

Notes:

Nature of transaction

25 "

Commission income
from securities dealing

HEHEZMElA

Commission income
from securities dealing

7 HE Z fE A

Commission income
from securities dealing

Other interest income

HAt A S A

Interest income
FE A
Rental income

HElwA

(i) The commission income from securities dealings was
calculated at rates ranged from 0.03% to 0.05%.

(ii))  The interest income from securities dealings was based on the

rates which substantially in line with those normally received

by the Group from third parties.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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43. BB TR 5

AR 5% S5 o SV 5 R L A 3t T T 48
5 A1 > A B2 A A A I BB M N
LETZZSWMT

(a) HLBWBIT 5

Notes

B 5

(i)

(1)

(i)

(ii)

W5 -

(1)

(ii)

2019 2018
—hE ZFN\F
HK$’000  HK$’000
wHTxE W TC
1 1

1 1

5 1

249 341

20 -

298 -

BEEE M RAERT
0.03%%0.05% 2 # 5t H -

8 25 HUH 2 LS A T AR
AT A A G ) 5 =07 — i
I 119 5 o o



43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
i o Wil s ER e b 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

Outstanding balances with related parties (b)

Included in the trade receivables, loans and interest
receivables and trade payables arising from the ordinary
course of business are amounts due from/(to) certain
related parties, the details of which are as follows:

Related party
I5H Wi i

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
R SEE

Mr. Lam Chun Kei
VNGE A

Mr. Ng Ting Kit and
his close family members

SRIEBES A R

Companies controlled by
Mr. Ng Ting Kit or
his close family members
S HE S A 5
HE B 2 2w

BLVD Cayman Limited

Nature of account

B Oy

Cash account
B&Fn
Margin account

4P O

Cash accounts
HEF O

Cash account
ReFn
Margin account
RESF O

Cash account
BEF O
Margin account
RESF O

Loan receivable and interest
B Wi B R % S

Other receivable

JH At R WA R TR

The outstanding balances of cash accounts above
represent the net balance of trading accounts at the end

of the reporting period.

43. BB TR 5 (#4)

S [ W O 2 R 4 A A B

FEAR — S AR E A
2 R i B K~ B Wi K B A
BB IR 2 Bl (e
1) 5 T B Wk 7 2 K > R

i
2019
%N
HK$°000
i W5 T 70
(6)

(2)

1)

(485)

(250)

(2,272)

(554)

2,090

557

2018
—F— )\
HK$’000
T T
(6)

(18)

(1)

(394)

(433)

(182)

(523)

2,841

PEREAR BB EF 02
RET &SRR 7 IR F 2 R

#io
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 43. BB TR Y (#)
(¢) Compensation of key management personnel (c) FEEBEMBEALZME
The remuneration of key management during the year AR > T Mg 2 FH I an
was as follows: T
2019 2018

SECRE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Short-term benefits S 1A A A 4,495 3,468
Post-employment benefits Tl Mok £ A 54 62
Discretionary bonus ity 175 A€ 4L - 1,015

4,549 4,545

294 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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44.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fom o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

Statement of financial position of the Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Deposits, prepayments and other

receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 23 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

#EH

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul

Rk

44. AR oy ) B B SIR DO e B fk A 52 )

A 2 ] B R L %
2019 2018
“E-RE F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T e T 0
Ik i Bh B
B8 A F & 32,487 32,487
i B &
¥ 4~ TR AT BOE K&
HC At 7 Az 3K IH 418 1,151
JE WA BFF & 2 ) K IE 116,190 92,832
BHae kB e%EY 4,040 35,523
120,648 129,506
B A E
JE At BfF & 2 ) K IR 120,383 113,593
HAthy 18 A5 3k TH K T £ 2 H 1,343 2,074
121,726 115,667
i B R FE (1,078) 13,839
& T 31,409 46,326
& A B ik
i@ 1,530 12,242
it #d 29,879 34,084
HE 35 48 % 31,409 46,326

ARFZHBRNERCE R —F —F
FEZHA = REE G IR
RET 8% > 3y T2 F AR

Director
#HHE
Mr. Ng Ting Ho
REE A

BREMREHIRAD
ZEBE-NEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fon o Wil 5 b 2 B 51 (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

44.

296

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

Balance at I January 2018

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Issue of share upon exercise of share options

Issue of placing shares

Transactions costs attributable to
issue of shares

Lapse of share options

Balance at 31 December 2018

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year
Share consolidation

Balance at 31 December 2019

Annual Report 2019

REF—NE—A—R 25

AEREH
REZRb 2

AR AR
TR R R
RTRERR

GG PSS
LIGTS
REF-NEF A= A2 ER

R R
AR 2

AEE R AR
Bef b

REF-AEF A= H2 B

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

44. AR 5y W) B4 855K D S Gl A 52 B)

(#)
A 5 ) fik A 5 B
Share

Share  Contributed Capital options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
Jhe b i N N 2t Fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R T T HHT T T
138,874 153,551 71317 1,507 (148,885) 222,364
- - - - (208,505) (208,505)
- - - - (208,505) (208,505)
5495 - - (1,010) - 4485
16,605 - - - - 16,605
(865) - - - - (865)
- - - (497) 497 =
160,109 153,551 71,317 - (356,893) 34,084
- - - - (14,917) (14.917)
- - - - (14,917) (14.917)
- 10,712 - - - 10,712
160,109 164,263 71317 - (371,810) 29,879




Notes to the Consolidated Financialétatements (Corltinuetd)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

45. HEBIRFEH

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

As a result of the continuous outbreak of the swine
fever, together with the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus infection since mid-January 2020 affecting
various provinces and regions in the PRC, has
contributed to a disruption of the upstream side and
downstream side of the PRC pork supply chain and the
swine market, and has resulted in a significant decrease
in demand for the Group’s feedstock products.

After careful consideration of the business development
of the Group’s feedstock product business, the
operations of the Group’s feedstock products business
has been temporarily suspended in February 2020.
The Group will continue to evaluate the impact
of the suspension of operations of the Group’s
feedstock products business and further consider the
circumstances to assess the viability of continuance of
such business.

Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 February 2020.

The fair value of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the
end of the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the realised gains and unrealised
losses on financial assets at FVTPL from changes
in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL held as
at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$101,000 and HK$4,191,000 respectively.

(a)

(b)

R AR R B A —
FoFE— A AR RN
B e AR B R 2 P I 2
7 T o [t » SRS B 4 P AL R
g bR i R AR TG Y B
W - T 25 B0 A 4 1 R
fil 19 75 3K K ok 2>

A S AR 1 R} i SES Y S
B B R UUHEAT T IR AR
LR O RURLEE ST B —F
TR R R AR
VB 5 A Al L A K 2 i S S
TiEEEN R WE— PR
PEVSESI TR+t -5
ST AT

e AR A ) FL A
SECFECACF-AZA

%:‘O

b REATE S 2 N SUAEAE T
T B R 4% B 52 BT R K
GEMJIT B 15 2 BT # h 85 Wi i
15 7 5E -

5% 55 AR 6 W ik SR AL U
Z AW =F—ETZA
=+—HRHZEAREER
A8 3 2 4 VB AN B 5
B A AEER A BEZ
R O B AR B R B
B s 18 0 Al 2 40 4s H101,000
JC M 64,191,000 7T °

BREMREHIRAD
ZEBE-NEFH
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Flve— ears Financial Summary

TS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —2E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

RESULTS

Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit from
operations
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Finance costs
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/gain on
deconsolidation of
subsidiaries
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Assets impairments
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

£

A
F A TS
B LG

BN () /
2 Al
R TS
B LGRS

S A
R T
B LR

@ el
NREZ (FER) /
I %
FRIBAC 8 T
BRI RS ER

W i (]
FHEALE
E&IEREER

For the year ened 31 December

BET-H=+—HIL&EE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
SR SBAE LR —XE SR
HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
W T T T T T
112,144 73,423 53,393 37,739 37,803
- - 3,584 23,964 85,341
112,144 73,423 56,977 61,703 123,144
(103,355) (40,936) (77,241) (16,728) 9,768
- - (1,817) 5,829 9,505
(103,355) (40,936) (79,038) (10,899) 19,273
(2,026) (38) (1,104) (870) (252)

- - - - (168)

(2,026) 38) (1,104) (870) (420)

- (308) - - -

_ - 2,867 - 1,359

- (308) 2,867 - 1,359
(47,603) - (20,524) (1,320) (5,934)

- - - (1,629) -
(47,603) - (20,524) (2,949) (5,934)
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(Loss)/profit before tax

Continuing operations RSB R
Discontinued operations £ #%¢ 11 #8% 2£45

Income tax (expense)/credit FF{ERE (B 2) /&%

Continuing operations A R
Discontinued operations £ #%¢ 1L #8% 2£45
(Loss)/profit to the year  AS4E & (f518) /Uit Al

Continuing operations A R
Discontinued operations £ #%¢ 11 #8724

(Loss)/profit attributable to: | 51 A4k

(FE18) /A -
Owners of the Company  ZA/A R A A
Continuing operations SRR e
Discontinued operations £ #%¢ 1L #8785 2645
Non-controlling interests  JF 4% Bt £
Continuing operations RSB T
Discontinued operations £ #%¢ 11 #8785 245

BRELAT (B51R) /A

Five-years Financial Summar

(Continued)

hElimneE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E— L4 1= H =+1—H I F ¥

For the year ened 31 December

BRET A= —HIEEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZEE ZF-AE ZEZ—tF ZE-AFE ZZ-HF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T BT T T T T T T
(105,381) (40,974) (98.869) (18.918) 3,582
- - 1,050 4,200 10,696
(105,381) (40,974) (97.819) (14,718) 14,278
(132) (320) 40 361 (1.273)
(132) (320) 40 361 (1,273)
(105,513) (41,294) (98.829) (18,557) 2,309
- - 1,050 4,200 10,696
(105,513) (41,294) (97.779) (14,357) 13,005
(104,211) (40,542) (99,021) (19,640) 2,607
- - 534 1,957 3,561
(104,211) (40,542) (98.487) (17,683) 6,168
(1,302) (752) 192 1,083 (298)

- - 516 2,243 7,135

(1,302) (752) 708 3,326 6,837

BRERREERAD
—s—nean 299



Flve— ears Financial Summary (Continued)

FHFRHE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # # — & — L4+ = =+ —H 1L F /&

As at 31 December

RT=A=t—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“AE CE-AF CFLE SF-AF CF6f
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000

W T T T W T HEHT T BT

ASSETS AND g Y =N
LIABILITIES

Total assets MR 207,226 284,556 326,549 506,433 362,594

Total liabilities WA R (68,687) (38,059) (37,946) (107,052) (10,948)
138,539 246,497 288,603 399,381 351,646

Equity attributable to TFIA L REA HE £

Owners of the Company A/~ A HEA A 136,726 243,416 271,735 361,420 342,054

Non-controlling interests  7F ¥ FE B 4 1,813 3,081 10,868 37,961 9,592
138,539 246,497 288,603 399,381 351,646
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